
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI

October 21, 2025
AGENDA
6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER BY THE PRESIDENT

INVOCATION

1. REVEREND DR. STANLEY SMITH OF CROSSROADS M.B. CHURCH
(WARD 7)

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

PUBLIC HEARING

INTRODUCTIONS

PUBLIC COMMENTS

CONSENT AGENDA

2. NOTE: "ALL MATTERS LISTED UNDER THE CONSENT AGENDA
ARE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND
WILL BE ENACTED BY ONE MOTION IN THE FORM LISTED
BELOW.  THERE WILL BE NO SEPARATE DISCUSSION OF THESE
ITEMS. IF DISCUSSION IS DESIRED, THAT ITEM WILL BE
REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND CONSIDERED
SEPARATELY."

3. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF JACKSON AND 3 SQUARES VENTUREs,
LLC TO DEMOLISH A STRUCTURE, REMOVE FOUNDATION,
STEPS, DRIVEWAY, CUT GRASS AND WEEDS, REMOVE TRASH AND
DEBRIS, AND TO PERFORM OTHER WORK TO REMEDY THE
CONDITIONS ON PRIVATE PROPERTY THAT CONSTITUTE A
MENACE TO PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE
ACCORDING TO MISSISSIPPI CODE ANNOTATED SECTION 21-19-11
FOR CASE #CE-24-1947 LOCATED AT 175 JAMES ST.  PARCEL #100-
116– $8,700.00 (WARD 3) (TEEUWISSEN, HORHN)

4. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF JACKSON AND SOCRATES GARRETT
ENTERPRISES, INC., TO DEMOLISH A STRUCTURE, FOUNDATION,
STEPS, AND DRIVEWAY, TO CUT GRASS AND WEEDS, TO REMOVE
TRASH AND DEBRIS, AND TO PERFORM OTHER WORK TO

REVISED



REMEDY THE CONDITIONS ON STATE-OWNED PROPERTY THAT
CONSTITUTE A MENACE TO PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY,
AND WELFARE ACCORDING TO MISSISSIPPI CODE ANNOTATED
SECTION 21-19-11 FOR CASE #CE-21-1841 LOCATED AT 4935
SUNNYBROOK DR., PARCEL #822-152 $9,500.00 (HORNE, ANDERSON)
 (WARD 4) (TEEUWISSEN, HORHN)

5. APPROVAL OF THE SEPTEMBER 23, 2025 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES. (S. JORDAN, GRIZZELL)

6. APPROVAL OF THE SEPTEMBER 30, 2025, SPECIAL COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES. (S. JORDAN, GRIZZELL)

INTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCES

ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE

7. ORDINANCE AMENDING MOBILE FOOD VENDING ORDINANCE
TO ADD THE ADDITIONAL CLASSIFICATION OF MOBILE TENT
VENDOR, ESTABLISH FEES FOR EACH CLASS OF VENDOR, AND
INCLUDE PROVISIONS ON SEVERABILITY AND CONFLICT.
(TEEUWISSEN, HORHN)

8. ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI,
RENAMING PEARL STREET FROM I-55 TO PEARL STREET TO
NORTH STATE STREET TO FRANK MELTON DRIVE. (STOKES)

9. ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI,
RENAMING THE PEARL STREET BRIDGE FROM I-55 TO PEARL
STREET TO NORTH STATE STREET TO THE FRANK MELTON
BRIDGE. (STOKES)

REGULAR AGENDA

10. CLAIMS (CALDWELL, HORHN)
11. PAYROLL (CALDWELL, HORHN)
12. ORDER CONFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR JOHN A.

HORHN TO THE CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI PLANNING AND
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, INC. (CMPDD). (HORHN)

13. ORDER CONFIRMING MAYOR JOHN HORHN’S APPOINTMENT OF
JILLIAN CALDWELL AS CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF THE CITY
OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI. (HORHN)

14. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE RENEWAL
OF THE 12-MONTH CITYWORKS LICENSE AND MAINTENANCE
AGREEMENT WITH AZTECA SYSTEMS, LLC - CITYWORKS
SOFTWARE FOR THE RECEIPT AND TRACKING OF ALL NON-
EMERGENCY CONSTITUENT SERVICE REQUESTS. (LOTT, HORHN)

15. ORDER RATIFYING THE EMERGENCY PROCUREMENT OF WEB
DEVELOPMENT AND SUPPORT SERVICES FROM RED LASER
TECHNOLOGY, INC, AND AUTHORIZING THE PAYMENT OF
INVOICE #202500187 IN THE AMOUNT OF $33,000.00 AND FURTHER



AUTHORIZING THE PROCUREMENT OF MAINTENANCE SUPPORT
AND TRAINING SERVICES AT A COST OF $5,000 PER MONTH FOR A
PERIOD OF FOUR (4) MONTHS. (SLATER, HORHN)

16. ORDER APPROVING PAYMENT OF INVOICES RECEIVED BY THE
JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT FROM LIVE OAK
PSYCHOLOGICAL ASSOCIATES. (JONES, HORHN)

17. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT AND GUARDIAN
ALLIANCE TECHNOLOGIES, INC. FOR A SUBSCRIPTION TERM OF
TWELVE (12) MONTHS. (JONES, HORHN)

18. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF JACKSON TO RELEASE THE
TITLES OF VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT SOLD BY
PROPERTYROOM.COM. (JONES, HORHN)

19. ORDER RATIFYING AND APPROVING PAYMENT OF INVOICES
SUBMITTED BY ANIMAL MEDICAL CENTER FOR GOODS AND
SERVICES RENDERED TO THE JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT.
(JONES, HORHN)

20. ORDER RATIFYING THE JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT’S
TERMINATION OF “PROJECT PROVE IT” WITH FLOCK GROUP,
INC. (RAVEN) AND THE CITY OF JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT.
(JONES, HORHN)

21. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE PETTY CASH FUND FOR THE
JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2025-
2026.B (JONES, HORHN)

22. ORDER REQUESTING RATIFICATION OF PAYMENT TO WARING
OIL COMPANY, LLC FOR THE PURCHASE OF EMERGENCY
GASOLINE FOR THE PETE BROWN GOLF COURSE FROM THE
2024-2025 BUDGET. (TEEUWISSEN, HORHN)

23. ORDER REQUESTING RATIFICATION OF PAYMENT TO FORD
PLUMBING AND AIR FOR THE EMERGENCY REPAIR OF A WATER
LINE AT PARHAM BRIDGES PARK TO BE PAID FROM THE 2024-2025
BUDGET. (TEEUWISSEN, HORHN)

24. ORDER RATIFYING EMERGENCY PROCUREMENT OF REPAIRS TO
A CITY OF JACKSON WATER LINE LEAK AT THE CITY OF
JACKSON ZOO. (TEEUWISSEN, HORHN)

25. ORDER RATIFYING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE
AN AGREEMENT WITH ALL ABOUT ANIMALS, INC., TO PROVIDE
VETERINARY CARE AND MEDICINE TO ALL ANIMALS LOCATED
AT THE JACKSON ZOOLOGICAL PARK, FOR THE SUM OF TWO
THOUSAND AND SEVEN HUNDRED DOLLARS PER MONTH FOR A
PERIOD OF ONE YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2025 AND ENDING
SEPTEMBER 30, 2026. (TEEUWISSEN, HORHN)

26. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR A WORK-BASED
LEARNING PROGRAM BY AND BETWEEN THE JOB CORPS
CONSTORTIUM OF MISSISSIPPI, INC. A/K/A MS JOB CORPS
CENTER AND THE CITY OF JACKSON’S JACKSON ZOO.



(TEEUWISSEN, HORHN)

27. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) WITH JACKSON
PUBLIC SCHOOLS AND DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND
RECREATION FOR THE USE OF SHEPPARD BROTHERS PARK FOR
OFF-SITE REUNIFICATION AT EMERGENCIES. (TEEUWISSEN,
HORHN)

28. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO APPLY
FOR A GRANT OF TWO MILLION DOLLARS ($2,000,000.00) IN
RESPONSE TO THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATION’S (EDA) FY 2025 DISASTER
SUPPLEMENTAL NOTICE OF FUNDING OPPORTUNITY.
(TEEUWISSEN, HORHN)

29. ORDER ACCEPTING THE BID OF MID-SOUTH MACHINERY, INC.
FOR ONE (1) ASPHALT PAVER FOR THE INFRASTRUCTURE
MANAGEMENT DIVISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
WORKS. (ANDERSON, HORHN)

30. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A 60-MONTH
RENTAL AGREEMENT WITH ROBERT J. YOUNG COMPANY, LLC
d/b/a RJ YOUNG COMPANY FOR A RICOH IM C3010 COLOR COPIER
SYSTEM TO BE USED BY THE CARE & MAINTENANCE DIVISION
OF THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS. (ANDERSON, HORHN)

31. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE PETTY CASH FUND FOR THE OFFICE
OF THE CITY ATTORNEY FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026. (D. MARTIN,
HORHN)

32. ORDER AUTHORIZING STIPULATION AND COMPROMISE OF ALL
CLAIMS IN THE MATTER OF THE ENLARGEMENT AND
EXTENSION OF THE MUNICIPAL BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY OF
FLOWOOD, RANKIN COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI, PENDING IN THE
CHANCERY COURT OF RANKIN COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI, CIVIL
ACTION NO.: 18-1395; AND IN THE MATTER OF THE ENLARGING,
EXTENDING, AND DEFINING THE CORPORATE LIMITS AND
BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY OF PEARL, RANKIN COUNTY,
MISSISSIPPI, PENDING IN THE CHANCERY COURT OF RANKIN
COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI, CIVIL ACTION NO.: 18-1714. (D. MARTIN,
HORHN)

33. ORDER REVIEWING AND CONTINUING AUGUST 29, 2022 STATE OF
EMERGENCY. (D. MARTIN, HORHN)

34. ORDER REVIEWING AND CONTINUING STATE OF EMERGENCY.
(JACKSON CITY COUNCIL)

35. ORDER CONFIRMING THE CITY COUNCIL’S APPOINTMENT OF
KEVIN PARKINSON TO THE CAPITOL COMPLEX IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT PROJECT ADVISORY COMMITTEE. (GRIZZELL)

36. RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL STRONGLY SUPPORTING
THE CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI EMPLOYING TEENAGE
YOUTH. (STOKES)



37. RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
COMMEMORATING THE THIRTIETH ANNIVERSARY OF THE
MILLION MARCH OF 1995. (STOKES)

38. A RESOLUTION AFFIRMING SUPPORT FOR THE EFFORTS OF
EMERCHANT CAPITAL, LLC TO ESTABLISH AND DEVELOP THE
METROCENTER AREA BY IMPROVING INFRASTRUCTURE AND
DEVELOPING RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL, AND COMMUNITY
SERVICE PROJECTS. (HARTLEY)

DISCUSSION

39. DISCUSSION: 455 EAST CAPITOL STREET (FOOTE)
40. DISCUSSION: SMITH WILLS STADIUM (FOOTE)
41. DISCUSSION: DRAG RACING (STOKES)
42. DISCUSSION: HIGH SPEED CHASING (STOKES)
43. DISCUSSION: AUDIT (CLAY)
44. DISCUSSION: LITTER (CLAY)
45. DISCUSSION: REVIEW AND CONTINUATION OF COVID-19 LOCAL

EMERGENCY (JACKSON CITY COUNCIL)

PRESENTATION

PROCLAMATION

46. PROCLAMATION RECOGNIZING OCTOBER 2025 AS BREAST
CANCER AND DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AWARENESS MONTH.
(HORHN)

RESOLUTIONS

47. RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR THE LONGTIME SUCCESS
OF LEMURIA BOOKS. (FOOTE)

REPORT FROM MEMBERS, MAYOR, DEPARTMENT DIRECTORS

48. MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS AS REQUIRED ACCORDING TO
SECTION 21-35-13 OF THE MISSISSIPPI CODE ANNOTATED OF 1972.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

ADJOURNMENT

AGENDA ITEMS IN COMMITTEE





( 





·:' .. � 
\ \: � 

\ ---�. � 
\ -.. \.:;) 

. �\�·-'.,; -'ie-... ' ·\·:' 

ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN TIJK:)" � 
CITY OF JACKSON AND 3 SQUARES VENTURES, LLC TO DEMOLISH .A ,,:,. . B
STRUCTURE, REMOVE FOUNDATION, STEPS, DRIVEWAY, CUT GRASS AND\ .. ". c"' 
WEEDS, REMOVE TRASH AND DEBRIS, AND TO PERFORM OTHER WORK TO ' .. 
REMEDY THE CONDITIONS ON PRIVATE PROPERTY THAT CONSTITUTE A 
MENACE TO PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE ACCORDING· TO 
MISSISSIPPI CODE ANNOTATED SECTION 21-19-11 FOR CASE #CE-24-1947 
LOCATED AT 175 JAMES ST. PARCEL #100-116-$8,700.00 (WARD 3) 

WHEREAS, on December 17, 2024, the Jackson City Council approved a resolution 
declaring certain parcels of real property in the City of Jackson to be a menace to public health, 
safety, and welfare pursuant to Section 21-19-11 of the Mississippi Code following an 
administrative hearing held on November 05. 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the Community Improvement Division of the Department of Planning and 
Development has a system in which vendors performing services related to the remedying of 
conditions on property deemed to be a menace to public health, safety, and welfare submit bids; 
and 

WHEREAS, based on stated requirements, 3 Squares Ventures, LLC submitted the lowest 
and best bid and through its representative, Don Price, agreed to demolish and remove remains of 
dilapidated structure, foundation, steps, driveway and/or cut grass, remove trash, debris, and clean 
curbside to remedy conditions constituting a menace to public health and welfare for parcels listed 
as 17 5 J arnes St. Parcel 100-116 for the sum of $8,700.00; and 

WHEREAS, 3 Squares Ventures, LLC has a principal office address 555 Tombigbee St, 
Unit I 03, Jackson, MS 39201, and is in good standing to do business in this state, according to the 
information on the Mississippi Secretary of State's website; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed contract contains the following provisions: 

SECTION 1 - LABOR AND MATERIALS 

Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, supervision, and services necessary to do the work 
specified in the Scope of Work attached in Exhibit A and made a part hereof for the sum of 
$8,700.00. 

SECTION 2 - NOTICE TO PROCEED 

Vendor shall begin the work to be performed upon receipt of a written Notice to Proceed "NTP" 
(Exhibit B). The Vendor shall complete the work described in Exhibit A within thirty (30) 
calendar days of receipt of the NTP set forth in Exhibit B and attached hereto and made a part 
hereof. The City of Jackson may extend the performance period due to the presence of inclement 
weather and resulting conditions, or those acts or occurrences beyond the reasonable 
contemplation of the parties at the time of execution of this Contract that materially alters the 

Agenda Item No.:.__._3....___ 
October 21, 2025 
Teeuwissen, Horhn 



performance period upon which this Contract is based. The performance period may also be 
extended by the City of Jackson to afford vendor time to cure deficiencies in the work performed. 
The contract shall be deemed voidable ninety (90) days from the receipt of the written NTP if 
work has not been completed or at the discretion of the code enforcement officer. 

SECTION 3-SPECIFICATIONS, CODES AND REGULATIONS 

Vendor shall comply with all appropriate specifications, including the general conditions 
provided separately to the Vendor and codes referred to therein, as well as all applicable and 
controlling Federal, Mississippi State and municipal law and permit reasonable inspection of all 
work by authorized inspectors 

SECTION 4 - INSURANCE 

In carrying out the work herein proposed, the Vendor will maintain, at a minimum, the following 
insurance coverage: 

A. Vendor shall, at its expense, carry General Liability Insurance, with maximum bodily
injury coverage of not less than $500,000 aggregate and $500,000 per occurrence, and
property damage coverage of not less than $500,000 aggregate and $500,000 per
occurrence.

B. Vendor shall provide, at its expense, all applicable Mississippi Workman's Compensation
insurance, unemployment compensation insurance, sickness and disability and/or social
security insurance, and will comply with all local, state and federal laws and/or
regulations relating to employment.

C. Vendor shall, at its expense, carry Automotive Public Liability Insurance, with maximum
limits of not less than $500,000 for one accident and Automotive Property Damage
Insurance with maximum limits of not less than $500,000 for one accident, to protect
from all claims arising from the use of the following:

(1) Vendor's own automobiles, trucks and/or vehicles

(2) Hired automobiles, trucks and/or vehicles

(3) Automobiles, trucks and/or vehicles owned by subcontractors

The aforementioned is to cover use of automobiles, trucks and/or vehicles on and off the 
project sites. 

D. Vendor shall, at its expense, can-y Owner's Protective Liability Insurance with the City
of Jackson as a named insured and their servants, agents and employees as additionaJ
insured in amount not less than $500,000 as well as property damage liability coverage
in the amount of $500,000 per occurrence and $500,000 aggregate for all damages arising
out of injury to or destruction of property during the policy period.



E. Pollution Liability Insurance Coverage with limits equivalent to those stated for General
Liability.

The Vendor shall carry all insurance as prescribed herein and all policies shall be with companies 
satisfactory to the City. If a part of this contract is sublet, the Vendor shall require each 
Subcontractor to carry insurance of the same kinds and in like amounts carried by the prime 
Vendor. 

Certificates of insurance shall state that thirty (30) days written notice will be given to the City 
before the policy is canceled or changed. No Vendor or Sub-vendor will be allowed to start any 
work pertaining to the Agreement until certificates of all insurance required herein are filed with 
and approved by the City. The Certificates shall show the type, amount, class of operations 
covered, effective dates and dates of expiration of policies. 

SECTION 5 -ASBESTOS AND LEAD COMPLIANCE 

Vendor shall comply with the provisions of 29 CFR Part I 926(0SHA), governing the protection 
of workers disturbing lead painted surfaces. These provisions include, but are not limited to the 
following: 

l. The Vendor shall contact the City's inspector before disturbing any surfaces painted with
lead paint to document the content oflead on all painted surfaces to be disturbed.

2. The Vendor shall conduct air quality monitoring when appropriate for the type of activity
to determine the level of worker protection required by OSHA. If air quality monitoring
results exceed 30 ug/cu for an 8-hour period, the worker blood testing and monitoring
requirements provided by OSHA shall apply.

3. The Vendor shall provide personal protective equipment, including a respirator program,
as is appropriate to the type of job as required by OSHA.

4. The Vendor shall provide proper containment of the work site and clean the work site
not less than daily to contain lead dust.

5. The Vendor shall make proper facilities available for worker hygiene when entering or
exiting a work area.

6. The Vendor shall provide for appropriate signage indicating the presence of a lead hazard
when conducting work activities.

7. The Vendor shall ensure that specialized cleaning of containment areas is complete
before re-occupancy by the occupant of the house. For activities that remove identified
lead hazards, the contractor shall ensure that specialized cleaning is adequate to meet
clearance standards adopted by the Department of Housing and Urban Development,
("HUD") and the Mississippi Department of Health, ("MOH".)



8. The Vendor shall comply with all relevant MS laws as we11 as 10 CFR 10.6.080, 10 CFR
6.240, and 10 CFR 6.250, EPA regulations at 40 CFR Part 61 governing asbestos, and
OSHA worker protection regulations.

9. The Vendor shall furnish documentation to the City upon execution of this agreement
proving that vendor is qualified to abate asbestos or has entered into a subcontract with
an individual qualified to perfonn asbestos abatement. If vendor subcontracts with an
individual qualified to perform asbestos abatement, then a copy of the subcontract and
the subcontractor's asbestos abatement qualifications must be provided.

10. The vendor shall provide demolition notification to the MDEQ ten (10) days before
demolition activity when asbestos is present.

SECTION 6 - PERMITS AND LICENSES 

The Vendor must obtain and pay for all pem1its and licenses necessary for the completion and 
execution of the work and labor to be performed. 

SECTION 7 - DEBRIS AND MATERIAL REMOVAL AND RESPONSIBILITY OF THE 
CONTRACTOR 

The Vendor shall keep the premises clean and orderly during the course of the work and remove 
all debris as it accumulates. Materials and equipment that have been removed and replaced as 
part of the work shall belong to the Vendor, unless specified otherwise in the "Request for Quotes 
or Bids." The Vendor shall also dispose of demolition debris in compliance with State and 
Federal laws. Vendor shall provide the City with receipts obtained in the disposal of demolition 
debris and all other materials removed from site. In lieu of disposal receipts for salvageable 
materials, Vendor shall submit proof of recycling or appropriate storage for repurposed 
materials. Vendors should provide a manifest for removal of tires. Tires must be dumped at a 
waste tire facility. 

In the event that the Vendor must engage in excavation of any kind, the Vendor shall comply 
with the MS Dig Law set forth in Section 77-13-1 to 77-13-37 of the Mississippi Code Before 
beginning any excavation, unless otherwise provided in the MS Dig Law, the vendor shall 
provide not less than three (3) and not more than ten (10) working days' advance written, 
electronic, or telephonic notice of the commencement, extent, location and duration of the 
excavation work to Mississippi 811, Incorporated, so that Mississippi 811, Incorporated, 
operator(s) may locate and mark the location of underground utility lines and underground 
facilities in the excavation area. 

SECTION 8 -ASSIGNMENTS AND SUBCONTRACTS 

Neither party may assign all or any portion of this Agreement except for entering into a 
subcontract for abatement of asbestos without the prior written consent of the other. Vendor is 
responsible for all work carried out by all sub-vendors. 



Vendor shall not subcontract any part of the work to be performed under this contract to any 
member, officer or employee of the City or its designees or agents, members of the governing 
body of the City, any other public official of such locality who exercises any functions or 
responsibilities with respect to the Community Development Program giving rise to this contract 
during this or her tenure or for one year thereafter 

SECTION 9 - SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Vendor binds itself, partners, successors, receivers, administrators, and assigns to the other 
party to this Agreement, and to the partners, successors, receivers, administrators, and assigns of 
each other party in respect of all of covenants this Agreement. 

SECTION IO-NOTICES 

All notices, requests, demands, or other communications required by this Agreement, or desired 
to be given or made by either of the parties to the other hereto, shall be given o r  made by personal 
delivery or by mailing the same in a sealed envelope, postage prepaid, and addressed to the 
parties at their respective addresses set forth below or to such other address as may, from time 
to time, be designated by notice given in the manner provided in this Section. 

City of Jackson, Mississippi 
Chokwe Antar Lumumba, Mayor 
200 S. President Street 
Post Office Box 17 
Jackson, Mississippi 39205-0017 

3 SQUARES VENTURES, LLC 
DON PRICE 
555 TOMBIGBEE ST UNIT 103 
JACKSON, MS. 39201 

SECTION 11 - DEFAULT AND TERMINATION PRIOR TO EXPIRATION OF TERM 

A. Defaults and Termination for Cause.

If the Vendor (i) shall violate any substantial provision of this Agreement or if (ii) any material 
adverse change shall take place in the financial condition of the Vendor which would impair the 
Vendor's ability to perform its obligations hereunder, or (iii) should any of the Vendor's 
representations made hereunder prove to be incorrect or misleading ( each an "Event of Default")� 
then the City may serve written notice upon the Vendor terminating this Agreement at a specified 
date, and this Agreement shall terminate on such date. The Notice shall provide reasonable 
instructions to Vendor concerning actions to be taken in order to affect the rescission or 
termination of the contract, and Vendor agrees to abide the reasonable instructions. The 
termination of the agreement based on default does not preclude or prohibit the City of Jackson 
from exercising any other remedy available to it at law or in equity. Rescission or termination 
of the agreement is cumulative of other remedies available to the City of Jackson. 

B. Termination for Convenience.



The City, at any time, may terminate this Agreement without cause, in whole or in part, solely 
for its o-wn convenience. Any such tennination shall be affected by delivering notice to the 
Vendor. The Notice of Termination shall include reasonable instructions to the Contractor 
concerning actions to be taken in insuring that the termination is effective. Vendor agrees to 
abide by the reasonable instructions provided in the Notice of Termination. If termination is not 
for cause, the Vendor's remedies pursuant to the provision of this agreement shall be limited to 
payment for services and work performed as of the date notice of termination. 

SECTION 12 -FEDERAL GRANTS 

In the event any federal grants or funding becomes available, the Vendor agrees to comply with 
such regulations or restrictions as may be required by the terms of such federal funding. 

SECTION 13 - GOVERNING LAW AND LEGAL REMEDIES 

This agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Mississippi. The Vendor expressly 
agrees that under no circumstances shall the CITY be obligated to pay attorney's fees or the cost 
of legal action against the Vendor. 

SECTION 14 - INDEMNIFICATION 

The Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold City harmless from and against any and all claims, 
demands, liabilities, suits, judgments, injuries, costs, damages, losses, expenses, surcharges, 
fines, penalties, taxes, interests, assets and fees of every kind and nature whatsoever, including, 
without limitation, any of the foregoing, on account of death and injury to persons and losses of, 
or damage to, property, natural resources or the environment, including governmental and 
physician claims and creditor, reasonable attorney and other professional fees and costs arising 
out of or in connection with or caused by, in any way, the negligence, willful misconduct of or 
breach of agreement by the Vendor, to the extent not otherwise contributed to by the act or 
negligence of any indemnified party. 

The Contractor further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City for all penalties, fines and 
other obligations which may be imposed by regulatory agencies, including but not limited to, the 
Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality as a result of the Vendor's negligence or 
wrongful failure to perform. 

SECTION 15 - GUARANTY 

Tue Vendor shall guarantee all materials and equipment furnished and work performed for a 
period of one ( 1) year from the date of final inspection. The Vendor warrants and guarantees for 
a period of one (1) year from the date of final inspection of the project that all completed systems 
are free from any and all effects due to faulty materials or workmanship and the Vendor shall 
promptly make such corrections as may be necessary by reason of such defects including the 
repairs of any damage to other parts of the system resulting from such defects. The City will 
give notice of observed defects with reasonable promptness. In the event that the Vendor should 
fail to make such repairs, adjustments, or other work that may be made necessary by such defects, 



r 
the City may, after giving thirty (30) days' notice to the Vendor, do so and charge the Vendor 
the cost thereby incurred. The City will in no way, guarantee that any defects due to faulty 
materials or workmanship will be corrected. 

SECTION 16 -NO AGENCY 

The Vendor is an independent contractor providing services to the City and the employees, 
agents, and servants of the Vendor shall in no event be considered to be the employees, agents, 
or servants of the City. 1bis Agreement is not intended to create an agency relationship between 
the Vendor and City. 

SECTION 17 - HEADINGS 

The headings used in this Agreement have been included solely for ease of reference and shall 
not be considered in the interpretation or construction of this Agreement. 

SECTION 18 -TIME FOR COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

A. The date of beginning and the time for completion of the work are essential conditions
of the Agreement and the work embraced shall be commenced on a date specified in the
Notice to Proceed.

B. The Vendor will proceed with the work at such rate of progress to ensure full completion
within the contract time. It is expressly understood and agreed, by and between the
Vendor and the City that the contract time for the completion of the work described herein
is a reasonable time, talcing into consideration the average climatic and economic
conditions and other factors prevailing in the locality of the work.

C. If the Vendor fails to complete the work within the Contract time or extension of time
granted by the City, then the Vendor may be required to pay to the City the amount of
$50 per day for liquidated damages for each calendar day that the Vendor shall be in
default after the time stipulated in the contract documents.

D. The Vendor shall not be charged with liquidated damages or any excess cost when the
delay in completion of the work is due to the following, and the Vendor has promptly
given written notice of such delay to the City:

1. To any preference, priority or allocation order duly issued by the City.

2. To unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of
the Vendors, including but not restricted to, Acts of God, or of the public enemy, acts
of the City, acts of another Contractor in the performance of a contract with the City,
fires, floods, epidemics/pandemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight
embargoes, and abnormal and unforeseeable weather, and

3. To any delays of subcontractors occasioned by any of the causes specified in
paragraphs (Dl and D2 above).



E. In the event that Vendor fails in any of its obligations under this Section, the City may
take one or more of the following actions to protect its interests:

1. Suspend the performance of the agreement until Vendor provides assurances that it
intends to adhere to the said Standards of Professional Conduct;

2. Terminate this Agreement upon giving three (3) days' written notice of Vendor's
failure to adhere to the terms of this Section;

3. Debar Vendor from future work for City for a period not less than six (6) months.
Vendor shall not circumvent debarment by performing such future work as a sub
consultant for another consultant; or

4. Pursue any other remedy available from a court of law or equity, including, but not
limited to, injunctive relief or monetary damages.

Vendor shall include in every subcontract identical language to this Section and Vendor shall be 
responsible for enforcing the terms of this Section against any of its subcontractors. Any 
violation of this Section by a subcontractor shall subject Vendor to the remedies available to City 
for Vendor's failure to adhere to the requirements of this Section. 

SECTION 19 M EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY, NONDISCRIMINATION, AND 
MINORJTY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE UTILIZATION 

A. The Vendor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment
because of race, color, handicap, age, religion, sex, or national origin. The Vendor will
take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are
treated during employment, without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading
demotion, or transfer; recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other
forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Vendor
agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for
employment, notices to be provided setting for the provisions of this nondiscrimination
clause.

B. The Vendor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on
behalf of the Contractor, state that ail qualified applicants will receive consideration for
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex or national origin.

C. The Vendor will send to each I abor union or representative of workers with which he has
a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be
provided by the Contract Compliance Officer advising the said labor union or workers'
representatives of the Contractor's commitment under this section, and shall post copies
of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for
employment.



D. The Vendor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24,
1985, and of the rules, regulations and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

E. The Vendor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246
of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor,
or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to their books, records and accounts by the
Department and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain
compliance with such rules, regulations and orders.

F. The Vendor will make affirmative efforts to utilize minority business enterprises for
suppliers and subcontractors and will document efforts made to the City.

SECTION 20 -TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT OF LOWER INCOME RESIDENTS OF 
PROJECT AREA 

A. The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of Section 3
of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 as amended, 12, U.S.C. 1701-u.
Section 3 requires that to the greatest extent feasible, opportunities for training and
employment be given to lower income residents of the project area and contracts for work
in connection with the project be awarded to business concerns which are located in, or
owned in substantial part by persons residing in the area of the project.

B. The parties to this contract will comply with the provisions of said Section 3 and the
regulations issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development
and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued hereunder prior to the
execution of this contract. The parties to this contract certify and agree that they are
under no contractual or other disability that would prevent them from complying with
these requirements.

SECTION21-PAYMENT 

A. The City shall pay the Vendor within 30 days but no later than 45 day of completion of
the project upon receipt of final invoice and certification of satisfactory completion by
the Department of Community Improvement Division.

SECTION 22 -GENERAL PROVISIONS 

This contract embodies all the representations, rights, duties and obligations of the parties, and 
any prior oral or written agreement not embodied herein shall not be binding upon or endure to 
the benefit of any of the parties. 



IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the Mayor is authorized to execute a contract and 

related documents with 3 Squares Venture, LLC. to demolish and remove remains of dilapidated 

structure, foundation, steps, driveway and/or cut grass, remove trash, debris, and clean curbside to 

remedy conditions for property located at 175 James St. Jackson, MS 39206, which has been 

deemed to be a menace to public health, safety, and welfare. 

IT IS FURTHER HEREBY ORDERED that a sum not to exceed $8,700.00 shall be paid 

to 175 James St for the services provided from funds budgeted for the Division. 



t. 

--

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 10 POINT DATA SHEET 08/28/25 

DATE 

POINTS COMMENTS 

Brief Description/Purpose 
ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT FOR THE DEMOLITION 
AND CLEANING OF PARCEL ON PRIVATE PROPERTY WHICH CONSTITUTE A MENACE 
TO PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE ACCORDING TO MISSISSIPPI CODE 
ANNOTATED SECTION 21-9-11. 

Public Policy Initiative 
1. Youth & Education 1. Neighborhood Enhancement
2. Crime Prevention 2. Crime Prevention
3. Changes in City Government 7. Quality of Life
4. Neighborhood Enhancement 
s. Economic Development 
6. Infrastructure and Transportation 
7. nualil\ ofLife 

Who will be affected 
All City of Jackson residents 

-

Benefits Cleaning of the private property will remove threats to the health, safety and welfare 
of surrounding residents while improving the condition of the community. -

Schedule (beginning date) 
To be determined pending execution of contract. 

Location: 
• WARD

\Vard3 
• CITYWIDE (yes or no) (area)

• Project limits if applicable

Action implemented by: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARlMENT
• City Department D 

COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT 

. Consultant D 

COST 
$8,700.00

Source of Funding 
• General Fund X General Fund: 

• Grant
001-444-70-6446

• Bond D 

• Other D 

EBO participation ABE -- % WAIVER yes_ no NIA --

MBE -- % WAIVER yes_ no N/A --
WBE - ¾ WA.lVER yes_ no N/A --
HEE % WAIVER yes_ no NIA --
NABE % WAIVER yes no NIA 

-

-



THE I.ITT OF 

JACKSON 
MISSISSIPPI 

Memo 

To: Horhn John, Mayor 

From: Anderson Von, Interim Director 

Department of Planning and Development 

Date: 08/28/2025 

Re: Agenda Item 

Toe attached agenda item is an order requesting that the Mayor execute a contract with Cornerstone 

Enterprises, LLC, for the demolition and cleaning of real property in the City of J ack:son declared 

to be a menace to public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Section 21-19-11 of Mississippi 

Code. 

Therefore, we respectfully request that you authorize the execution of a contract awarded to the 

said contractor for CE-24-194 7. 

Thank you for your prompt consideration in this matter. 



Office of the City Attorney 455 East Capitol Street 
Post Office Box 2779 
Jackson, Mississippi 39207-2779 
Telephone: (601) 960-1799 
Facsimile: (601) 9�0,.1756 

\7'.' 
�-

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 
�J\ 

·±t
This.ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF JACKSON AND 3 SQUARES VENTURES, LLC TO DEMOLISH A STRUCTURE, 
REMOVE FOUNDATION, STEPS, DRIVEWAY, CUT GRASS AND \\'EEDS, REMOVE TRASH 
AND DEBRIS, AND TO PERFORM OTHER WORK TO REMEDY THE CONDITIONS ON 
PRIVATE PROPERTY THAT CONSTITUTE A MENACE TO PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND 
WELFARE ACCORDING TO MISSISSIPPI CODE ANNOTATED SECTION 21-19-11 FOR CASE 
#CE-24-1947 LOCATED AT 175 JAMES ST. PARCEL #100-116- $8,700.00 is legally sufficient for 
placement in NOVUS Agenda. 

D�rtm, ;rytf!l-•--------
Sondra Moncure, Special Assistant'rl U!L 

///,l'J/.2..� 
Date 



CITY OF JA.CKSON, MISSISSIPPI 
Commun ity Imp rove me n t  Divisio n 

DEMOLITION CONTRACT 

TIDS AGREEMENT concerns the performance of work designed to remedy conditions on property which 
constitute a menace to public health, safety, and welfare and is made by the CITY OF JACKSON, MlSSlSSIPPI, 
hereinafter called the ("CITY"), and 3 Squares Ventures, LLC having its principal place of business at 555 Tombigbee 
Street Unit 103 Jackson Mississ· i 39201 and mailing address of 555 Tombii,,.bee Street Unit 103, Jackson, 
Mississippi 39201 hereinafter called the ("VENDOR"). 

WHEREAS, the City Council of Jackson, Mississippi authorized an agreement with Don Price on ____ , to 
remedy conditions which threaten public health, sa"fety, and welfare on Parcel Number 100-116 bearing the physical 
address of 175 James Street in the City of Jackson, Mississippi; and 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the use of contract labor to address the conditions on the subject parcel(s) 
serves the best interest of the City of Jackson; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Jackson solicited bids for performance of the work related to remedy the conditions on the 
subject parcel; and 

WHEREAS, the VENDOR is willing to perform the work for the City based on the bid submitted; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these promises and of the mutual covenants exchanged herein and �t forth, 
the City and VENDOR agree as follows: 

SECTION 1 - LABOR AND MATERIALS 
Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, supervision, and services necessary to do the work specified in the 
Scope of Work attached in Exhibit A and made a part hereof for the sum of 

8 700.00. 

SECTI ON 2 - N OTICE TO PROCEED

Vendor shall begin the work to be performed upon receipt of a written Notice to Proceed "NTP" (Exhibit B). The 
Vendor shall complete the work described in Exhibit A within thirty (30) c alendar days of receipt of the NTP set 
forth in Exhibit B and attached hereto and made a part hereof. The City of Jackson may extend the performance 
period due to the presence of inclement weather and resulting conditions, or those acts or occurrences beyond the 
reasonable contemplation of the parties at the time of execution of this Contract that materially alters the 
performance period upon which this Contract is based. The performance period may also be extended by the City 
of Jackson to afford vendor time to cure deficiencies in the wo� performed. The contract shall be deemed voidable 
ninety (90) days from the receipt of the writtenNTP if work has not been completed or at the discretion of the code 
enforcement officer. 

SECTION 3 - SPECIFICATIONS, CODES AND REGULATIONS 



r Vendor shall comply with all appropriate specifications, including the general conditions provided separately to 
the Vendor and codes referred to therein, as well as all applicable and controlling Federal, Mississippi State and 
municipal law and permit reasonable inspection of all work by authorized inspectors. 

SECTION 4 - INSURANCE 

In carrying out the work herein proposed, the Vendor will maintain, at a minimum, the following insurance 
coverage: 

A. Vendor shall, at its expense, carry General Liability Insurance, with maximum bodily injury coverage of not
less than $500,000 aggregate and $500,000 per occurrence, and property damage coverage of not less than
$500,000 aggregate and $500,000 per occurrence.

·· 

B. Vendor shall provide, at its expense, all applicable Mississippi Workman's Compensation insurance,
unemployment compensation insurance, sickness and disability and/or social security insurance, and will
comply with all local, state and federal laws and/or regulations relating to employment.

C. Vendor shall, at its expense, carry Automotive Public Liability Insurance, with maximum limits of not less
than $500,000 for one accident and Automotive Property Damage Insurance with maximum limits of not less
than $500,000 for one accident, to protect from all claims arising from the use of the following:

(1) Vendor's own automobiles, trucks and/or vehicles
(2) Hired automobiles, trucks and/or vehicles
(3) Automobiles, trucks and/or vehicles owned by subcontractors

The aforementioned is to cover use of automobiles, trucks and/or vehicles on and off the project sites. 

D. Vendor shall, at its expense, carry Owner's Protective Liability Insurance with the City of Jackson as a named
insured and their servants, agents and employees as additional insured in amount not less than $500,000 as
well as property damage liability coverage in the amount of $500,000 peroccurrence and $500,000 aggregate
for all damages arising out of injury to or destruction of property during the policy period.

E. Pollution Liability Insurance Coverage with limits equivalent to those stated for General Liability.

The Vendor shall carry all insurance as prescribed herein and all policies shall be with companies satisfactory
to the City. If a part of this contract is sublet, the Vendor shall require each Subcontractor to carry insurance
of the same kinds and in like amounts carried by the prime Vendor.

Certificates of insurance shall state that thirty (30) days written notice will be given, to the City before the
policy is canceled or changed. No Vendor or Sub-vendor will be allowed to start any work pertaining to the
Agreement until certificates of all insurance required herein are filed with and approved by the City. The
Certificates shall show the type, amount, class of operations covered, effective dates and dates of expiration
of policies.

SECTION 5 - ASBESTOS AND LEAD COMPLIANCE 

Vendor shall comply with the provisions of29 CFR Part 1926(OSHA), goveming the protection of workers 
disturbing lead painted surfaces. These provisions include, but are not limited to the following: 

l. The Vendor shall contact the City's inspector before disturbing any surfaces painted
with lead paint to document the content of lead on all painted surfaces to be disturbed.

2. The Vendor shall conduct air quality monitoring when appropriate for the type of activity to
determine the level of worker protection required by OSHA. If air quality monitoring results
exceed 30 ug/cu for an 8-hour period, the worker blood testing and monitoring requirements 
provided by OSHA shall apply. 



3. The Vendor shall provide personal protective equipment, including a respirator program, as is
appropriate to the type of job as required by OSHA

4. The Vendor shall provide proper containment of the work site and clean the work site not less than
daily to contain lead dust.

5. The Vendor shall make proper facilities available for worker hygiene when entering or exiting a work
area.

6. The Vendor shall provide for appropriate signage indicating the presence of a lead hazard when
conducting work activities.

_. 

7. The Vendor shall ensure that specialized cleaning of containment areas is complete before re­
occupancy by the occupant of the house. For activities that remove identified lead hazards, the
contractor shall ensure that specialized cleaning is adequate to meet clearance standards adopted by 
the Department of Housing and Urban Development, ("HUD") and the Mississippi Department of 
Health, (''MDH".) 

8. The Vendor shall comply with all relevant MS laws as well as 10 CFR 10.6.080, l 0 CFR 6.240, and
10 CFR 6.250, EPA regulations at 40 CFR Part 61 governing asbestos, and OSHA worker
protection regulations. 

9. The Vendor shall furnish documentation to the City upon execution of this agreement proving that
vendor is qualified to abate asbestos or has entered into a subcontract with an individual qualified to
perform asbestos abatement. If vendor subcontracts with an individual qualified to perform
asbestos abatement, then a copy of the subcontract and the subcontractor's asbestos abatement
qualifications must be provided.

10. The vendor shall provide demolition notification to the MDEQ ten (10) days before demolition
activity when asbestos is present.

SECTION 6 - PERMITS AND LICENSES 

The Vendor must obtain and pay for all permits and licenses necessary for the completion and execution of the 
work and labor to be performed. 

SECTION 7 - DEBRIS AND MATERIAL REMOVAL AND RESPONSIBILTY OF THE CONTRACTOR 

The Vendor shall keep· the premises clean and orderly during the course of the work and remove all debris as it 
accumulates. Materials and equipment that have been removed and replaced as part of the work shall belong to the 
Vendor, unless specified otherwise in the "Request for Quotes or Bids." The Vendor shall also dispose of demolition 
debris in compliance with State and Federal laws. Vendor shall provide the City with receipts obtained in the disposal 
of demolition debris and all other materials removed from site. In lieu of disposal receipts for salvageable materials, 
Vendor shall submit proof of recycling or appropriate storage for repu1posed materials. Vendors should provide a 
manifest for removal of tires. Tires must be dumped at a waste tire facility. 

In the event that the Vendor must e11gage in excavation of any kind, the Vendor shall comply with the MS Dig Law 
set forth in Section 77-13-1 to 77-13-37 of the Mississippi Code Before beginning any excavation, wtless otherwise 
provided in the MS Dig Law, the vendor shall provide not less than three (3) and not more than ten (10) working days' 
advance written, electronic, or telephonic notice of the commencement, extent, location and duration of the excavation 
work to Mississippi 811, Incorporated, so that Mississippi 811, Incorporated, operator(s) may locate and mark the 
location of underground utility lines and underground facilities in the excavation area. 

SECTION 8 - ASSIGNlvtENTS AND SUBCONTRACTS 

Neither party may assign all or any portion of this Agreement except for entering into a subcontract for abatement of 



asbestos witl1out tlle prior written consent of the oilier. Vendor is responsible for all work carried out by all sub­
vendors. 

Vendor shall not subcontract any part of tlie work to be performed under this contract to any member, officer or 
employee ofilie CITY or its designees or agents, members of the governing body of the CITY, any other public official 
of such locality who exercises any functions or responsibilities with respect to the Community Development Program 
giving rise to this contract during this or her tenure or for one year thereafter. 

SECTION 9 - SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Vendor binds itself, partners, successors, receivers, administrators, and assigns to the other party to this 
Agreement, and to the partners, successors, receivers, administrators, and assigns of each other party in respect of all 
of covenants this Agreement. 

SECTION 10 - NOTICES 

All notices, requests, demands, or other communications required by this Agreement, or desired to be given or made 
by either of the parties to the other hereto, shall be given or made by personal delivery or by mailing the same in a 
sealed envelope, postage prepaid, and addressed to the parties at their respective addresses set forth below or to such 
other address as may, from time to time, be designated by notice given in the manner provided in this Section. 

City of Jackson, Mississippi 
John Horhn, Mayor 
200 S. President Street 
Post Office Box 17 
Jackson, Mississippi 39205-0017 

3 Squares Ventures, LLC 
Don Price 
555 Tombigbee Street Uni1 103 
Jackson, Mississippi 39201 

SECTION 11 - DEFAULT AND TERMINATION PRIOR TO EXPIRATION OF TERM 

A. Defaults and Termination for Cause. If the Vendor (i) shall violate any substantial provision of this Agreement
or if (ii) any material adverse change shall take place in the financial condition of the Vendor which would
impair the Vendor's ability to perform its obligations hereunder, or (iii) should any of the Vendor's
representations made hereunder prove to be incorrect or misleading (each an "Event of Default"); then the
City may serve written notice upon the Vendor terminating this Agreement at a specified date, and this
Agreement shall terminate on such date. The Notice shall provide reasonable instructions to Vendor
concerning actions to be taken in order to affect the rescission or termination of the contract, and Vendor
agrees to abide the reasonable instructions. The termination of the agreement based on default does not
preclude or prohibit the City of Jackson from exercising any other remedy available to it at law or in equity.
Rescission or termination of the agreement is cumulative of other remedies available to the City of Jackson.

B. Termination for Convenience. The City, at any time, may terminate this Agreement without cause, in whole
or in part, solely for its own convenience. Any such termination shall be effected by delivering notice to the
Vendor. The Notice of Termination shall include reasonable instructions to the Contractor concerning actions
to be taken in insuring that the termination is effective. Vendor agrees to abide by the reasonable instructions
provided in the Notice of Termination. If termination is not for cause, the Vendor's remedies pursuant to the
provision of this agreement shall be limited to payment for services and work performed as of the date notice
of termination.

SECTION 12 - FEDERAL GRANTS 

In the event any federal grants or funding becomes available, ilie Vendor agrees to comply with such regulations or 
restrictions as may be required by the terms of such federal funding. 
SECTION 13 - GOVERNING LAW AND LEGAL REMEDIES 



This agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Mississippi. The Vendor expressly agrees that under no 
circumstances shall the CITY be obligated to pay attorney's fees or the cost oflegal action against the Vendor. 

SECTION 14 - INDEMNIFICATION 

The Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold CITY harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, liabilities, 
suits, judgments, injuries, costs, damages, losses, expenses, surcharges, fines, penalties, taxes, interests, assets and 
fees of every kind and nature whatsoever, including, without limitation, any of the foregoing, on account of death and 
injury to persons and losses of, or damage to, property, natural resources or the environment, including governmental 
and physician claims and creditor, reasonable attorney and other professional fees and- costs arising out of or in 
connection with or caused by, in any way, the negligence, willful misconduct of or breach of agreement by the Vendor, 
to the extent not otherwise contributed to by the act or negligence of any indemnified party. 

The CONTRACTOR further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the CITY for all penalties, fines and other 
obligations which may be imposed by regulatory agencies, including but not limited to, the Mississippi Department 
of Environmental Quality as a result of the Vendor's negligence or wrongful failure to perform. 

SECTION 15 - GUARANTY 

The Vendor shall guarantee all materials and equipment furnished and work performed for a period of one ( 1) year 
from the date of final inspection. The Vend or warrants and guarantees for a period of one ( l) year from the date of 
final inspection of the project that all completed systems are free from any and all effects due to faulty materials or 
workmanship and the Vendor shall promptly make such corrections as may be necessary by reason of such defects 
including the repairs of any damage to other parts of the system l"esulting from such defects. The CITY will give 
notice of observed defects with reasonable promptness. In the event that the Vendor should fail to make such repairs, 
adjustments, or other work that may be made necessary by such defects, the CITY may, after giving thirty (30) days' 
notice to the Vendor, do so and charge the Vendor the cost thereby incurred. The CITY will in no way, guarantee that 
any defects due to faulty materials or workmanship will be corrected. 

SECTION 16 - NO AGENCY 

The Vendor is an independent contractor providing services to the City and the employees, agents, and servants of the 
Vendor shall in no event be considered to be the employees, agents, or servants of the City. This Agreement is not 
intended to create an agency relationship between the Vendor and City. 

SECTION 17 - HEADINGS 

The headings used in this Agreement have been included solely for ease of reference and shall not be considered in 
the interpretation or construction of this Agreement. 

SECTION 18-TIME FOR COMPLETION AND LIUUIDATED DAMAGES 

A. The date of beginning and the time for completion of the work are essential conditions of the
Agreement and the work embraced shall be commenced on a date specified in the Notice to Proceed.

B. The Vendor will proceed with.the work at such rate of progress to insure full completion within the
contract time. It is expressly understood and agreed, by and between the Vendor and the CITY that
the contract time for the completion of the work described herein is a reasonable time, taking into
consideration the average climatic and economic conditions and other factors prevailing in the
locality of the work.

C. If the Vendor fails to complete the work within the Contract time or extension of time granted by
the CITY, then the Vendor may be required to pay to the City the amount of $50 per day for
liquidated damages for each calendar day that the Vendor shall be in default after the time stipulated
in the contract documents.



D. The Vendor shall not be charged with liquidated damages or any excess cost when the delay in
completion of the work is due to the following, and the Vendor has promptly given written notice
of such delay to the CITY:

I. To any preference, priority or allocation order duly issued by the CITY.

2. To unforeseeable causes beyond the control and·without the fault or negligence of the Vendors,
including but not restricted to, Acts of God, or of the public enemy, acts of the CITY, acts of
another Contractor in the performance of a contract with the CITY, fires, floods,
epidemics/pandemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, and abnormal and
unforeseeable weather, and

3. To any delays of subcontractors occasioned by.any of the causes specified in paragraphs (D1
and D2 above).

E. In the event that Vendor fails in any of its obligations under this Section, the CITY may take one or
more of the following actions to protect its interest.,;:

1. Suspend the perfonnance of the agreement until Vendor provides assurances that it intends
to adhere to the said Standards of Professional Conduct;

2. Terminate this Agreement upon giving three (3) days' written notice of Vendor's failure to
adhere to the terms of this Section;

3. Debar Vendor from future work for CITY for a period not less than six (6) months. Vendor
shall not circumvent debarment by performing such future work as a sub consultant for
another consultant; or

4. Pursue any other remedy available from a court oflaw or equity, including, but not limited
to, injunctive relief or monetary damages.

Vendor shall include in every subcontract identical language to this Section and Vendor sha11 be responsible for 
enforcing the terms of this Section against any of it,; subcontracto rs. Any violation of this Section by a subcontractor 
shall subject Vendor to the remedies available to CITY for Vendor's failure to adhere to the requirements of this 
Section. 

SECTION 19 - EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY. NONDISCRIMINATION, AND MINORITY 
BUSINESS ENTERPRISE UTILIZATION 

A. The Vendor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
handicap, age, religion, sex, or national origin. The Vendor will take affirmative action to ensure that
applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to race, color,
religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment,
upgrading demotion, or transfer; recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms
of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Vendor agrees to post in
conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting
for the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

B. The Vendor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor,
state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color,
religion, sex or national origin.

C. The Vendor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective
bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided by the Contract Compliance
Officer advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the Contractor's commitment under this



section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for 
employment. 

D. The Vendor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1985, and of the
rules, regulations and relevant orders of the Secretary ofLabor.

E. The Vendor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order· 11246 of September 24,
1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant·thereto, and will permit
access to their books, records and accounts by the Department and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of
investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations and orders.

F. The Vendor will make affirmative efforts to utilize minority business enterprises for suppliers and
subcontractors and will document efforts made to the City.

SECTION 20 - TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT OF LOWER INCOME RESIDENTS OF PROJECT AREA 

A. The work to be perfonned under this contract is subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and
Urban Development Act of 1968 as amended, 12, U.S.C. 1701-u. Section 3 requires that to the greatest extent
fea�ible, opportunities for training and employment be given to lower income residents of the project area
and contracts for work in connection with the project be awarded to business concerns which are located in,
or owned in substantial part by persons residing in the area of the project.

·B. The parties to this contract will comply with the provisions of said Section 3 and the regulations issued
pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development and all applicable rules and orders of 
the Department issued hereunder prior to the execution of this contract. The parties to this contract certify 
and agree that they are under no contractual or other disability that would prevent them from complying with 
these requirements. 

SECTION 21 - PAYMENT 

A. The City shall pay the Vendor within 30 days but no later than 45 day of completion of the project upon
receipt of final invoice and certification of satisfactory completion by the Department of Community
Improvement Division.

SECTION 22 - GENERAL PROVISIONS 

This contract embodies all the representations, rights, duties and obligations of the parties, and any prior oral or written 
agreement not embodied herein shall not be binding upon or endure to the benefit of any of the parties. 

SECTION 23 - ACCEPTANCE 

IN: WITNE"SS WHEREOF, the OWNER and the CONTRACTOR, acting herein by. their duly authorized 
representatives have hereunto set their hands this day and year first above written. 



VENDOR'S SIGNATURE 

Title 
---

Date Executed: 

THE CITY OF JACKSON 

By: 
John Horhn, Mayor 

Attested by; __________ _
City Clerk 

Date attested: 



Exhibit A 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Vendor shall perform the following work on the premises identified as Parcel #100-116 
bearing the physical address of 175 James Street legally described as LOT 4 BLK I 
HOMESTEAD HGTS SUBN PT 2 for Case #CE-24-1947: 

Demolish and remove remains of dilapidated structure removing foundation; remove trash, 
, debris, steps, tires, and any other items to ensure property b, clear and free of any and all health 
hazards; cut grass and weeds, and ensure property �ite is properly graded. 



THE C'lTY OF 

JACIC 
MISSISSlPPI 

Cit:, 11f ,Jackson Mi�sissippi PJatming and Development Department 
Community Improvement Division 

PO Box 17 
Jackson, MS '.l9205-0017 

NOTICE TO PROCEED 

DATE: September 11, 2015 

CASENO: CE-24-1947 

CONTRACTOR: Don Price 

J._fujuarcs Ventures LLC 

555 Tombi�.bee Sm;et llnit 103 

Jackson, MS 3920J 

LOCATION: 175 James Street 

MAJ> /PARCEL: 100-116 

SCOPE OF WORK: Demolish and remove remains of dilapidated structure removing foundation; remove trash, debris., 
steps, tires, and any other items to ensurl' property is dear aod free of any and all health hazards; cut grass and weeds, 
and ensure property site is properly graded. 

PRE-WORK INSPECTION PERFORMED DATE 

DATE ISSUED TO CONTRACTOR: ___ _ ISSUED BY: -----� 

CONTRACTOR OR REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE ____________ _ 

DATE RETURNED: ________ , RECIEVFJ> BY: _________ _ 
---

CONTRACTOR CHECK UST 
CODE E?'l"FORCEMENT OFFICER 

CHECKLIST 

COPY OF TfilS NOTICE TO PROCEED FINAL INSPECTION COMPLETED 

WORK COMPLETION MEMO PHOTOS 

TNVOJCJ.: MEMO 

DUMP RECEIPT (IF APPLICABLE) CONTRACT 

NTP AUTHORIZED BY: __________ _ DATE: ________ _ 

INSPECTED BY: DATE: ________ _ 

CAO; ___ _ DATE: _________ _ 

PAYMENT AUTHORIZED BY: 

QUOTE PRICE: 

• Contractor is responsible for callint 811 before demolition

DATE: ________ _ 

$8,700.00 

• Please call Donald Taylor al 601-906-3083 for gas to be disconnected.





( 





,'� 
ORDER AUlHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWE��C, 
CITY OF JACKSON AND SOCRATES GARRETT ENTERPRISES, INC., Tff�;',
DEMOLISH A STRUCTURE, FOUNDATION, STEPS, AND DRIVEWAY, TO CUT \�.
GRASS AND WEEDS, TO REMOVE TRASH AND DEBRIS, AND TO PERFORM ' .. ; 
OTHER WORK TO REMEDY THE CONDITIONS ON STATE-OWNED PROPERTY 
THAT CONSTITUTE A MENACE TO PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE 
ACCORDING TO MISSISSIPPI CODE ANNOTATED SECTION 21-19-11 FOR CASE 
#CE-21-1841 LOCATED AT 4935 SUNNYBROOK DR., PARCEL #822-152 $9,500.00 
(HORNE, ANDERSON) (WARD 4) 

WHEREAS, the State of Mississippi received 4935 Sunnybrook Dr. due to delinquent
taxes; and

WHEREAS, said property must be maintained and conditions that constitute a menace to
public health, safety, and welfare remedied; and

WHEREAS, on April 25, 2024, the State of Mississippi Public Lands Division issued a
Consent to Enter onto State-Owned Property to the City for the purpose of cleaning and
demolishing the improvement on the property at no cost to the Office of the Mississippi Secretary
of State for Case #CE-21-1841 located at Sunnybrook Dr. parcel #822-152 in Ward 4 of the City
of Jackson; and

WHEREAS, the Community Improvement Division of the Department of Planning and 
Development has a system in which vendors performing services related to the remedying of
conditions on property deemed to be a menace to public health, safety, and welfare submit bids;
and 

WHEREAS, Socrates Garrett Enterprises, Inc., submitted the lowest bid and through
Leland Socrates Garrett, agreed to demolish the structure, foundation, steps, and driveway, to cut
grass and weeds, to remove trash and debris, and to perform other work to remedy conditions
constituting a menace to public health, safety, and welfare on the parcel located at 4935
Sunnybrook Dr. for the sum of $9,500.00; and 

WHEREAS, Socrates Garrett Enterprises, Inc. has a principal office address of 2659
Livingston Rd., Jackson, MS 39213, and is in good standing to do business in this state, according
to the information on the Mississippi Secretary of State's website; and

WHEREAS, the proposed contract contains the following provisions:

SECTION I - LABOR AND MATERIALS 

Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, supervision, and services necessary to do the work
specified in the Scope of Work attached in Exhibit A and made a part hereof for the sum of
$9,500.00. 

SECTION 2 - NOTICE TO PROCEED

Agenda Item No.:,_�
---

­
October 21, 2025 

Teeuwisseen, Horhn



Vendor shall begin the work to be performed upon receipt of a written Notice to Proceed "NTP" 
(Exhibit B). The Vendor shall complete the work described in Exhibit A within thirty (30) calendar 
days of receipt of the NTP set forth in Exhibit B and attached hereto and made a part hereof. The 
City of Jackson may extend the performance period due to the presence of inclement weather and 
resulting conditions, or those acts or occurrences beyond the reasonable contemplation of the 
parties at the time of execution of this Contract that materially alters the performance period upon 
which this Contract is based. The performance period may also be extended by the City of Jackson 
to afford vendor time to cure deficiencies in the work performed. The contract shall be deemed 
voidable ninety (90) days from the receipt of the written NTP if work has not been completed or 
at the discretion of the code enforcement officer. 

SECTION 3- SPECIFICATIONS, CODES AND REGULATIONS 

Vendor shall comply with all appropriate specifications, including the general conditions provided 
separately to the Vendor and codes referred to therein, as well as all applicable and controlling 
Federal, Mississippi State and municipal law and permit reasonable inspection of all work by 
authorized inspectors 

SECTION 4 - INSURANCE 

In carrying out the work herein proposed, the Vendor will maintain, at a minimum, the following 
insurance coverage: 

A. Vendor shall, at its expense, carry General Liability Insurance, with maximum bodHy
injury coverage of not less than $500,000 aggregate and $500,000 per occurrence, and property
damage coverage of not less than $500,000 aggregate and $500,000 per occurrence.

B. Vendor shall provide, at its expense, all applicable Mississippi Workman's Compensation
insurance, unemployment compensation insurance, sickness and disability and/or social security
insurance, and will comply V\rith all local, state and federal laws and/or regulations relating to
employment.

C. Vendor shall, at its expense, carry Automotive Public Liability Insurance, with maximum
limits of not less than $500,000 for one accident and Automotive Property Damage Insurance with
maximum limits of not less than $500,000 for one accident, to protect from all claims arising from
the use of the following:



(1) Vendor's own automobiles, trucks and/or vehicles

(2) Hired automobiles, trucks and/or vehicles

(3) Automobiles, trucks and/or vehicles owned by subcontractors

The aforementioned is to cover use of automobiles, trucks and/or vehicles on and off the project 
sites. 

D. Vendor shall, at its expense, carry Owner's Protective Liability Insurance with the City of
Jackson as a named insured and their servants, agents and employees as additional insured in
amount not less than $500,000 as well as property damage liability coverage in the amount of
$500,000 per occurrence and $500,000 aggregate for all damages arising out of injury to or
destruction of property during the policy period.

E. Pollution Liability Insurance Coverage with limits equivalent to those stated for General
Liability.

The Vendor shall carry all insurance as prescribed herein and all policies shall be with companies 
satisfactory to the City. If a part of this contract is sublet, the Vendor shall require each 
Subcontractor to carry insurance of the same kinds and in like amounts carried by the prime 
Vendor. 

Certificates of insurance shall state that thirty (30) days written notice will be given to the City 
before the policy is canceled or changed. No Vendor or Sub-vendor will be allowed to start any 
work pet1aining to the Agreement until certificates of all insurance required herein are filed with 
and approved by the City. The Certificates shall show the type, amount, class of operations 
covered, effective dates and dates of expiration of policies. 

SECTION 5 -ASBESTOS AND LEAD COMPLIANCE 

Vendor shall comply with the provisions of 29 CFR Part 1926(OSHA), governing the protection 
of workers disturbing lead painted surfaces. These provisions include, but are not limited to the 
following: 

1. The Vendor shall contact the City's inspector before disturbing any surfaces painted with
lead paint to document the content of lead on alJ painted surfaces to be disturbed.



2. The Vendor shall conduct air quality monitoring when appropriate for the type of activity
to deter mine the level of worker protection r equired by OSHA. If air quality monitoring results

exceed 30 ug/cu for an 8-hour period, the worker blood testing and monitoring requirements
provided by OSHA shall apply.

3. The Vendor shall provide personal protective equipment, including a respirator program,
as is appropriate to the type of job as required by OSHA.

4. The Vendor shall provide proper containment of the work sit e and clean the work site not
less than daily to contain lead dust.

5. The Vendor shall make proper facilities available for worker hygiene when entering or
exiting a work area.

6. The Vendor shall provide for appropriate signage indicating the presence of a lead hazard
when conducting work activities.

7. The Vendor shall ensure that specialized cleaning of containment areas is complete before
re-occupancy by the occupant of the house. For activities that remove identified lead hazards, the
contractor shall ensure that specialized cleaning is adequate to meet clearance standards adopted
by the Department of Housing and Urban Development, ("HUD") and the Mississippi Department
of Health, ("MDH".)

8. The Vendor shall comply with all relevant MS laws as well as 10 CFR 10.6.080, IO CFR
6.240, and 10 CFR 6.250, EPA regulations at 40 CFR Part 61 governing asbestos, and OSHA
worker protection regulations.

9. The Vendor shall furnish documentation to the City upon execution of this agreement
proving that vendor is qua lified to abate asbestos or has entered into a subcontract with an
individual qualified to perform asbestos abatement. If vendor subcontracts with an individual
qualified to perform asbestos abatement, then a copy of the subcontract and the subcontractor's

asbestos abatement qualifications must be provided.

10. The vendor shall provide demolition notification to the MDEQ ten (10) days before

demolition activity when asbestos is present.



r SECTION 6 - PERMITS AND LICENSES 

The Vendor must obtain and pay for all permits and licenses necessary for the completion and 
execution of the work and labor to be performed. 

SECTION 7 - DEBRIS AND MATERIAL REMOVAL AND RESPONSIBILITY OF THE 
CONTRACTOR 

The Vendor shall keep the premises clean and orderly during the course of the work and remove 
all debris as it accwnulates. Materials and equipment that have been removed and replaced as part 
of the work shall belong to the Vendor, unless specified otherwise in the "Request for Quotes or 
Bids." The Vendor shall also dispose of demolition debris in compliance with State and Federal 
laws. Vendor shall provide the City with receipts obtained in the disposal of demolition debris 
and all other materials removed from site. In lieu of disposal receipts for salvageable materials, 
Vendor shall submit proof of recycling or appropriate storage for repurposed materials. Vendors 
should provide a manifest for removal of tires. Tires must be dumped at a waste tire facility. 

In the event that the Vendor must engage in excavation of any kind, the Vendor shall comply with 
the MS Dig Law set forth in Section 77-13-1 to 77-13-37 of the Mississippi Code Before beginning 
any excavation, unless otherwise provided in the MS Dig Law, the vendor shall provide not less 
than three (3) and not more than ten (10) working days' advance written, electronic, or telephonic 
notice of the commencement, extent, location and duration of the excavation work to Mississippi 
811, Incorporated, so that Mississippi 811, Incorporated, operator( s) may locate and mark the 
location of underground utility lines and underground facilities in the excavation area. 

SECTION 8 - ASSIGNMENTS AND SUBCONTRACTS 

Neither party may assign all or any portion of this Agreement except for entering into a subcontract 
for abatement of asbestos without the prior written consent of the other. Vendor is responsible for 
all work carried out by all sub-vendors. 

Vendor shall not subcontract any part of the work to be performed under this contract to any 
member, officer or employee of the City or its designees or agents, members of the governing body 
of the City, any other pub! ic official of such locality who exercises any functions or responsibilities 
with respect to the Community Development Program giving rise to this contract during this or 
her tenure or for one year thereafter 

SECTION 9- SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Vendor binds itself, partners, successors, receivers, administrators, and assigns to the other 
party to this Agreement, and to the partners, successors, receivers, administrators, and assigns of 
each other party in respect of all of covenants this Agreement. 



SECTION IO - NOTlCES 

All notices, requests, demands, or other communications required by this Agreement, or desired 
to be given or made by either of the parties to the other hereto, shall be given or made by personal 
delivery or by mailing the same in a sealed envelope, postage prepaid, and addressed to the parties 
at their respective addresses set forth below or to such other address as may, from time to time, be 
designated by notice given in the manner provided in this Section. 

City of Jack5on, Mississippi 
John Horhn, Mayor 
200 S. President Street 
Post Office Box 17 
Jackson, Mississippi 39205-0017 

Socrates Garrett Enterprises, LLC 
Leland Socrates Garrett 
2659 Livingston Rd. 
Jackson, MS 39213 

SECTION 11 - DEFAULT AND TERMINATION PRIOR TO EXPIRATION OF TERM 

Defaults and Termination for Cause. 

If the Vendor (i) shall violate any substantial provision of this Agreement or if (ii) any material 
adverse change shall take place in the financial condition of the Vendor which would impair the 
Vendor's ability to perform its obligations hereunder, or (iii) should any of the Vendor's 
representations made hereunder prove to be incorrect or misleading (each an "Event of Default"); 
then the City may serve written notice upon the Vendor terminating this Agreement at a specified 
date, and this Agreement shall terminate on such date. The Notice shall provide reasonable 
instructions to Vendor concerning actions to be taken in order to affect the rescission or termination 
of the contract, and Vendor agrees to abide the reasonable instructions. The termination of the 
agreement based on default does not preclude or prohibit the City of Jackson from exercising any 
other remedy available to it at law or in equity. Rescission or termination of the agreement is 
cumulative of other remedies available to the City of Jackson. 

Termination for Convenience. 

The City, at any time, may terminate this Agreement without cause, in whole or in part, solely for 
its own convenience. Any such termination shall be affected by delivering notice to the Vendor. 
The Notice of Termination shall include reasonable instructions to the Contractor concerning 
actions to be taken in insuring that the termination is effective. Vendor agrees to abide by the 
reasonable instructions provided in the Notice of Termination. If termination is not for cause, the 
Vendor's remedies pursuant to the provision of this agreement shall be limited to payment for 
services and work performed as of the date notice of termination. 

SECTION 12 � FEDERAL GRANTS 

In the event any federal grants or funding becomes available, the Vendor agrees to comply with 
such regulations or restrictions as may be required by the terms of such federal funding. 

SECTION 13 - GOVERNING LAW AND LEGAL REMEDIES 



r This agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Mississippi. The Vendor expressly 
agrees that under no circumstances shall the CITY be obligated to pay attorney's fees or the cost 
of legal action against the Vendor. 

SECTION 14-INDEMNIFICATION 

The Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold City harmless from and against any and all claims, 
demands, liabilities, suits, judgments, injuries, costs, damages, losses, expenses, surcharges, fines, 
penalties, taxes, interests, assets and fees of every kind and nature whatsoever, inciuding, without 
limitation, any of the foregoing, on account of death and injury to persons and losses of, or damage 
to, property, natural resources or the environment, including governmental and physician claims 
and creditor, reasonable attorney and other professional fees and costs arising out of or in 
connection with or caused by, in any way, the negligence, willful misconduct of or breach of 
agreement by the Vendor, to the extent not otherwise contributed to by the act or negligence of 
any indemnified party. 

The Contractor further agrees to indemnify and hold harn1less the City for all penalties, fines and 
other obligations which may be imposed by regulatory agencies, including but not limited to, the 
Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality as a result of the Vendor's negligence or 
wrongful failure to perform. 

SECTION 15 -GUARANTY 

The Vendor shall guarantee all materials and equipment furnished and work performed for a period 
of one (1) year from the date of final inspection. The Vendor warrants and guarantees for a period 
of one (I) year from the date of final inspection of the project that all completed systems are free 
from any and all effects due to faulty materials or workmanship and the Vendor shall promptly 
make such corrections as may be necessary by reason of such defects including the repairs of any 
damage to other parts of the system resulting from such defects. The City wil1 give notice of 
observed defects with reasonable promptness. In the event that the Vendor should fail to make 
such repairs, adjustments, or other work that may be made necessary by such defects, the City 
may, after giving thirty (30) days' notice to the Vendor, do so and charge the Vendor the cost 
thereby incurred. The City will in no way, guarantee that any defects due to faulty materials or 
workmanship will be corrected. 

SECTION 16 - NO AGENCY 

The Vendor is an independent contractor providing services to the City and the employees, agents, 
and servants of the Vendor shall in no event be considered to be the employees, agents, or servants 
of the City. This Agreement is not intended to create an agency relationship between the Vendor 
and City. 

SECTION 17 - HEADINGS 

The headings used in this Agreement have been included solely for ease of reference and shall not 
be considered in the interpretation or construction of this Agreement. 



SECTION 18 -TIME FOR COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

The date of beginning and the time for completion of the work are essential conditions of the 
Agreement and the work embraced shall be commenced on a date specified in the Notice to 
Proceed. 

The Vendor will proceed with the work at such rate of progress to ensure full completion within 
the contract time. It is expressly understood and agreed, by and between the Vendor and the City 
that the contract time for the completion of the work described herein is a reasonable time, taking 
into consideration the average climatic and economic conditions and other factors prevailing in the 
locality of the work. 

If the Vendor fails to complete the work within the Contract time or extension of time granted by 
the City, then the Vendor may be required to pay to the City the amount of $50 per day for 
liquidated damages for each calendar day that the Vendor shall be in default after the time 
stipulated in the contract documents. 

The Vendor shall not be charged with liquidated damages or any excess cost when the delay in 
completion of the work is due to the following, and the Vendor has promptly given written notice 
of such delay to the City: 

To any preference, priority or allocation order duly issued by the City. 

To unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Vendors, 
including but not restricted to, Acts of God, or of the public enemy, acts of the City, acts of another 
Contractor in the performance of a contract with the City, fires, floods, epidemics/pandemics, 
quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, and abnormal and unforeseeable weather, and 

To any delays of subcontractors occasioned by any of the causes specified in paragraphs (D 1 and 
D2 above). 

In the event that Vendor fails in any of its obligations under this Section, the City may take one or 
more of the following actions to protect its interests: 

Suspend the performance of the agreement until Vendor provides assurances that it intends to 
adhere to the said Standards of Professional Conduct; 

Tenninate this Agreement upon giving three (3) days' written notice of Vendor's failure to adhere 
to the terms of this Section; 

Debar Vendor from future work for City for a period not less than six (6) months. Vendor shall 
not circumvent debarment by performing such future work as a sub consultant for another 
consultant; or 

Pursue any other remedy available from a court of law or equity, including, but not limited to, 
injunctive relief or monetary damages. 



r Vendor shall include in every subcontract identical language to this Section and Vendor shall be 
responsible for enforcing the terms of this Section against any of its subcontractors. Any violation 
of this Section by a subcontractor shall subject Vendor to the remedies available to City for 
Vendor's failure to adhere to the requirements of this Section. 

SECTION 19 - EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY, NONDISCRIMINATION, AND 
MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE UTILIZATION 

The Vendor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of 
race, color, handicap, age, religion, sex, or national origin. The Vendor will take affirmative action 
to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without 
regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited 
to the following: employment, upgrading demotion, or transfer; recruitment advertising; layoff or 
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship. The Vendor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting for the provisions of this 
nondiscrimination clause. 

The Vendor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the 
Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without 
regard to race, color, religion, sex or national origin. 

The Vendor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a 
collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided by the 
Contract Compliance Officer advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the 
Contractor's commitment under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous 
places available to employees and applicants for employment. 

The Vendor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1985, and 
of the rules, regulations and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

The Vendor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of 
September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant 
thereto, and will permit access to their books, records and accounts by the Department and the 
Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, 
regulations and orders. 

The Vendor will make affirmative efforts to utilize minority business enterprises for suppliers and 
subcontractors and will document efforts made to the City. 

SECTION 20 - TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT OF LOWER INCOME RESIDENTS OF 
PROJECT AREA 



The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the 
Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 as amended, 12, U.S.C. 1701-u. Section 3 requires 
that to the greatest extent feasible, opportunities for training and employment be given to lower 
income residents of the project area and contracts for work in connection with the project be 
awarded to business concerns which are located in, or owned in substantial part by persons residing 
in the area of the project. 

The parties to this contract will comply with the provisions of said Section 3 and the regulations 
issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development and all applicable 
rules and orders of the Department issued hereunder prior to the execution of this contract. The 
parties to this contract certify and agree that they are under no contractual or other disability that 
would prevent them from complying with these requirements. 

SECTION21-PAYMENT 

The City shall pay the Vendor within 30 days but no later than 45 day of completion of the project 
upon receipt of final invoice and certification of satisfactory completion by the Department of 
Community Improvement Division. 

SECTION 22 - GENERAL PROVISIONS 

This contract embodies all the representations, rights, duties and obligations of the parties, and any 
prior oral or written agreement not embodied herein shall not be binding upon or endure to the 
benefit of any of the parties. 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the Mayor be authorized to execute a contract 
with Socrates Garrett Enterprises, Inc. to demolish the structure, foundation, and, cut grass and 
weeds, to remove trash and debris, and to perform work to remedy the other conditions on the 
property located at 4935 Sunnybrook Dr. Jackson, MS 39209 deemed to be a menace to public 
health, safety, and welfare. 

IT IS FURTHER HEREBY ORDERED that a sum not to exceed $9,500.00 shall be paid 
to Socrates Garrett Enterprises Enterprises, Inc. for the services provided from funds budgeted for 
the Division. 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 10 POINT DA TA SHEET 09/22/2025 

DATE 



POINTS 
1. Brief Description/Purpose

2. Public Policy Initiative
1. Youth & Education
2. Crime Prevention
3. Changes in City Government
4. Neighborhood Enhancement
s. Economic Development
6. Infrastnu:ture and

Transportation
7. Oualit}' of Life

3. Who will be affected

4. Benefits

s. Schedule (beginning date)

6. Location:
. WARD 

. CITYWIDE (yes or no) (ai-ea) 

• Project limits if applicable

7, Action implemented by: 
. City Department 

D 
. Consultant 

I 
8. COST

9. Source ofl•unding
• General Fund
. Grant
. Bond D 
. Other D 

D 

10. EBO participation

COMMENTS 
This item provides for th 
Council. The Order is as 

e remedying of conditions for case adjudicated a menace by the City 
king that the Mayor be authorized lo execute a contract for the completion 
ic health, safety and welfare. of work to imErove publ 

I. Neighborhood Enhancement
2. tionCrime l'rcvcn 
7. Quality of Life

ents. All City of Jackson resid 

roperty will remove threats to the health, safety and welfare of surrounding Cleaning of tile private p 
g the condition of the community. residents while improvin 

g execution of contract. To be determined pendin 

Ward4 

PLANNING AND DEVE LOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
MENT DIVISION COMMUNITY IMPROVE 

I $9,soo.oo 

I 
General Funding 
(001-444-70-6446) 

ABE 
---

AABE 
-

WBE 
HBE 

NABE 
--

THE CllY OF 

'¾ 0 WAIVER 
% WAIVER 
% WAIVER 
% WAIVER 
% WAIVER 

M SSISSIPPI 

--

yes_ no NIA --

yes_ no NIA 
--

yes_ no 
-

NIA 
--

yes_ no 
-

NIA --

yes_ no NIA 

,_ 

-



Memo 
To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

John Horne, Mayor 

Anderson Von, Interim Director 

Department of Planning and Development 

9/25/2025 

Agenda Item 

The attached agenda item is an Order requesting that the Mayor execute a contract with Socrates Garrett 
Enterprise, LLC for the demolition and removal of structure, foundation, steps, and driveway; cut grass and 
weeds; remove trash and debris for certain parcels of real property in the City of Jackson declared to be a 
menace to public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Section 21-19-11 of Mississippi Code. 

Therefore, we respectfully request that you authorize the execution of contract and related documents for 
project selected and awarded to the said contractor for the following case #CE-21-1841. 

Thank you for your prompt consideration in this matter. 



Office of the City Attorney 455 East Capitol Street 
Post Office Box 2779 
Jackson, Mississippi 39207-2779 
Telephone: (601) 960-1799 
Facsimile: (601) 960-1756 

-.�:-

• ... · 9�.
" �� 

"'-�-' ��<' 

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTO�EY \_·,.,_,'c1:-)_

This ORDER AUTIIORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF JACKSON AND SOCRATES GARRETT ENTERPRISES, INC., TO DEMOLISH A 
STRUCTURE, FOUNDATION, STEPS AND DRIVEWAY, TO CUT GRASS AND WEEDS, TO 
REMOVE TRASH AND DEBRIS, AND TO PERFORM OTHER WORK TO REMEDY THE 
CONDITIONS ON ST A TE-OWNED PROPERTY THAT CONSTITUTE A MENACE TO PUBLIC 
HEALffl, SAFETY, AND WELFARE ACCORDING TO MISSISSIPPI CODE ANNOTATED 
SECTION 21-19-11 FOR CASE #CE-21-1841 LOCATED AT 493S SUNNYBROOKDR., -PARCEL 
#822-152 - $9,500.00 is legally sufficient for placement in NOVUS Agenda. 

Drew Martin, City Attorney 
Sondra Moncure, Special Assistant • Ull.



CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 
Com munity Improvement Divi s i o n  

DEMOLITION CONTRACT 

THIS AGREEMENT concerns the perfonnance of work designed to remedy conditions on property which 
constitute a menace to public health, safety, and welfare and is made by the CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI, 
hereinafter called the ("CITY"), and Socrates Garrett Entemrises, Inc. having its principal place of business at 2659 

Livin)!Ston Road, Jackson, Mississippi 39213 and mailing address of 2659 Livin11ston Road. Jackson Mississippi 
39213 hereinafter called the ("VENDOR"). 

WHEREAS, the City Council of Jackson, Mississippi authorized an agreement with Leland Socrates Garrett on 
, to remedy conditions which threaten public health, safety, and welfare on Parcel Number 822-152 

bearing the physical address of 4935 Sunnybrook Drive in the City of Jackson, Mississippi; and 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the use of contract labor to address the conditions on the subject parcel(s) 
serves the best interest of the City of Jackson; and 

WHEREAS, the City ofJackson solicited bids for perfonnance of the work related to remedy the conditions on the 
subject parcel; and 

WHEREAS, the VENDOR is willing to perfonn the work for the City based on the bid submitted; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these promises and of the mutual covenants exchanged herein and set forth, 
the City and VENDOR agree as follows; 

SECTION l - LABOR AND MATERIALS 

Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, supervision, and services necessary to do the work specified in the 
Scope of Work attached in Exhibit A and made a part hereof for 1he sum of 

$9,500.00. 

SECTION 2 - NOTICE TO PROCEED 

Vendor shall begin the work to be performed upon receipt of a written Notice to Proceed "NTP" (Exhibit B). The 
Vendor shall complete the work described in Exhibit A within thirty (30) calendar days ofreceipt of the NTP set 
forth in Exhibit B and attached hereto and made a part hereof. The City of Jackson may extend the performance 
period due to the presence of inclement weather and resulting conditions, or those acts or occurrences beyond the 
reasonable contemplation of the parties at the time of execution of this Contract that materially alters the 
perforn1ance period upon which this Contract is based. The performance period may also be extended by the City 
of Jackson to afford vendor time to cure deficiencies in the work perfonned. The contract shall be deemed voidable 
ninety (90) days from the receipt of the written NTP if work has not been completed or at the discretion of the code 
enforcement officer. 

SECTION 3 - SPECIFICATIONS, CODES AND REGULATIONS 



Vendor shall comply with all appropriate specifications, including the general conditions provided separately to 
the Vendor and codes referred to therein, as well as all applicable and controlling Federal, Mississippi State and 
municipal Jaw and permit reasonable inspection of all work by authorized inspectors. 

SECTION 4 - INSURANCE 

In carrying out the work herein proposed, the Vendor will maintain, at a minimum, the following insurance 
coverage: 

A. Vendor shall, at its expense, carry General Liability Insurance, with maximum bodily injury coverage ofnot
less than $500,000 aggregate and $500,000 per occurrence, and property damage coverage of not less than
$500,000 aggregate and $500,000 per occurrence.

B. Vendor shall provide, at its expense, all applicable Mississippi Workman's Compensation insurance,
unemployment compensation insurance, sickness and disability and/or social security insurance, and will
comply with all local, state and federal laws and/or regulations relating to employment.

C. Vendor shall, at its expense, carry Automotive Public Liability Insurance, with maximum limits of not less
than $500,000 for one accident and Automotive Property Damage Insurance with maximum limits ofnot less
than $500,000 for one accident, to protect from all claims arising from the use of the following:

(I) Vendor's own automobiles, trucks and/or vehicles
(2) Hired automobiles, trucks and/or vehicles
(3) Automobiles, trucks and/or vehicles owned by subcontractors

The aforementioned is to cover use of automobiles, trucks and/or vehicles on and off the project sites. 

D. Vendor shall, at its expense, carry Owner's Protective Liability Insurance with the City of Jackson as a named
insured and their servants, agents and employees as additional insured in amount not less than $500,000 as
well as property damage liability coverage in the amount of$500,000 per occmrence and $500,000 aggregate
for all damages arising out of injury to or destruction of property during the policy period.

E. Pollution Liability Insurance Coverage with limits equivalent to those stated for General Liability.

The Vendor shall carry all insurance as prescribed herein and all policies shall be with companies satisfactory
to the City. If a part of this contract is sublet, the Vend or .shall r.equir.e each Subcontractor to carry insurance
of the same kinds and in like amounts carried by the prime Vendor.

Certificates of insurance shall state that thirty (30) days written notice will be given to the City before the
policy is canceled or changed. No Vendor or Sub•vendor will be allowed to start any work pertaining to the
Agreement until certificates of all insurance required herein are filed with and approved by the City. The
Certificates shall show the type, amount. class of operations covered, effective dates and dates of expiration
of policies.

SECTION 5 -ASBESTOS AND LEAD COMPLIANCE 

Vendor shall comply with the provisions of29 CFR Part 1926(OSHA), governing the protection of workers 
disturbing lead painted surfaces. These provisions include, but are not limited to the following: 

I. The Vendor shalt contact the City's inspector before disturbing any surfaces painted
with lead paint to document the content of lead on all painted surfaces to be disturbed.

2. The Vendor shall conduct air quality monitoring when appropriate for the type of activity to
determine the level of worker protection required by OSHA. lf air quality monitoring results
exceed 30 ug/cu for an 8-hour period, the worker blood testing and monitoring requirements 
provided by OSHA shall apply. 



3. The Vendor sha11 provide persona] protective equipment, including a respirator program, as is
appropriate to the type of job as required by OSHA.

4. The Vendor shall provide proper containment of the work site and clean the work site not less than
daily to contain lead dust.

5. The Vendor shall make proper facilities available for worker hygiene when entering or exiting a work
area.

6. The Vendor shall provide for appropriate signage indicating the presence ofa lead hazard when
conducting work activities.

7. The Vendor shall ensure that specialized cleaning of containment areas is complete before re­
occupancy by the occupant of the house. For activities that remove identified lead hazards, the
contractor shall ensure that specialized cleaning is adequate to meet clearance standards adopted by 
the Department of Housing and Urban Development, ("HUD") and the Mississippi Department of 
Health, ("MDH".) 

8. The Vendor shall comply with all relevant MS Jaws as well as 10 CFR 10.6.080, 10 CFR 6.240, and
10 CFR 6.250, EPA regulations at 40 CFR Part 61 governing asbestos, and OSHA worker
protection regulations. 

9. The Vendor shall furnish documentation to the City upon execution of this agreement proving that
vendor is qualified to abate asbestos or has entered into a subcontract with an individual qualified to
perform asbestos abatement. lf vendor subcontracts with an individual qualified to perform
asbestos abatement, then a copy of the subcontract and the subcontractor's asbestos abatement
qualifications must be provided.

I 0. The vendor shall provide demolition notification to the MDEQ ten ( 10) days before demolition 
activity when asbestos is present. 

SECTION 6 - PERMITS AND LICENSES 

The Vendor must obtain and pay for all permits and licenses necessary for the completion and execution of the 
work and labor to be perfonned. 

SECTION 7 -DEBRIS AND MATERIAL REMOVAL AND RESPONSIBILTY OF THE CONTRACTOR 

The Vendor shall keep the premises clean and orderly during the course of the work and remove all debris as it 
accumulates. Materials and equipment that have been removed and replaced as part of the work shall belong to the 
Vendor, unless specified otherwise in the "Request for Quotes or Bids." The Vendor shall also dispose of demolition 
debris in compliance with State and Federal laws. Vendor shall provide the City with receipts obtained in the disposal 
of demolition debris and all other materials removed from site. Jn lieu of dfaposal receipts for salvageable materials, 
Vendor shall submit proof of recycling or appropriate storage for repurposed materials. Vendors should provide a 
manifest for removal of tires. Tires must be dumped at a waste tire facility. 

In the event that the Vendor mu st engage in excavation of any kind, the Vendor shall comply with the MS Dig Law 
set forth in Section 77-13-1 to 77-13-37 of the Mississippi Code Before beginning any excavation, unless otherwise 
provided in the MS Dig Law, the vendor shall provide not Jess than three (3) and not more than ten ( 10) working days' 
advance written, electronic, or telephonic notice of the commencement, extent, location and duration of the excavation 
work to Mississippi 811, Incorporated, so that Mississippi 811, Incorporated, operator(s) may locate and mark the 
location of underground utility lines and underground facilities in the excavation area. 

SECTION 8 - ASSIGNMENTS AND SUBCONTRACTS 

Neither party may assign all or any portion of this Agreement except for entering into a subcontract for abatement of 



r asbestos without the prior written consent of the other. Vendor is responsible for all work carried out by all sub­
vendors. 

Vendor shall not subcontract any part of the work to be performed under this contract to any member, officer or 
employee of the CITY or its designees or agents, members of the governing body of the CITY, any other public official 
of such locality who exercises any functions or responsibilities with respect to the Community Development Program 
giving rise to this contract during this or her tenure or for one year thereafter. 

SECTION 9 - SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Vendor binds itself, partners, successors, receivers, administrators, and assigns to the other party to this 
Agreement, and to the partners, successors, receivers, administrators, and assigns of each other party in respect of all 
of covenants this Agreement. 

SECTION 10- NOTICES 

All notices, requests, demands, or other communications required by this Agreement, or desired to be given or made 
by either of the parties to the other hereto, shall be given or made by personal delivery or by mailing the same i n  a 
sealed envelope, postage prepaid, and addressed to the parties at their respective addresses set forth below or to such 
other address as may, from time to time, be designated by notice given in the manner provided in this Section. 

City of Jackson. Mississippi 
John Horhn, Mayor 
200 S. President Street 
Post Office Box 17 
Jackson, Mississippi 39205-0017 

Socrates Garrett Enterprises, Inc 
Leland Socrates Garrett 
2659 Livingston Road 
Jackson, Mississippi 39213 

SECTION 11 -DEFAULT AND TERMINATION PRIOR TO EXPIRATION OF TERM 

A. Defaults and Termination for Cause. If the Vendor (i) shall violate any substantial provision of this Agreement
or if (ii) any material adverse change shall take place in the financial condition of the Vendor which would
impair the Vendor's ability to perfonn its obligations hereunder, or (iii) should any of the Vendor's
representations made hereunder prove to be incorrect or roisleading (,each an "Event of Default"); then the
City may serve written notice upon the Vendor terminating this Agreement at a specified date, and this
Agreement shall t.enninate on such date. The Notice shall pc-0\/ide reasonable instructions to Vendor
concerning actions to be taken in order to affect the rescission or tennination of the contract, and Vendor
agrees to abide the reasonable instructions. The t ermination of the agreement based on default does not
preclude or prohibit the City of Jackson from exercising any other remedy available to it at law or in equity.
Rescission or termination of the agreement is cumulative of other remedies available to the City of Jackson.

B. Termination for Convenience. The City, at any time, may terminate this Agreement without cause, in whole
or in part, solely for its own convenience. Any such termination shall be effected by delivering notice to the
Vendor. The Notice of Termination shall include reasonable instructions to the Contractor concerning actions
to be taken in insuring that the termination is effective. Vendor agrees to abide by the reasonable instructions
provided in the Notice ofTennination. Iftennination is not for cause, the Vendor's remedies pursuant to the
provision of this agreement shall be limited to payment for services and work performed as of the date notice
of termination.

SECTION 12 -FEDERAL GRANTS 

In the event any federal grants or funding becomes available, the Vendor agrees to comply with such regulations or 
restrictions as may be required by the terms of such federa l funding. 



SECTION 13 - GOVERNING LAW AND LEGAL REMEDIES 

This agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Mississippi. The Vendor expressly agrees that under no 
circumstances shall the CITY be obligated to pay attorney's fees or the cost of legal ac tion against the Vend or. 

SECTION 14 -INDEMNIFICATION 

The Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold CITY harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, liabilities, 
suits, judgments, injuries, costs, damages, losses, expenses, surcharges, fines, penalties, taxes, interests, assets and 
fees of every kind and nature whatsoever, including, without limitation, any of the foregoing, on account of death and 
injury to persons and losses of, or damage to, property, natural resources or the environment, including governmental 
and physician claims and creditor, reasonable attorney and other professional fees and costs arising out of or in 
connection with or caused by, in any way, the negligence, willful misconduct of or breach of agreement by the Vendor, 
to the extent not otherwise contributed to by the act or negligence of any indemnified party. 

The CONTRACTOR further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the CITY for all penalties, fines and other 
obligations which may be imposed by regulatory agencies, including but not limited to, the Mississippi Department 
of Environmental Quality as a result of the Vendor's negligence or v.-rongful failure to perform. 

SECTION 15 - GUARANTY 

The Vendor shall guarantee all materials and equipment furnished and work performed for a period of one ( I ) year 
from the date of final inspection. The Vendor warrants and guarantees for a period of one (I) year from the date of 
final inspection of the project that all completed systems are free from any and all effects due to faulty materials or 
workmanship and the Vendor shall promptly make such corrections as may be necessary by reason of such defects 
including the repairs of any damage to other parts of the system resulting from such defects. The CITY will give 
notice of observed defects with reasonable promptness. In the event that the Vendor should fail to make such repairs, 
adjustments, or other work that may be made necessary by such defects, the CITY may, after giving thirty (30) days' 
notice to the Vendor, do so and charge the Vendor the cost thereby incurred. The CITY will in no way, guarantee that 
any defects due to faulty materials or workmanship will be corrected. 

SECTION 16 -NO AGENCY 

The Vendor is an independent contractor providing services to the City and the employees, agents, and servants of the 
Vendor shall in no event be considered to be the employees, agents, or servants of the City. This Agreement is not 
intended to create an agency relationship between the Vendor and City. 

SECTION 17- HEADINGS 

The headings used in this Agreement have been included solely for ease of reference and shall not be considered in 
the interpretation or construction of this Agreement. 

SECTION 18 -TIME FOR COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

A. The date of beginning and the time for completion of the work are essential conditions of the
Agreement and the work embraced shall be commenced on a date specified in the Notice to Proceed.

B. The Vendor will proceed with the work at such rate of progress to insure full completion within the
contract time. It is expressly understood and agreed, by and between the Vendor and the CITY that
the contract time for the completion of the work described herein is a reasonable time, taking into
consideration the average climatic and economic conditions and other factors prevailing in the
locality of the work.

C. If the Vendor fails to complete the work within the Contract time or extension of time granted by
the CITY, then the Vendor may be required to pay to the City the amount of $50 per day for



r 

D. 

liquidated damages for each calendar day that the Vendor shall be in default after the time stiputaied 
in the contract documents. 

The Vendor shall not be charged with liquidated damages or any excess cost when the delay in 
completion of the work is due to the following, and the Vendor has promptly given written notice 
of such delay to the CITY: 

I. To any preference, priority or allocation order duly issued by the CITY.

2. To unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Vendors,
including but not restricted to, Acts of God, or of the public enemy, acts of the CITY, acts of
another Contractor in the performance of a contract with the CITY, fires, floods,
epidemics/pandemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, and abnormal and
unforeseeable weather, and

3. To any delays of subcontractors occasioned by any of the causes specified in paragraphs (DI
and D2 above).

E. In the event that Vendor fails in any of its obligations under this Section, the CITY may take one or
more of the following actions to protect its interests:

l. Suspend the performance of the agreement until Vendor provides assurances that it intends
to adhere to the said Standards of Professional Conduct;

2. Tenninate this Agreement upon giving three (3) days' written notice of Vendor's failure to
adhere to the terms of this Section;

3. Debar Vendor from furure work for CITY for a period not less than six (6) months. Vendor
shall not circumvent debarment by perfonning such future work as a sub consultant for
another consultant; or

4. Pursue any other remedy available from a court oflaw or equity, including, but not limited
to, injunctive relief or monetary damages.

Vendor shall include in every subcontract identical language to this Section and Vendor shall be responsible for 
enforcing the terms of this Section against any of its subcontractors. Any violation of this Section by .a subcontractor 
shall subject Vendor to the remedies available to CITY for Vendor's failure to adhere to the requirements of this 
Section. 

SECTION 19 • EQUAL EM:eLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY NONDISCRIMINATION AND MINORITY 
BUSINESS ENTERPRISE UTILIZATION 

A. The Vendor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
handicap, age, religion, sex, or national origin. The Vendor will take affirmative action to ensure that
applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to race, color,
religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment,
upgrading demotion, or transfer; recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other fonns
of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Vendor agrees to post in
conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting
for the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

B. The Vendor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalfofthe Contractor,
state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color,
religion, sex or national origin.



C. The Vendor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective
bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided by the Contract Compliance
Officer advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the Contractor's commitment under this
section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for
employment.

D. The Vendor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1985, and of the
rules, regulations and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

E. The Vendor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24,
1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit
access to their books, records and accounts by the Department and the Secretary of Labor for pmposes of
investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations and orders.

F. The Vendor will make affirmative efforts to utilize minority business enterprises for suppliers and
subcontractors and will document efforts made to the City.

SECTION 20 - TRAINING AND El'vlPLOYMENT OF LOWER INCOME RESIDENTS OF PROJECT AREA 

A. The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and
Urban Development Act of I 968 as amended, 12, U.S.C. 1701-u. Section 3 requires thatto the greatest extent
feasible, opportunities for training and employment be given to lower income residents of the project area
and contracts for work in connection with the project be awarded to business concerns which are located in,
or owned in substantial part by persons residing in the area of the project.

B. The parties to this contract will comply with the provisions of said Section 3 and the regulations issued
pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development and all applicable rules and orders of
the Department issued hereunder prior to the execution of this contract. The parties to this contract certify
and agree that they are under no contractual or other disability that would prevent them from complying with
these requirements.

SECTION21-PAYMENT 

A. The City shall pay the Vendor within 30 days but no later than 45 day of completion of the project upon
receipt of final invoice and certification of satisfactory completion by the Department of Community
Improvement Division.

SECTION 22 - GENERAL PROVISJONS 

This contract embodies all the representations, rights, duties and obligations of the parties, and any prior oral or written 
agreement not embodied herein shall not be binding upon or endure to the benefit of any of the parties. 

SECTION 23 - ACCEPTANCE 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the OWNER and the CONTRACTOR, acting herein by their duly authorized 
representatives have hereunto set their hands this day and year first above written. 



r 

VENDOR'S SIGNATURE 

Title 

Date Executed: ---

THE CITY OF JACKSON 

By: 
John Horhn, Mayor 

Attested by: 
City Clerk 

Date attested: ---



Exhibit A 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Vendor shall perform the following work on the premises identified as Parcel #822-152 
bearing the physical address of 4935 Sunnybrook Drive legally described as LOT 32 BLK F 
WESTRA VEN HGTS MATURED FOR 2019 TAXES for Case #CE-25-3352: 

Demolish and remove remains of dilapidated structure removing foundation; remove trash, 
debris, steps, tires, and any other items to ensure property is clear and free of any and all health 
hazards; cut grass and weeds, and ensure property site is properly graded. 



( 

T H E 

J 

CITY OF j 

CKSo 
MISSISSIPPI 

City of Jackson Mississippi Planning and Development Department 
Community Improvement Division 

PO Box 17 
Jackson, MS 39205--0017 

NOTICE TO PROCEED 

DATE: September 23, 2025 

CASE NO: CE-25-3352 

CONTRACTOR: Leland Socrates Garrett 

Socrates Garrett Enterorises IU£, 

2659 Livineston Rd 

Jackson MS 39213 

LOCATION: 4935 Sunnybrook Drive 

MAP/ PARCEL: 822-152 

SCOPE OF WORK: Demolish and remove remains of dilapidated structure removing foundation; remove trash, debris, 
steps, tires, and any other items to ensure property is clear and free of any and all health hazards; cut grass and weeds, 
and ensure property site is properly graded. 

PRE-WORK INSPECTION PERFORMED DATE 

DATE ISSUED TO CONTRACTOR: __ _ ISSUED BY: _________ _ 

CONTRACTOR OR REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE ____________ _ 

DATE RETURNED: _______ _ RECIEVED BY: 

CONTRACTOR CHECK LIST 
CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFJCER 

CHECKLIST 

COPY OF THIS NOTICE TO PROCEED FINAL INSPECTION COMPLETED 

WORK COMPLETION MEMO PHOTOS 

INVOICE MEMO 

DUMP RECEIPT (IF APPLICABLE} CONTRACT 

NTP AUTHORIZED BY: __________ _ DATE: _______ _ 

INSPECTED BY: _____________ _ DATE: _________ _ 

CAO: ·----------------- DATE: _________ _ 

PAYMENT AUTHORIZED BY: __ _ DATE: 

QUOTE PRICE: $9,500.00 

• Contractor is responsible for calling 811 before demolition
• Please call Donald Taylor at 601-906-3083 for gas to be disconnected.



I



( 





r 









r 

1/-' 
f,�•-:r,. 

� •;( 

ORDINANCE AMENDING MOBILE FOOD VENDING ORDINAN�i�
'""

·· -�:
ADD THE ADDITIONAL CLASSIFICATION OF MOBILE TENT VENDOR, 
ESTABLISH FEES FOR EACH CLASS OF VENDOR, AND INCLUDE 
PROVISIONS ON SEVERABILITY AND CONFLICT 

WHEREAS, Section 21-17-5 of the Mississippi Code authorizes the governing authorities

of municipalities to adopt ordinances with respect to municipal affairs, property, and finances, 
which are not inconsistent with the Mississippi Constitution of 1890, the Mississippi Code of 1972, 

or any other statute or law of the State of Mississippi; and 

WHEREAS, Section 21-17-5 of the Mississippi Code of 1972 also gives municipalities

the power to alter, modify, and repeal ordinances; and 

WHEREAS, consistent with the authority granted it by Section 21-17-5 of the Mississippi

Code, the governing authorities for the City of Jackson passed ordinances related to the permitting 
of mobile food vendors; and 

WHEREAS, the mobile food vending ordinances are codified in the City of Jackson Code

of Ordinances at Chapter 66 in Sections 76 through 81; and 

WHEREAS, the current mobile food vending ordinances do not accommodate mobile

tents or canopies, which may be utilized by vendors at fairs, festivals, parades, concerts, or similar 

public gatherings; and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Planning and Economic Development recommends that

the mobile food vending ordinances be amended to accommodate the use of mobile tents or 

canopies; and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Planning and Economic Development recommends that

permitting fees for mobile food vendors be established based on the various categories of vendor; 
and 

WHEREAS, the current version of Section 66-77.- Definitions. of the City of Jackson

Code of Ordinances reads as follows: 

Sec. 66-77. - Definitions. 

The following words and phrases, whenever used herein, shall be construed as defined in this 
section: 

Mobile food vendor means any person who sells food and/or beverages from a mobile pushcart or 
motorized mobile food preparation vehicle on a consistent basis and for a period of more than 15 
days each calendar year 

Adoption of Ordinance 
Agenda Item No. 7 
10.21.2025 
(Teeuwissen, Horhn) 

t /:.. 
. ,. 

' l· 



Mobile food preparation vehicle means any motorized vehicle that includes a self-contained 
kitchen in which food is prepared, processed or stored and used to sell and dispense food to..,_the 
consumer. The unit must be on wheels (excluding boats and trailers) at all times. This definition 
does not include pushcarts. 

Mobile pus�cart means any portable vending device, pushcart or other wheeled vehicle or device 
which may be moved without the assistance of a motor and which is not required to be licensed 
and registered by the department of transportation, used for the displaying, storing or transporting 
of food offered for sale by a vendor. Said cart may be up to four feet in width [and] six feet in 
length, excluding auxiliary items such as handles or fenders, or otherwise the cart shall not occupy 
space greater than a total of24 square feet. 

WHEREAS, the Department of Planning and Economic Development is recommending 
that Section 66-77.- Defmitions. of the City of Jackson Code of Ordinances be amended to read 
as follows: 

Sec. 66-77. - Definitions. 

The following words and phrases, whenever used herein, shall be construed as defined in this 
section: 

Mobile food vendor means any person who sells food and/or beverages from a mobile pushcart, 
mobile tent or motorized mobile food preparation vehicle on a consistent basis and for a period 
of more than 15 days each calendar year. 

Mobile food preparation vehicle means any motorized vehicle that includes a self-contained 
kitchen in which food is prepared, processed or stored and used to sell and dispense food to the 
consumer. The unit must be on wheels (excluding boats and trailers) at all times. This definition 
does not include pushcarts. 

Mobile pushcart means any portable vending device, pushcart or other wheeled vehicle or device 
which may be moved without the assistance of a motor and which is not required to be licensed 
and registered by the department of transportation, used for the displaying, storing or transporting 
of food offered for sale by a vendor. Said cart may be up to four feet in width [and] six feet in 
length, excluding auxiliary items such as handles or fenders, or otherwise the cart shall not occupy 
space greater than a total of 24 square feet. 

Mobile tent means a not permanenth· anchored. temporarv structure, such as a canop:l'._ or 
tent. used for the on-site E1,ret:!_aration and sale of food and beverae,es bv licensed caterers or 
for the sale of previously prepared food and beverages during parades

s 
festivals, concerts. 

and similar e,ublic gatherings. 

and 

WHEREAS, the current version of Section 66-78. Permits required to use public 
sidewalks for mobile food vending. of the City of Jackson Code of Ordinances reads as follows: 



Sec. 66-78. - Permits Required to use Public Sidewalks for Mobile Food Vending.

( a) All mobile food vendors must obtain and maintain a permit for each mobile pushcart o;\�obile
food preparation vehicle operated. All applications for permit renewal must be filed yearly.'\t'he
application shall be made with the signs and licenses division of the office of code services in �he 
planning and development department. The application may be reviewed by any department of the 
city as may be necessary or convenient to determine whether the application is complete or 
whether the permit should be granted. Permit applications shall contain the following information: 

(/) The name, mailing address. physical address, telephone number(s), and email address of the 
applicant(s). If any applicant is anything other than a natural person, then all documents related 
to the creation and maintenance of the entity such as articles of incorporation and any similar 
relevant documents shall be included. 

(2) A valid City of Jackson business permit.

(3) A food vending permit from the Mississippi Department of Health.

(4) A scaled sketch plan or photographs showing the proposed mobile pushcart or mobile food
preparation vehicle dimensions, along with the applicable license or registration and vehicle
identification number of any vehicle licensed or registered with the state.

(5) A list of products to be sold.

(6) Proof of a valid insurance policy that provides minimum liability coverage of $500,000.00 per
mobile food preparation vehicle and $500,000.00 per mobile pushcart, with the city named as an
additional insured.

(7) A written indemnity agreement that will hold harmless the city, its officers, and employees, for
any loss or liability or damage, including costs, for bodily injury1 or property damage sustained by
a person as a result of the negligent installation, use, or maintenance of a permitted space.

(8) Copies of all letters and other notices from any governmental, quasi-governmental,
professional, or business association or entity, related directly or indirectly to alleged or actual
improper conduct in the food service business, issued to applicant or any person who will have
responsibility for operations of the mobile pushcart or mobile food preparation vehicle for which
a permit is requested. This shall include all related response and follow-up documents showing
any results, findings or actions.

(9) The dates, jurisdiction, court, and disposition of the following:

a. All felony charges related to the applicant or any principal of the applicant; and

b. All misdemeanors and violations directly or indirectly related to food, food preparation, permit
operations, and/or business operations, related to the applicant or any principal of the applicant.



(] 0) Such other additional information required by law, rule, or ordinance, or that any departdl.cmt 
of the city or city council, or the permit applicant reasonably deems appropriate to assist the d�r 
in determining whether the permit should be granted. The applicant shall be provided reasonable\ 
time to supplement the application. 

(b) No public vending permit or public vending management contract shall convey any interest in 
the real property under the jurisdiction of the City of Jackson which is identified in any permit or 
contract and such permit shall only convey the right to use the property for the purposes allowed 
in this article. 

(c) Permits cost $500. 00 per year which covers the administrative cost of processing the
application and regulating each mobile pushcart or mobile food preparation vehicle.

(d) Permit holders may be required to remove private materials or accessories to allow street, 
sidewalk, or utility access for emergency and maintenance operation or both. 

(e) This permit does not allow permit holders to operate within 300 feet of any public space during
city appointed special events without proper notarized written authorization from the special event
organizers. This notarized written authorization shall be posted while operating during the special
event.

(/) The vendor shall not receive compensation for relocating. 

(g) The permit must be displayed on the mobile pushcart or mobile food preparation vehicle at all
times.

(h) Permits are non-transferable. 

(i) A damaged or destroyed mobile pushcart or mobile food preparation vehicle may be replaced
if and only if approval for its replacement is obtained from the departments planning and
development. Any such replacement pushcart or vehicle must be of substantially the same type,
size, and dimension and with the same general characteristics as the original. Such replacement
may be disallowed if the original vendor permit would not have approved the use of the
replacement pushcart or food preparation vehicle.

(j) Any permit granted pursuant to this article shall be nonexclusive. The city may grant any 
number of such permits as the city deems appropriate. The grant of a permit shall not limit or 
abridge any power or authority of the city and shall not limit the authority of the city to commence 
appropriate civil, criminal, or other enforcement actions. The city retains full authority to amend 
the ordinances, rules and regulations that apply to any permit. 

(k) The city may revoke and terminate the permit in the event the vendor violates any term,
condition, or provision of the permit, the Jackson Code of Ordinances and/or zoning ordinances,
state and/or federal law, or if the business license issued by the city for the permitted activity is
revoked. The procedures for revoking or terminating a permit shall be the same as revoking or
terminating a business license. The revocation may be sought as a remedy in a civil action. The



vendor may terminate or surrender the permit at will any time prior to the expiration of the permit 
by providing written notice to the signs and license division of the office of code services in the 
planning and development department. Termination of the permit shall not operate to relieve the 
vendor of the obligation to release, hold harmless, and indemnify the city and its officers, agents, 
and employees. 

and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Planning and Economic Development is recommending 
that Section 66-78. Permits required to use public sidewalks for mobile food vending. of the 
City of Jackson Code of Ordinances be amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 66-78. - Permits Required to Use Public Sidewalks for Mobile Food Vending. 

(a) All mobile food vendors must obtain and maintain a permit for each mobile pushcart, mobile
tent or mobile food preparation vehicle operated. The application shall be made with the Zoning
Division of the Department of Planning and Economic Development. The application may be
reviewed by any department of the city as may be necessary or convenient to determine whether
the application is complete or whether the pennit should be granted. Permit applications shall
contain the following infonnation:

(1) The name, mailing address, physical address, telephone number(s), and email address of the
applicant(s). If any applicant is anything other than a natural person, then all documents related to
the creation and maintenance of the entity such as articles ofincorporation and any similar relevant
documents shall be included.

(2) A valid City of Jackson business pennit.

(3) A food vending permit from the Mississippi Department of Health.

(4) A scaled sketch plan or photographs showing the proposed mobile pushcart, mobile tent, or
mobile food preparation vehicle dimensions, along with the applicable license or registration and
vehicle identification number of any vehicle licensed or registered with the state.

(S) A list of products to be sold.

(6) Proof of a valid insurance policy that provides minimum liability coverage of $500,000.00 per
mobile food preparation vehicle, 500.000 for mQhilJ! tent, and $500,000.00 per mobile pushcart,
with the City of Jackson named as an additional insured.

(7) A written indemnity agreement that will hold harmless the city, its officers, and employees, for
any loss or liability or damage, including costs, for bodily injury or property damage sustained by
a person as a result of the negligent installation, use, or maintenance of a permitted space.

(8) Copies of all letters and other notices from any governmental, quasi-governmental,
professional, or business association or entity, related directly or indirectly to alleged or actual



improper conduct in the food service business, issued to applicant or any person who witf'ri.ave 
responsibility for operations of the mobile pushcart, mobile tent or mobile food preparatiOI) 
vehicle for which a permit is requested. This shall include all related response and follow-up\ 
documents showing any results, findings or actions. 

(9) The dates, jurisdiction, court, and disposition of the following:

a. All felony charges related to the applicant or any principal of the applicant; and

b. All misdemeanors and violations directly or indirectly related to food, food preparation, permit
operations, and/or business operations, related to the applicant or any principal of the applicant.

(10) Such other additional information required by law, rule, or ordinance, or that any department
of the city or city council, or the permit applicant reasonably deems appropriate to assist the city
in determining whether the permit should be granted. The applicant shall be provided reasonable
time to supplement the application.

(b) No public vending permit or public vending management contract shall convey any interest in
the real property under the jurisdiction of the City of Jackson which is identified in any permit or
contract and such permit shall only convey the right to use the property for the purposes allowed
in this article.

(c) The cost of a eermit for a mobile food preparation vehicle is $300.00 The cost of a uermit
for a mobile JlUshcart is $150.00,a. and the cost of a permit for a mobile tent is $300.00 rper
event. Permits for mobile food preparation vehicles and mobile pushcarts ma)' be renewed
annually for the same fee as the initial permit. The .permitting fees cover the administrative
costs associated with g;rocessin;& the aeJ!lications and rej!ulatinJ,!, mobile food preparation
vehicles. mobile pushcarts, and mobile tents.

(d) Permit holders may be required to remove private materials or accessories to allow street,
sidewalk, or utility access for emergency and maintenance operation or both.

(e) This permit does not allow permit holders to operate within 300 feet of any public space during
city appointed special events without proper notarized written authorization from the special event
organizers. This notarized written authorization shall be posted while operating during the special
event.

(t) The vendor shall not receive compensation for relocating.

(g) The permit must be displayed on the mobile pushcart, mobile tent or mobile food preparation
vehicle at all times.

(h) Permits are non-transferable.

(i) A damaged or destroyed mobile pushcart, mobile tent or mobile food preparation vehicle
may be replaced if and only if approval for its replacement is obtained from the Zoning Division



r of the DeBartment of Planning and Development. Any such replacement mobile pushcart --; 
mobile tent or mobile food preparation vehicle must be of substantially the same type, size, 
and dimension and with the same general characteristics as the original. Such replacement may 
be disallowed if the Zoning Division would not have approved the use of the replacement 
mobile pushcart, mobile food preparation vehicle. or mobile tent on an original application. 

(j) Any pennit granted pursuant to this article shall be nonexclusive. The city may grant any 
number of such permits as the city deems appropriate. The grant of a pennit shall not limit or 
abridge any power or authority of the city and shall not limit the authority of the city to commence 
appropriate civil, criminal, or other enforcement actions. The city retains full authority to amend 
the ordinances, rules and regulations that apply to any permit. 

(k) The city may revoke and tenninate the permit in the event the vendor violates any term,
condition, or provision of the permit, the Jackson Code of Ordinances and/or zoning ordinances,
state and/or federal law, or if the business license issued by the city for the pennitted activity is
revoked. The procedures for revoking or terminating a permit shall be the same as revoking or
terminating a business license. The revocation may be sought as a remedy in a civil action. The
vendor may terminate or surrender the permit at will any time prior to the expiration of the permit
by providing written notice to the signs and license division of the office of code services in the
planning and development department. Termination of the pennit shall not operate to relieve the
vendor of the obligation to release, hold harmless, and indemnify the city and its officers, agents,
and employees.

(I) A photo of the tent or canop" to be used for tent vendors. 

f m) If heat, g,as. or flame will be utilized, a report of the fire de,2artment's inspection. 

(n) A copv of the Mississippi State Department of Health's inspection if 2erishable food will
be sold. 

to} Permits must be renewed annually thir!:)1 f30) dal'.s prior to the expiration of the 
e,ermit. 

and 

WHEREAS, the current version of Section 66-79.- Location and operation. of the 
Code of Ordinances reads as follows; 

Sec. 66-79. Location and operation. 

(a) Mobile pushcarts and mobile food preparation vehicles shall only conduct business in
designated areas approved by the department of public works and the department of planning and
development. These areas include NMU I-neighborhood mixed use districts, CMU /­
community mixed used districts, C4-central business district, UTC-urban town center mixed
use districts. Old Capitol Green district, and SU�-special use districts. All other areas must
receive prior approval by the department of public works and the department of planning and



development. The mobile food vendor is responsible for initiating a request to utjli2:e such 
locations, and the department of public works and the department of planning and devefffiQ�ent 
shall have complete discretion as to which locations to approve considering the needs of traffic, . 
pedestrians. public safety, public works, public convenience, the general uses of adjacent privat� 
property, and any other factor that is proper and lawful for the city to consider in approving or\ 
disapproving such locations. The City of Jackson Police and Fire Departments shall have 
concurrent authority to oversee locations and setup of mobile pushcarts and mobile food 
preparation vehicles. If an applicant is denied and wishes to appeal his grievance, he may request 
an order approving his application to the city council at a regular scheduled meeting and said 
item will be considered "approved or disapproved." 

(b) Mobile pushcarts and mobile food preparation vehicles shall conform to the following 
regulations regarding location and operation: 

( 1) Mobile pushcarts and mobile food preparation vehicles must be located at least 300 feet in all
directions from the entrance to any non-mobile business selling food unless the owner of the other
business gives notarized written permission for the infringement of the no-vending area. Proof of
said permission must be filed with the signs and licenses division.

(2) Mobile pushcarts and mobile food preparation vehicles must not be locked or attached to trees,
garbage receptacles, or street furniture.

(3) Mobile pushcarts and mobile food preparation vehicles may not locate within 20 feet of any
bus stop.

( 4) Mobile pushcarts and mobile food preparation vehicles may not locate within three feet of a
building or structure unless the sidewalk is not less than 11 feet wide.

(5) Mobile pushcarts and mobile food preparation vehicles may not locate within any area which
would block the view of traffic or traffic signals or traffic signs.

(6) Mobile pushcarts and mobile food preparation vehicles may not locate within ten feet of any
fire hydrant.

(c) In no event shall any mobile pushcart or mobile food preparation vehicle, display device, or
accessory container be located inside any public building or structure or at any place the general
public is prohibited.

(d) Mobile pushcarts and mobile food preparation vehicles may only be operated between the
hours of 6:00 a.m. and 3:00 a.m. Cleanup and removal of the pushcart or vehicle must be
completed by 3: 3 0 a. m.

(e) The operators must be present at all times.



r 

�I 

/:..:-c
,,

··· 
(f) Mobile food vendors are responsible for all waste and trash removal. The containmeJi,.grea 
must be kept clear of grease, trash, paper, cups or cans associated with the operation. No liquid 
waste or grease is to be disposed of in tree pits or onto sidewalks, streets, or other public places •. 

(g) Mobile food vendors shall not vend from mobile vending units within 300 feet or elementary,
middle or high school grounds from one hour before schools starts, during the time school is in
session, or one hour after regular school hours ends.

(h) The mobile food vendor shall contain all refuse, trash and Jilter within the mobile food service
unit or within a small moveable trash can maintained by the vendor, and located adjacent to the
mobile pushcart or mobile food preparation vehicle in such a manner as not to block or otherwise
obstruct pedestrian or vehicular traffic. The vendor shall be responsible for the proper disposal of
such refuse, trash, and litter, and shall place it in the public trash container, or in any private
container with proper permission. The vendor is responsible for all litter and trash within 15 feet
of the mobile pushcart or mobile food preparation vehicle at any time the vendor is selling or 
offering to sell any merchandise or service.

(i) The mobile pushcart or mobile food preparation vehicle must have self-contained utilities and
shall not use the city's utilities or private utilities that are not self-contained and integral to the
vendor unit.

0) No mobile food vendor shall sell or attempt to sell any item to the occupant of any motor vehicle,
unless it is parked in a lawful parking space. Parking a mobile vending unit on commercially
zoned, private property is permitted with written, notarized, pe,:mission from the owner and toilet
facilities that are available and convenient. The mobile vending unit must be moved daily.

(k) Every mobile food vendor shall keep records utilizing generally accepted accounting practices
for the purposes of compliance with all federal, state and local tax laws.

(I) All approved mobile pushcarts and mobile food preparation vehicles must pay the two percent
sales tax required by all food providers in the City of Jackson, along with all other tax and
licensing fees required by the State of Mississippi.

(m) All approved mobile pushcarts and mobile food preparation vehicles must be licensed
businesses within the City of Jackson with all operations pertinent to the mobile pushcart or
vehicle operated within the City of Jackson.

(n) All mobile pushcarts and mobile food preparation vehicles must be issued a state tax number
by the Mississippi Department of Revenue designating them as a City of Jackson business.

and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Planning and Economic Development is recommending 
that Section 66-79.- Location and operation. of the Code of Ordinances be amended to read as 
follows: 



Sec. 66-79. Location and operation. 

(a)Mobile pushcarts, mobile tents and mobile food preparation vehicles shall only cQl}duct
business in designated areas approved by the Department of Public Works and the Zoning Division
of the Department of Planning and Development. These areas include those areas zon�
commercial: the C80 Corridor; NMU 1 - neighborhood mixed use district. pedestrian oriented)
CMU I - community mixed-use district -pedestrian oriented, C4-(Central Business District),
UTC --urban town center mixed-use districts, Old Capitol Green Mixed Use District. and SUD­
special use districts. All other areas must receive prior approval of the Public Works and the
Planning and Development Departments. The mobile food vendor is responsible for initiating
a request to utilize such locations, and the department of public works and the department of
planning and development shall have complete discretion as to which locati·ons to approve
considering the needs of traffic, pedestrians, public safety, public works, public convenience, the
general uses of adjacent private property, and any other factor that is proper and lawful for the city
to consider in approving or disapproving such locations.

{b),The Cil)' of Jackson Police and Fire Departments shall have concurrent authoruy to 
oversee locations and setup of mobile pushcarts. mobile tents. and mobile food preparation 
vehicles. If an applicant is denied and wishes to appeal his grievance,. he ma:y reguest an 
order approving his aeplication to the cih· council at a regular scheduled meeting and said 
item will be considered "approved or disapproved." 

(c) Mobile pushcarts, mobile tents. and mobile food preparation vehicles shall confonn to the
following regulations regarding location and operation:

(1) Mobile pushcarts, mobile tents. and mobile food preparation vehicles must be located
at least 300 feet in all directions from the entrance to any non-mobile business selling food
unless the owner of the other business gives notarized written permission for the
infringement of the no-vending area. Proof of said permission must be filed with the signs
and licenses division. Proof of waiver must be submitted annually. These l!rovisions shall
not aSlJ?ll' for city-sanctioned vrades or festivals if the vendor has (a) written
approval from the event or&anizer and tbl a temiporarr operatingpermit from the
Office of Planning and Development.

(2) Mobile pushcarts, mobile tents, and mobile food preparation vehicles must not be
· locked or attached to trees, garbage receptacles, or street furniture.

(3) Mobile pushcarts, mobile tents, and mobile food preparation vehicles may not locate
within 20 feet of any bus stop.

( 4) Mobile pushcarts, mobile tents, and mobile food preparation vehicles may not locate
within three feet of a building or structure unless the sidewalk is not less than 11 feet wide.

(5) Mobile pushcarts mobile tents, and mobile food preparation vehicles may not locate
within any area which would block the view of traffic or traffic signals or traffic signs.



(6) Mobile pushcarts, mobile tents� and mobile food preparation vehicles may noJ l_ocate
within ten feet of any fire hydrant. o<,, , ·.: ✓ 

•• ? 

( d) In no event shall any mobile pushcart, mobile tents
1 

or mobile food preparation vehicle, display,
device, or accessory container be located inside any public building or structure or at any place the
general public is prohibited.

( e) Mobile pushcart, mobile tents_. and mobile food preparation vehicles may only be operated
between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 11 :00 B·m- unless the event permit deshmates specific hours.
If the permit mecifies deshwated hours. then the vendor must adhere to the desiwated
hours. Cleanup and removal of the pushcart vehicle or tent must be completed by 11:30 p.m.
or thirry minutes following the last hour s,pecified b,• the permit when desie,nated.

(f) The operators must be present at all times.

(g) Mobile food vendors are responsible for all waste and trash removal. The containment area
must be kept clear of grease, trash, paper, cups or cans associated with the operation. No liquid
waste or grease is to be disposed of in tree pits or onto sidewalks, streets, or other public places.

(h) Mobile food vendors shall not vend from mobile vending units within 300 feet of elementary,
middle or high school grounds from one hour before schools start, during the time school is in
session, or one hour after regular school hours ends.

(i) The mobile food vendor shall contain all refuse, trash and litter within the mobile food service
unit or within a small moveable trash can maintained by the vendor, and located adjacent to the
mobile pushcart, mobile tent., or mobile food preparation vehicle in such a manner as not to block
or otherwise obstruct pedestrian or vehicular traffic. The vendor shall be responsible for the proper
disposal of such refuse, trash, and litter, and shall place it in the public trash container, or in any
private container with proper permission. The vendor is responsible for all litter and trash within
15 feet of the mobile pushcart, mobile ten . or mobile food preparation vehicle at any time the
vendor is selling or offering to sell any merchandise or service.

(j) The mobile pushcart, mobile tent or mobile food preparation vehicle must have self.contained 
utilities and shall not use the city's utilities or private utilities that are not self-contained and 
integral to the vendor unit. 

(k) No mobile food vendor shall sell or attempt to sell any item to the occupant of any motor
vehicle, unless it is parked in a lawful parking space. Parking a mobile vending unit on
commercially zoned, private property is permitted with written, notarized, permission from the
owner if toilet facilities are available and convenient. The mobile vending unit must be moved
daily.

{I) No speakers or other noise production devices are allowed. This does not a1mll' to vendor 
parks. 



/-a·. ,,
, l.

r:

� '. ,· 

. ' 

(m) Every mobile food vendor shall keep records utilizing generally accepted acco1111tfng pf.�_t}ces
for the purposes of compliance with all federal, state and local tax laws.

(n) All approved mobile pushcarts, mobile tents. and mobile food preparation vehicles must pay
the two percent sales tax required by all food providers in the City of Jackson, along with al] other
tax and licensing fees required by the State of Mississippi.

( o) AU approved mobile pushcarts, mobile tents. and mobile food preparation vehicles must be
licensed businesses within the City of Jackson with alJ operations pertinent to the mobile pushcart,
mobile tent or mobile food preparation vehicle operated within the City of Jackson.

(p) All mobile pushcarts, mobile tents. and mobile food preparation vehicles must be issued a
state tax number by the Mississippi Department of Revenue designating them as a City of Jackson
business.

L9l The 11ermit must be visibh· displayed during all hours of operation. 

(r )Traffic. pedestrian walkwavs. and utilities ma,· not be impeded. 

� All state retail tax and health laws and rei:ulations must be followed. 

(t) Mobile pushcarts, mobile tents, and mobile food preparation vehicles must comply with all
local, state, and federal rules regarding sanitation and protection of food from airborne
contamination.

(u) Sales of goods are limited to food and beverage. The sale of beer. wine and alcoholic
beverages is prohibited. 

(v) Mobile food vendors may place a maximum of three coolers within their containment area so
long as the coolers are neatly stacked to avoid visual clutter.

(w) Mobile pushcarts, mobile tents: and mobile food preparation vehicles may not be stored,
parked or left overnight on city property.

(x) All permit applicants must operate an existing licensed restaurant within the City of Jackson
or have a central kitchen approved by the Mississippi Department of Health for food service.

and 

WHEREAS, the current version of·Section 66-80 .- Design standards. of the City of 
Jackson Code of Ordinances reads as fo11ows: 

Sec. 66-80. Design standards. 

All mobile pushcarts and mobile food preparation vehicles must meet the following design 
standards: 



(1) All mobile pushcarts and mobile food preparation vehicles must be self-contained. 1his
requires that the pushcart or food preparation vehicle is not connected or attached to?i,ty building
or structure, and does not receive power from any building by means of wires, hoses, or other ., 

connections.

\ (2) Umbrellas or canopies must be attached to the pushcart or vehicle and must not exceed eight 
feet in height above grade. Maximum diameter of canopies and umbrellas shall not exceed six feet 
and shall not interfere with pedestrian movement. No mobile pushcart or mobile food preparation 
vehicle shall have more than two umbrellas. 

(3) All signage on mobile pushcarts and mobile food preparation vehicles shall comply with the
City of Jackson Sign Ordinance. No freestanding signage is permitted.

(4) Mobile pushcarts and mobile food preparation vehicles must comply with all local, state, and
federal rules regarding sanitation and protection of food from airborne contamination.

(5) Sales of goods are limited to food and beverage.

(6) Mobile food vendors may place a maximum of three coolers within their containment area so 
long as the coolers are neatly stacked to avoid visual clutter. 

(7) No accessory container shall be more than three feet from the unit.

(8) Accessory containers must be made of hard substances such as hard plastic or a metal and
may not be made by expanded polystyrene plastic, paper, paperboard, or cardboard.

(9) Mobile pushcarts and mobile food preparation vehicles may not be stored, parked or left
overnight on city property.

(JO) All permit applicants must operate an existing licensed restaurant within the City of Jackson 
or have a central kitchen approved by the Mississippi Department of Health for food service. 

and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Planning and Economic Development is recommending 
that Section 66-80.-Design standards. of the City of Jackson Code of Ordinances be amended to 
read as follows: 

Sec. 66-80. Design standards. 

All mobile pushcarts, mobile tents, and mobile food preparation vehicles must meet the 
following design standards: 

(1) All mobile pushcarts. mobile tents,. and mobile food preparation vehicles must be self­
contained. This requires that the pushcart, tent_or food preparation vehicle is not connected or



attached to any building or structure, and does not receive power from any building by mcah�_ot: 
wires, hoses, or other connections. ·:, 

(2) Umbrellas or canopies must be attached to the pushcart tent or vehicle and must not exceed
eight feet in height above grade_ Maximum diameter of canopies and umbrellas shall not exceed
six feet and shall not interfere with pedestrian movement. No mobile pushcart mobile tent or
mobile food preparation vehicle shall have more than two umbrel)as.

(3) All siwiage on mobile pushcarts mobile tents and mobile food preparation vehicles shall
comply with the City of Jackson Sign Ordinance. No freestanding signage is permitted.

(4) Mobile pushcarts, mobile tents. and mobile food preparation vehicles must.comply with all
local, state, and federal rules regarding sanitation and protection of food from airborne
contamination.

(5) Mobile food vendors may place a maximum of three coolers within their containment area so
long as the coolers are neatly stacked to avoid visual clutter.

(6) No accessory container shall be more than three feet from the unit.

(7) Accessory containers must be made of hard substances such as hard plastic or a metal and
may not be made by expanded polystyrene plastic, paper, paperboard, or cardboard.

(8) Mobile food preparation vehicles mav not have exterior !!lug-ins, and visual clutter
must be minimal.

(9) Mobile tents ma'r not exceed a 10 ft x 10 ft footprint unless the event allows a larger
size. The canopv must be flame-retardant. The use of offsite power is prohibited absent
agnrov2I b) the Department of Planning and Economic Development and the Jackson Fire
Department.

and 

WHEREAS, the current version of Section 66-81.- Violations and penalties. of the City 
of Jackson Code of Ordinances reads as follows: 

Sec. 66-81. Violations and penalties. 

(a) All mobile.food vending must be performed in compliance with said ordinance. Failure to abide
by said ordinance shall result in the following:

(1) A fine not exceeding $150.00 for a first violation.

(2) A fine not exceeding $250. 00.for a second violation within one year of any prior violation.

(3) A fine not exceeding $500. 00 for a third or more violation within one year of the first.



(b) Any offense shall be considered a misdemeanor and is subject to being cited by any authoriz'ed 
law enforcement official in the City of Jackson or with authority to do so in the City of Jackson.' ·· 

(c) Violation of this article may result in the suspension or revocation of any city permit or license
issued to the owner or operator of the mobile pushcart or mobile food preparation vehicle.

(d) Each day on which an infraction of the ordinance occurs shall be considered a separate and
distinct violation.

(e) Al/fines collected shall go to the city's general fund.

and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Planning and Economic Development is recommending 
that Section 66-81 of the City of Jackson Code of Ordinances be amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 66-81. Violations and penalties. 

(a) All mobile food vending must be performed in compliance with said ordinance. Failure to abide
by said ordinance shall result in the following:

(l) A fine not exceeding $150.00 for a first violation, which does not constitute operating. with
a permit.

(2) A fine not exceeding $250.00 for a second violation within one year of any prior violation !f
the violation doe_s not constitute operating without a permit.

(3) A fine not exceeding $500.00 for a third or more violation within one year of the first and
revocation of permit for violations which do not constitute operating without a l!Crmit.

(4) A fine of $500 and impoundment of eguiement for oeeratin.l,}"'ilhout a permit.

(5} 01ieratin: in violation of health and fire codes will result in imme_diaJ� closure and 
revocation of the permit. 

(b) Any offense shall be considered a misdemeanor and is subject to being cited by any authorized
law enforcement official in the City of Jackson or with authority to do so in the City of Jackson.

( c) Violation of this article may result in the suspension or revocation of any city permit or license
issued to the owner or operator of the mobile pushcart, mobile tent or mobile food preparation
vehicle.

(d) Each day on which an infraction of the ordinance occurs shall be considered a separate and
distinct violation.

(e) All fines collected shall go to the city's general fund.



{f) A permit mav be revoked if it is determined that a false or misleadine a1mlication was 
submitttd.

·, ·
, ·, ·""-,/.

,,, 

� A pennit ma,· be revoked for violating state or local. s .afetv or sanitation. laws and 
regulations. 

and 

WHEREAS, Article III.- Mobile Food Vending, Chapter 66 of the City of Jackson Code 
of Ordinances does not contain a provision addressing severability and conflict; and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Planning and Economic Development is recommending 
that the following provisions be added to the ordinance governing severability and conflict: 

Severabili!X_. If am' section or E!;rovision of this ordinance is held invalid b)! a court 
of comg_etent jurisdiction. then the same shall not oeerate to invalidate other provisions of 
the ordinance. The ordinance will remain in effect but for the invalid provision. 

Conflict. With the exception of transit vendor ordinances or other ordinances 
related to mobile service vendors, mobile holida::t:, vendors, and mobile tent vendors 
en2ae,ed in the selling of non-food items. this ordinance shall control and 2overn conflicts 
and inconsistences existing in other ordinances of the Ci,!l of Jackson. 

WHEREAS, the recommended amendments and additions to the mobile food vending 
ordinances are reasonable and protect public health while promoting the economic interests of 
the City of Jackson; and 

WHEREAS, the recommended amendments and additions are not inconsistent with the 
Mississippi Constitution, statutes of the State of Mississippi, or any other law of the State of 
Mississippi. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI, that the following ordinance amendments are approved: 

Sec. 66-77. - Definitions. 

The following words and phrases, whenever used herein, shall be construed as defined in this 
section: 

Mobile food vendor means any person who sells food and/or beverages from a mobile 
pushcart, mobile tent or motorized mobile food preparation vehicle on a consistent basis and 
for a period of more than 15 days each calendar year. 

Mobile food preparation vehicle means any motorized vehicle that includes a self-contained 
kitchen in which food is prepared, processed or stored and used to sell and dispense food to 



the consumer. The unit must be on wheels (excluding boats and trailers) at all tin\es. This 
definition does not include pushcarts. 

Mobile pushcart means any portable vending device, pushcart or other wheeled vehicli't»r 
device which may be moved without the assistance of a motor and which is not required to 
be licensed and registered by the department of transportation, used for the displaying, 
storing or transporting of food offered for sale by a vendor. Said cart may be up to four feet 
in width [and] six feet in length, excluding auxiliary i�ems such as handles or fenders, or 
otherwise the cart shall not occupy space greater than a total of 24 square feet. 

Mobile tent means a not permanenth anchored tem,porarv structure such as a canop)· or 
tent used for the onsite preparation and sell of food and·beveraees by licensed caterers or for 
the sell of previoush' preaared food and beverages durine, (!arades

_. 
festivals, concerts,. and 

similar public gatherings. 

Sec. 66-78. - Permits Required to use Public Sidewalks for Mobile Food Vending. 

(a) All mobile food vendors must obtain and maintain a permit for each mobile pushcart,
mobile tent or mobile food preparation vehicle operated. The application shall be made with
the Zonin2, Division of the Deoartment of Planning and Economic Development. The
application may be reviewed by any department of the city as may be necessary or convenient
to determine whether the application is complete or whether the permit should be granted.
Permit applications shall contain the following information:

(I) The name, mailing address, physical address, telephone number(s), and email address of
the applicant( s ). If any applicant is anything other than a natural person, then all documents
related to the creation and maintenance of the entity such as articles of incorporation and
any similar relevant documents shall be included.

(2) A valid City of Jackson business permit.

(3) A food vending permit from the Mississippi Department of Health.

(4) A scaled sketch plan or photographs showing the proposed mobile pushcart, mobile tent.
or mobile food preparation vehicle dimensions, along with the applicable license or
registration and vehicle identification number of any vehicle licensed or registered with the
state.

(5) A list of products to be sold.

(6) Proof of a valid insurance policy that provides minimum liability coverage of $500,000.00
per mobile food preparation vehicle, $500.000 for mobile tent, and $500,000.00 per mobile
pushcart, with the Ci1y of Jackson named as an additional insured.

(7) A written indemnity agreement that will hold harmless the city, its officers, and
employees, for any loss or liability or damage, including costs, for bodily injury or property



--·· 

.-,--c-:
l 0• 

�.:� 

damage sustained by a person as a result of the negligent installation, use, or maintenance of 
a permitted space. 

(8) Copies of all letters and other notices from any governmental, quasi-govemmental,,7;
professional, or business association or entity, related directly or indirectly to alleged or ·; ,
actual improper conduct in the food service business, issued to applicant or any person who 
will have responsibility for operations of the mobile pushcart, mobile tent or mobile food 
preparation vehicle for which a permit is requested. This shall include all related response 
and follow-up documents showing any results, findings or actions. 

(9) The dates, jurisdiction, court, and disposition of the following:

a. All felony charges related to the applicant or any principal of the applicant; and

b. All misdemeanors and violations directly or indirectly related to food, food preparation,
permit operations, and/or business operations, related to the applicant or any principal of
the applicant.

(10) Such other additional information required by law, rule, or ordinance, or that any
department of the city or city council, or the permit applicant reasonably deems appropriate
to assist the city in determining whether the permit should be granted. The applicant shall
be provided reasonable time to supplement the application.

(b) No public vending permit or public vending management contract shall convey any
interest in the real property under the jurisdiction of the City of Jackson which is identified
in any permit or contract and such permit shall only convey the right to use the property for
the purposes allowed in this article.

(c) The cost of a permit for a mobile food preparation vehicle is S300.00 The cost of a permit
for a mobile pushcart is $150.00. and the cost of a permit for a mobile tent is S300.00 per
event. Permits for mobile food preparation vehicles and mobile pushcarts mav be renewed
annualh• for the same fee as the initial permit. The permittin& fees cover the administrative
costs associated with processing, the applications and reJtulating mobile food preearation
vehicles, mobile pushcarts, and mobile tents.

(d) Permit holders may be required to remove private materials or accessories to allow street,
sidewalk, or utility access for emergency and maintenance operation or both.

(e) This permit does not allow permit holders to operate within 300 feet of any public space
during city appointed special events without proper notarized written authorization from
the special event organizers. This notarized written authorization shall be posted while
operating during the special event.

(f) The vendor shall not receive compensation for relocating.



.. 

(g) The permit must be displayed on the mobile pushcart, mobile tent osvmo�jle food
preparation vehicle at all times.

(h) Permits are non-transferable.

(i) A damaged or destroyed mobile pushcart, mobile tent or mobile food preparation vehicle
may be replaced if and only if approval for its replacement is obtained from the Zoning
Division of the Department of Planning and Development. Any such replacement mobile
pushcart mobile tent or mobile food preparation vehicle must be of substantially the same
type, size, and dimension and with the same general characteristics as the original. Such
replacement may be disallowed if the Zoning Division would not have approved the use·of
the replacement mobile :pushcart. mobile food p,reparation vehicle, or mobile tent on an
original application.

(j) Any permit granted pursuant to this article shall be nonexclusive. The city may grant any 
number of such permits as the city deems appropriate. The grant of a permit shall not limit 
or abridge any power or authority of the city and shall not limit the authority of the city to 
commence appropriate civil, criminal, or other enforcement actions. The city retains full 
authority to amend the ordinances, rules and regulations that apply to any permit. 

(k) The city may revoke and terminate the permit in the event the vendor violates any term,
condition, or provision of the permit, the Jackson Code of Ordinances and/or zoning
ordinances, state and/or federal law, or if the business license issued by the city for the
permitted activity is revoked. The procedures for revoking or terminating a permit shall be
the same as revoking or terminating a business license. The revocation may be sought as a
remedy in a civil action. The vendor may terminate or surrender the permit at will any time
prior to the expiration of the permit by providing written notice to the signs and license
division of the office of code services in the planning and development department.
Termination of the permit shall not operate to relieve the vendor of the obligation to release,
hold harmless, and indemnify the city and its officers, agents, and employees.

11. A photo of the tent or canopy to be used (or tent vendors.

12. If heat, gas1 or flame will be utilized, a report of the fire department's insJ?Cction.

13. A cop)' of the Mississippi State Department of Health's inspection if perishable food will
be sold. 

14. Permits must be renewed annuallv thir!): (30) da)'S prior to the exQiration of the �rmit.

Sec. 66-79. Location and operation. 

(a) Mobile pushcarts, mobile tents and mobile food preparation vehicles shall only conduct
business in designated areas approved by the Department of Public Works and the Zoning
Division of the Department of Planning and Development. These areas include those areas
zoned commercial; the C80 Corridor_; NMU 1 � neighborhood mixed use district, pedestrian



oriented). CMU 1 - community mixed-use district -pedestrian oriented, C4-fC�otral 
Business District), UTC - urban town center mixed-use districts, Old Capitol Greel!''Mixed 
Use District. and SUD-special use districts. All other areas must receive prior apProval!!.f 
the Public Works and the Plannine and Development Departments. The mobile food vendor 
is responsible for initiating a request to utilize such locations, and the department of public· \ 
works and the department of planning and development shall have complete discretion as to �
which locations to approve considering the needs of traffic, pedestrians, public safety, public 
works, public convenience, the general uses of adjacent private property, and any other 
factor that is proper and lawful for.the city to consider in approving or disapproving such 
locations. 

(b )The City of Jackson Police and· Fire Departments shall have concurrent authority to 
oversee locations and setup of mobile pushcarts, mobile tents. and mobile food preparation 
vehicles. If an applicant is denied and wishes to appeal his grievance, he may request an 
order approving his application to the city council at a regular scheduled meeting and said 
item will be considered "approved or disapproved." 

(c) Mobile pushcarts, mobile tents, and mobile food preparation vehicles shall conform to
the following regulations regarding location and operation:

(1) Mobile pushcarts, mobile tents and mobile food preparation vehicles must be located at
least 300 feet in all directions from the entrance to any non-mobile business selling food
unless the owner of the other business gives notarized written permission for the
infringement of the no-vending area. Proof of said permission must be filed with the signs
and licenses division. Proof of waiver must be submitted annualh•, These provisions shall
not a[!pb' for citr-sanctioned parades or festivals if the vendor has 1(a} written aeproval from 
the event or�anizer and lb) a temeoran oe,eratin-' permit from the Office of PlanninJ:._and 
Development. 

(2) Mobile pushcarts, mobile tents. and mobile food preparation vehicles must not be locked
or attached to trees, garbage receptacles, or street furniture.

(3) Mobile pushcarts, mobile tents. and mobile food preparation vehicles may not locate
within 20 feet of any bus stop.

(4) Mobile pushcarts, mobile tents, and mobile food preparation vehicles may not locate
within three feet of a building or structure unless the sidewalk is not less than 11 feet wide.

(5) Mobile pushcarts mobile tents.1 ··and mobile food preparation vehicles may not locate
within any area which would block the view of traffic or traffic signals or traffic signs.

(6) Mobile pushcarts, mobile tents. and mobile food preparation vehicles may not locate
within ten feet of any fire hydrant.



(d) In no event shall any mobile pushcart, mobile tents
1 

or mobile food preparation vehj�Je,
display device, or accessory container be located inside any public building or struc�e or, 
at any place the general public is prohibited. 

(e) Mobile pushcart, mobile tents. and mobile food preparation vehicles may only be
operated between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 11 :00 p.m. unless the event permit designates
specific hours. If the permit specifies desh;nated hours, then the vendor must adhere to the
stesignated hours. Cleanup and removal of the pushcart or vehicle must be completed by
11 :30 a.m. or thirty minutes followine, the last hour srtecified b)' the permit when desienated.

(f) The operators must be present at all times.

(g) Mobile food vendors are responsible for all waste and trash removal. The containment
area must be kept clear of grease, trash, paper, cups or cans associated with the operation.
No liquid waste or grease is to be disposed of in tree pits or onto sidewalks, streets, or other
public places.

(h) Mobile food vendors shall not vend from mobile vending units within 300 feet of
elementary, middle or high school grounds from one hour before schools start, during the
time school is in session, or one hour after regular school hours ends.

(i) The mobile food vendor shall contain all refuse, trash and litter within the mobile food
service unit or within a small moveable trash can maintained by the vendor, and located
adjacent to the mobile pushcart, mobile tent, or mobile food preparation vehicle in such a
manner as not to block or otherwise obstruct pedestrian or vehicular traffic. The vendor
shall be responsible for the proper disposal of such refuse, trash, and litter, and shaJI place
it in the public trash container, or in any private container with proper permission. The
vendor is responsible for all litter and trash within 15 feet of the mobile pushcart, mobile
tent, or mobile food preparation vehicle at any time the vendor is selling or offering to sell
any merchandise or service.

(j) The mobile pushcart, mobile tent or mobile food preparation vehicle must have self­
contained utilities and shall not use the city's utilities or private utilities that are not self­
contained and integral to the vendor unit. 

(k) No mobile food vendor shall sell or attempt to sell,any item to the occupant of any motor
vehicle, unless it is parked in a lawful parking space. Parking a mobile vending unit on
commercially zoned, private property is permitted with written, notarized, permission from
the owner if toilet facilities are available and convenient. The mobile vending unit must be
moved daily.

(I) No speakers or other noise production devices are allowed. This does not apph to vendor
parks.

(m) Every mobile food vendor shall keep records utilizing generally accepted accounting
practices for the purposes of compliance with all federal, state and local tax laws.



(n) All approved mobile pushcarts, mobile tents
,. 

and mobile food preparation vehicles mtl�t
pay the two percent sales tax required by all food providers in the City of Jackson, along\
with aJl other tax and licensing fees required by the State of Mississippi. · \

(o) All approved mobile pushcarts, mobile tents. and mobile food preparation vehicles must
be licensed businesses within the City of Jackson with all operations pertinent to the mobile
pushcart, mobile tent or mobile food preparation vehicle operated within the City of Jackson.

{p) AH mobile pushcarts, mobile tents, and mobile food preparation v�hicles must be issued 
a state tax number by the Mississippi Department of Revenue designating them as a City of 
.Jackson business. 

lgJ The permit must be visibh• displayed during all hours of operation. 

Cr )Traffic, pedestrian walkwa)'s, and utilities ma)'. not be iml!eded. 

{s} All state retail tax and health laws and regulations must be followed.

(t) Mobile pushcarts, mobile tents, and mobile food preparation vehicles must comply with
all local, state, and federal rules regarding sanitation and protection of food from airborne
contamination.

(u) Sales of goods are limited to food and beverage. The sale of beer •. wine and alcoholic
bevera es is , rohibited.

(v) Mobile food vendors may place a maximum of three coolers within their containment
area so long as the coolers are neatly stacked to avoid visual clutter.

(w) Mobile pushcarts, mobile tents, and mobile food preparation vehicles may not be stored,
parked or left overnight on city property.

(x) All permit applicants must operate an existing licensed restaurant within the City of
Jackson or have a central kitchen approved by the Mississippi Department of Health for
food service.

Sec. 66-80. Design standards. 

All mobile pushcarts, mobile tents, and mobile food preparation vehicles must meet the 
following design standards: 

(1) All mobile pushcarts. mobile tents. and mobile food preparation vehicles must be self­
contained. This requires that the pushcart, !£!!!.or food preparation vehicle is not connected
or attached to any building or structure, and does not receive power from any building by
means of wires, hoses, or other connections.



(2) Umbrellas or canopies must be attached to the pushcart !£!!!._or vehicle a��-pi�t not
exceed eight feet in height above grade. Maximum diameter of canopies and umbrella�all
not exceed six feet and shall not interfere with pedestrian movement. No mobile pushlar

\
t.

mobile tent or mobile food preparation vehicle shall have more than two umbrellas. 

(3) All signage on mobile pushcarts mobile tents and mobile food preparation vehicles shall
comply with the City of Jackson Sign Ordinance. No freestanding signage is permitted. 

(4) Mobile pushc�rts, mobile tents, and mobile food preparation vehicles must comply:_with
all local, state, and federal rules regarding sanitation and protection of food from airborne
contamination. 

(5) Mobile food vendors may place a maximum of three coolers within their containment
area so long as the coolers are neatly stacked to avoid visual clutter. 

(6) No accessory container shall be more than three feet from the unit.

(7) Accessory containers must be made of hard substances such as hard plastic or a metal
and may not be made by expanded polystyrene plastic, paper, paperboard, or cardboard. 

(8) Mobile food preparation vehicles may not have exterior Plug-ins, and visual clutter must
be minimal. 

(9) Mobile tents mav not exceed a 10 ft x 10 ft footprint unless the event allows a lareer size.
The canopy must be flame-retardant. The use of offsite [l9wer is _erohibited absent aJIW,rpval
b,· the Department of Planning and Economic Development and the Jackson Fire
Department. 

Sec. 66-81. Violations and penalties.

(a) All mobile food vending must be performed in compliance with said ordinance. Failure
to abide by said ordinance shall result in the following: 

(l) A fine not exc�eding $1S0.00 for a first violation which does not co»stitute operating with
a permit. 

(2) A fine not exceeding $250.00 for a second violation within one year of any prior violation
if the vio.latio.n does not constitute oJ!eratine. without a permit. 

(3) A fine not exceeding $500.00 for a third or more violation within one year of the first and
revocation of permit for violations which do nj)t constitute operating without a permit. 

(4) A fine of$500 and impoundment of eguipment for OJ!Crating without a permit.

(5} Operating in violation of health and fire codes will result in immediate closure and
revocation of the permit. 



�.··--, �j 
.. :,,,L.)�>{, 

(b) Any offense shall be considered a misdemeanor and is subject to being cited by any
authorized law enforcement official in the City of Jackson or with authority to do so in the·�::,
City of Jackson.

(c) Violation of this article may result in the suspension or revocation of any city permit or
license issued to the owner or operator of the mobile pushcart mobile tent or mobile food
preparation vehicle.

(d) Each day on which an infraction of the ordinance occurs shall be considered a separate
and distinct violation.

(e) All fmes collected shall go to the city's general fund.

(f) A .permit ma.:t be revoked if it is determined that a false or misleadin&, application was
submitted.

{g) A permit may be revoked for violating state or local safety or sanitation laws and 
regulations. 

Severabilil)'.. If ani section or provision of this ordinance is held invalid bl' a court of 
comlj!etent jurisdiction, then the same shall not oeerate to invalidate other provisions of the 
ordinance. The ordinance will remain in effect, but for the invalid �rovision. 

Conflict. With the exception of transit vendor ordinances or other ordinances related 
to mobile s,ervice vendors,\ mobile ho Iida,· vendors. and mobile tent vendors en2,aaied in the 
selling, of non-food items� this ordinance shall control and govern conflicts and inconsistences 
existine in other ordinances of the City of Jackson. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the approved ordinances shall become effective 
thirty (30) days after passage and publication, unless the governing authority finds that 
this ordinance is for the immediate and temporary preservation of public peace, health, or safety, 
or for other good cause, and it is adopted by a unanimous vote of all members of the governing 
body. In such cases, the ordinance may be made effective from and after its passage. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 10 POINT DATA SHEET 8/25/2025 

POINTS COMMENTS 

1. Brief Description/Purpose
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ARTICLE Ill 
("MOBILE FOOD VENDING") OF CHAPTER 
66 ("HEAL TH AND SANITATION"), 
ESTABLISHING DEFINITIONS, PERMIT 
TIERS, APPLICATION PROCEDURES, 
DESIGN AND OPERATIONAL STANDARDS, 

AND ENFORCEMENT, INCLUDING 
PROVISIONS FOR HOLIDAY VENDORS. 

2. Public Policy Initiative
1. Youth & Education 5. Economic Development

z. Crime Prevention
3. Changes in City Government
4. Neighborhood Enhancement
S. Economic Development
6. Infrastructure &Transportation
7. Quality of Life

3. Who will be affected All wards 
I 

4. Benef'lts To amend article iii ("mobile food vending") of 
chapter 66 

5. Schedule (beginning date)

6. Location: All Wards 
WARD 
CITYWIDE (yes or no) (area) 
Project limits if applicable 

7. Action implemented by:
Office of Economic Development 

_ X _ City Department
Consultant 

8. COST

9. Source of Funding N/A 

General Fund 
Grant 
Bond 

- Other

10. EBO participation ABE _%, WAIVER yes_ no_ NIA� 

AABE % WAIVER yes_ no_ NIA � 
WBE 

-
% WAIVER yes_ no 

-

NIA � 
HBE 

-
% WAIVER yes_ no 

-

NIA � 
NABE % WAIVER yes no NIA X 



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

n1■ ,.,�, 1111• 

JACKSON 
IO • lllllfo f 1 

MEMORANDUM 

John A. Horhn, Mayor 

Von Anderson, Interim Director, Department of Planning and Development � 

September 8, 2025 

ORDINANCE AMENDING MOBILE FOOD· VENDING ORDINANCE TO 
ADD THE ADDITIONAL CLASSIFICATION OF MOBILE TENT 
VENDOR, ESTABLISH FEES FOR EACH CLASS OF VENDOR, AND 
INCLUDE PROVISIONS ON SEVERABILITY AND CONFLICT 

This memorandum requests an Ordinance to authorize the Amendments to the Mobile Food 
Vending Ordinance to add the addilional classification of mobile tent vendor, establish fees for 
each class of vendor. 

Cc: Yika Hoover 



Office of the City Attorney 455 East Capitol Street 
Post Office Box 2779 
Jackson, Mississippi 39207-2779 
Telephone: (601) 960-1799 
Facsimile: (601) 960-1756 

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

This ORDINANCE AMENDING MOBILE FOOD VENDING ORDINANCE TO ADD THE 

ADDITIONAL CLASSIFICATION OF MOBILE TENT VENDOR, ESTABLISH FEES FOR EASH 

CLASS OF VENDOR, AND INCLUDE PROVISIONS ON SEVERABILITY AND CONFLICT is 
legally sufficient for placement in NOVUS Agenda. 

It 
rew Martin, City Attorney J 

Sondra Moncure, Special Assistant :tJ .. � q (t5� 
Carrie Johnson, Deputy City Attorney It-..� - r fl� 

. 
\ 

J 



'



r 

( 

•

•



·--·-----



ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI, 
RENAMING PEARL STREET FROM 1-55 TO PEARL STREET TO NORTH 
STATE STREET TO FRANK MELTON DRIVE. 

WHEREAS, Frank Melton, a native of Texas, arrived in Jackson, MS in 1984; he was 
chosen to head WLBT as the station's president and CEO, with longtime NAACP leader and state 
legislator, Aaron Henry as chairman; he became Mayor of Jackson on July 4, 2005 and remained 
until his death on May 7, 2009; and 

WHEREAS, Mr. Melton fought fearlessly against crime, illegal drugs and negligent 
parents; he was well known for his editorial, the Bottom Line; and 

WHEREAS, because of the tough stance of Mr. Melton, Governor Ronnie Musgrove 
appointed him to lead the Mississippi Bureau of Narcotics in 2002; Melton's statement was clear 
in reference to illegal drugs, "We can't win this war if we 're worried about what people think or 
what people are going to write or what people are going to say;" with that he proceeded to 
confront illegal drugs, for which some believed to be unconventional means; and 

WHEREAS, renaming the Pearl Street Bridge from I-55 to Pearl Street to North State Street to the 

Frank Melton Bridge serves as a tribute to his unwavering dedication, commitment, and loyalty to the City 

of Jackson, Mississippi and its citizen. It honors an individual who consistently acted in accordance with 

what was right, even when doing so was not popular or accepted by others. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the Jackson City Council hereby 
renames a portion of East Pearl Street to North State Street to Frank Melton Drive. 

SO ORDAINED, this the ___ day of September, 2025. 

Adoption of Ordinance 
Agenda Item No. __ 8 __ _ 

October 21, 2025 
BY: STOKES 





•





ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 
RENAMING THE PEARL STREET BRIDGE FROM 1-55 TO PEARL STREET TO 

NORTH STATE STREET TO THE FRANK MELTON BRIDGE 

WHEREAS, Frank Melton, a native of Texas, arrived in Jackson, MS in 1984; he was 
chosen to head WLBT as the station's president and CEO, with longtime NAACP leader and state 
legislator, Aaron Henry as chairman; he became Mayor of Jackson on July 4, 2005 and remained 
until his death on May 7, 2009; and 

WHEREAS, Mr. Melton fought fearlessly against crime, illegal drugs and negligent 
parents; he was well known for his editorial, the Bottom Line; and 

WHEREAS, because of the tough stance of Mr. Melton, Governor Ronnie Musgrove 
appointed him to lead the Mississippi Bureau of Narcotics in 2002; Melton's statement was clear 
in reference to illegal drugs, "We can't win this war if we 're worried about what people think or 
what people are going to write or what people are going to say; " with that he proceeded to 
confront illegal drugs, for which some believed to be unconventional means; and 

WHEREAS, renaming the Pearl Street Bridge from 1-55 to Pearl Street to North State 
Street to the Frank Melton Bridge serves as a tribute to his unwavering dedication, commitment, 
and loyalty to the City of Jackson, Mississippi and its citizen. It honors an individual who 
consistently acted in accordance with what was right, even when doing so was not popular or 
accepted by others. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the Jackson City Council hereby 
renames the Pearl Street Bridge from 1-55 South to Pearl Street to North State Street to the Frank 
Melton Bridge. 

SO ORDAINED, this the ___ day of September, 2025. 

Adoption of Ordinance 
Agenda Item No. 9

-----

October 21,025 
BY: STOKES 





( 





r 

( 



. _______ ,. ______ .







'5(�� 
�� 

•, " 

ORDER CONFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR JOHN A. . � HORHN TO THE CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI PLANNING AND \, �·-• .. DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, INC. (CMPDD). \ \V,;,,.

WHEREAS, Mayor John Horhn recommends that the City Council of Jackson,
Mississippi, appoint him to serve on CMPDD's Board of Directors to represent the municipality
in order to support and advance the civic improvement and economic development of the Jackson
Metropolitan Area; and

WHEREAS, according to CMPDD 's bylaw, "Article VI. Board ofDirectQis." the City of
Jackson shall appoint four (4) members to the Board of Directors - two (2) of which shall be
elected officials, one (1) from business and industry, and the other a minority representative; and

WHEREAS, the term of the office of all members of the Board of Directors shall be for
four ( 4) years; and

WHEREAS, after evaluation of his qualifications, the City Council has appointed Mayor
John Horhn to serve on CMPDD's Board of Directors to rcpresentthe municipality to aid and
promote the civic improvement and economic development of the Jackson Metropolitan Area.

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that John A. Horhn be appointed to serve on
CMPDD's Board of Directors and confirmed with a term to expire on June 30, 2029.

Agenda Item: ___ _
Date: October 21, 2025
By: Horhn

Agenda Item No.: \ 2-October 21, 2025
Horhn

\ 



Offlee of the City Attorney 455 East Capitol Street 
Post Office Box 2779 
Jackson, Mississippi 39207-2779 
Telephone: (601) 960-1799 
Facsimile: (601) 960-1756 

� 
\��� 

\�� 

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY � 
�· 

This ORDER CONFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR JOHN. A. HORHN TOT� 
CENTRAL MISSISSIPPI PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, INC. (CMPDD) is 
legally sufficient for placement in NOVUS Agenda . 

• 

Drew Martin, City Attorney 
Sondra Moncure, Special Assistant ____ -"--UK. __ • __

Date 



Central Mississippi 

Planning and Development District, Inc. 

By-Laws 

Article I 

Name of Organization 

The name of the organization shall be "Central Mississippi Planning and Development 

District, Incorporated." 

is: 

Article II 

Purpose 

The purpose of the Central Mississippi Planning and Development District, Incorporated 

a) To aid and promote the civic improvement and economic development of the

following seven (7) counties comprising the District: Copiah, Hinds, Madison,

Rankin, Simpson, Warren, and Yazoo and the Jackson Metropolitan Area.

b) To provide technical assistance which will be useful in alleviating or preventing

conditions of excessive unemployment or underemployment within the District's

jurisdiction. Such assistance includes, but is not limited to, project planning and

feasibility studies, management and operational assistance, and studies evaluating

the needs of, and developing potentialities for, economic growth of the District.

Such assistance may be provided by the District staff or through the employment

of private individuals, pa rtnerships, firms, corporations, or other suitable

institutions under contracts entered into for such purposes.



c) to promote, stimulate, deve]op, and advance economic potentia1s, business

prosperity, and the genera] welfare of the United States and its citizens, and State

of Mississippi and its citizens, and citizens of the Central Mississippi Planning

and Development District. Such promotion, stimulation, development, and

advancement includes, but is not limited to:

l. Promoting, stimulating, deve]oping, and advancing the cooperation

between public and private enterprises in the economic development

of depressed areas.

2. Harnessing the varied resources and abilities availab]e to the counties

comprising the District to build a solid base for expanding industry.

3. Cooperating with Federal and State Governments by assisting

communities, areas, counties, and regions suffering substantial and

persistent unemployment and underemployment by taking effective steps

in planning and financing the public works and development facilities.

4. Promoting cooperation among officials at every level of government -

local, county, state and federaJ.

d) To foster, develop, and review policies, plans, and priorities for regional growth,

development, and conservation.

e) To review and coordinate federal, state, and local programs ofregional

importance, and to administer the reviewing of those programs designated for

review under Federal Executive Order Number 12372.



Article III 

Membership 

-------"S
:..:::
e
..::.
ct

.c.::
i
=.:
on

""""'
l
.;..
. --=E�li

..:a
gt:.::.b:..::il:=.il:.....V - The membership of Central Mississippi P]anning and 

Development District, Incorporated shall be composed of persons appointed to represent their 

respective local governmental unit on the Board of Directors and/or various committees which 

are established or may be established by the Board of Directors of the District. 

Section 2. Composition of Members - The members ofCentra] Mississippi Planning 

and Development District, Incorporated shall represent all segments of the economy --­

agricultural, educational, financial, business, labor, professional, local, county, and state 

governments, civic interests, and representatives of minority groups. 

Section 3. Admissions and Withdrawals - Any local governmental unit situated 

within the counties of Copiah, Hinds, Madison, Rankin, Simpson, Warren, and Yazoo may 

become participants or withdraw from the Central Mississippi Planning and Development 

District, Incorporated. Admission and withdrawal procedures are as follows: 

a) Admission. A majority of the govemmental unit's governing body must signify

by means of a formal resolution or order of its intent to be admitted, and said

resolutions or order is forwarded to the Board of Directors for their approval or

disapproval.

b) Withdrawal. A majority of the governmental unit's governing body must signify

by means of a formal resolution or order of its intent to withdraw, and said

resolution or order must state the reasons for withdrawal from the District. The

resolution or order must be forwarded to the Board of Directors. If any



governmental unit should withdraw from the District, it will forfeit its financial 

contribution for the remainder of the fiscal year and it will lose 123 72 review of 

all Federal ly fµnded projects within its jurisdiction. All funds being administered 

or under the authority of the District being received or eligible to be received 

within the governmental unit's jurisdiction, will immediately cease upon receipt 

of the withdrawal resolution or order. 

Section 4. Conflicts of Interest- No person shall be appointed to the District Board 

of Directors who is in a position to exercise any function of responsibility in the review or 

approval or undertaking or carrying out of the District overall program, which affects or could 

affect his or her personal interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association in 

which he or she is directly or indirectly interested or has any personal pecuniary interest direct or 

indirect. No officer, member, agent, or employee of the District shall engage in any activity 

which will provide financial benefit as a result of his or her relationship with the District above 

that to which he or she legally is entitled through direct compensation. This section shall be 

strictly adhered to in order to prevent any covert, as well as overt conflicts. 

Section 1. 

Article IV 

Officers 

Officers - The officers of the Central Mississippi Planning and 

Development District, Incorporated Board of Directors shall consist of a President, a Vice­

President, and Secretary-Treasurer. These officers shall be elected at the June meeting of the 

Board of Directors. 



Section 2. Term of Office -The officers of the Board of Directors shall serve two 

year terms beginning immediately upon election. 

Section 3. Nominatine Committee � The Nominating Committee shall be appointed 

by the President of the Board of Directors. 

Section 4. Election of Officers - The Officers of the Board of Directors for the 

District shall be elected at the June Meeting of the Board of Directors. The current Vice­

President will automatically be elevated to the office of President. 

Section 5. Duties of Officers - The Officers of the Centa] Mississippi Planning and 

Development District, Incorporated shall perform the following duties: 

a) President - The President shall be the Chief Official of the Corporation. He shall

give such counsel and advice which, from time to time, may by him be deemed

essential to the best interests of the District, and see that all orders and resolutions

of the Board of Directors are carried into effect. He shall perform all other duties

incidental to the office and any that may be required of him by the laws of the

State of Mississippi and such other duties as, from time to time, may be assigned

to him by the Board of Directors. He shall preside at all meetings of the Board of

Directors and at all meetings of the Steering Co1mnittee.

b) Vice-President- In the absence ofthe President, the Vice-President shall have all

the powers and shall perform all the duties of the President. The Vice-President

shall also be a member of the Steering Committee.

c) Secretary-Treasurer - It shall be the duty of the Secretary-Treasurer or his

representative to record the presence of the members of the Board of Directors at



the beginning of each meeting. He or his designated representative shall also be 

responsible for presenting the Minutes from prior meetings to the Board of 

Directors for additions or corrections. After approval by the Board of Directors, 

the Minutes will be subscribed, dated, and placed in the Official Minute Book by 

the Secretary-Treasurer. The Secretary-Treasurer shall be the designated officer 

responsible for counter signing warrants drawn on,the District's accounts and 

shall be covered by the District's financial bond. 

Section 6. Vacancies of Officer - If any office is vacated during a tenn, then that 

office shall be filled by an election held at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of 

Directors. The election procedures followed to fill the vacancy shall conform to those outlined 

by Article IV, Section 4 of these By- Laws. 

Section 1. 

Article V 

Board of Directors 

Regular Meetings - A regular meeting of the Board of Directors shall be 

held the second Wednesday of each third calendar month. Notice will forwarded to each 

member of the Board of Directors and his alternate prior to the meeting specifying the pJace and 

time of the meeting. If the regular meeting conflicts with a holiday or other major event, notice 

will be given and the meeting rescheduled. 

Section 2. Annual Meetimi - The annual meeting shall be the regularly scheduled 

meeting on the second Wednesday in the second quarter. Notice of the annual meeting shall be 

made in the same manner as prescribed for the regular meetings. 

Section 3. Special Meetings - Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be 



called by the President of the Board of Directors, Steering Committee or the Chief Executive 

Officer in consultation with the President or Steering Committee. Notice of said special meeting 

shall be forwarded to each Board member and his alternate in sufficient time to attend the 

meeting. 

Section 1. 

Article VI 

Board of Directors 

Membership - The Board of Supervisors of each of the following counties: 

Copiah, Hinds, Madison, Rankin, Simpson, Warren and Yazoo, shall appoint three (3) persons to 

serve on the Board of Directors - one ( 1) shall be a county official, one (1) shall be from 

business and industry, and one (1) shall be a minority representative. The Mayors of each 

municipality within the respective counties, excluding Jackson in Hinds County, shall meet and 

select one (1) member to represent the municipalities as the fourth member of the Board of 

Directors from their county. The City of Jackson shall appoint four ( 4) members to the Board of 

Directors - two (2) of which shall be elected officials, one (1) from business and industry, and 

the other a minority representative. Board members are encouraged to represent a wide variety 

of interests and may be eligible for cJassification in more than one categoy. The past President of 

the District Board of Directors shall remain a member of the District Board, as well as the 

Steering Committee, in a non-voting capacity, if not reappointed to the Board of Directors. The 

Board of Directors is empowered to appoint up to three (3) Directors At-Large for a two (2) year 

term, as they deem necessary. 

Section 2. Alternates - Each member of the Board of Directors may appoint one (1) 

person as an alternate to attend Board of Directors meetings. The alternate's name shall be 

submitted in writing by each Board member to the Board of Directors within 30 days after 



appointment to the Board. While the designation of a permanent alternate is the preferred 

method of absentee voting, a member of the Board of Directors may choose to appoint an 

individual to represent him/her on a meeting by meeting basis. Each Board member shall have 

one (1) vote; if the Board member is absent, his alternate shall have all the rights and privileges 

of said Board member, which will entitle the alternate to said Board member's vote. If both the 

Board member and the alternate are in attendance, the alternate will not have any of the rights 

and privileges of membership, nor the power to vote. 

Section 3. Attendance - If any member of the Board of Directors or his appointed 

alternate is absent for three (3) successive meetings of the Board, a letter shall be issued to that 

Board member's appointing body informing them that the Board member is in violation of the 

By-Laws of the District and that a new member must be appointed to the Board of Directors. 

Section 4. Quorum -A quorum of the Board of Directors shall consist of a majority 

of its total voting membership. 

Section 5. Voting - A majority of the members of the Board of Directors casting 

votes is required in order to adopt or pass a motion, resolution, or other official action. 

Section 6. Term of Office - The term of office of all members of the Board of 

Directors shall be for four (4) years. These appointments will begin shortly after the new cycle 

of local officials are elected· and installed in office for their four ( 4) year terms. This new process 

will begin with the 2015 elections. The current Board of Directors and Officers will remain in 

place during this transition. The tenure of office of members of the Board of Directors shall be 

terminated at death, resignation, or at the time of the election of his successor, and Directors who 

are elected to office shall commence immediately to serve their term of office. In the event that a 

person is appoi11ted to the Board of Directors in the capacity of an elected official and that 

e]ected official should vacate his elected position, then membership on the District Board of



Directors shall also tenninate at that time. TI1e unit of government which was responsible for 

that appointment shall then make another appointment of an elected official. 

Section 7. Duties of the Board of Directors - The Board of Directors shall have the 

following duties and responsibiJities: 

a) To employ such personnel for the operation of the District as they deem necessary

and delegate such duties to such personnel as the Board may deem advisable. The

Board of Directqrs shall also have the power to discharge any person so employed

by it.

b) To approve a budget for the operation of the District for each fiscal year.

c) To recommend and approve regional policies, studies, plans, or other appropriate

matters.

d) To seek and coordinate the assistance of State and Federal agencies having

interest in promoting the objectives of the Central Mississippi Planning and

Development District, Incorporated.

e) To equip and maintain an office or offices to administer the affairs of the District.

f) To receive, for the Corporation, money, material labor, or property from private

individuals, private corporations, and city, county, state, and federal governments.

Section 8. Teleconferencing, Video-Conferencing, E-Mail, Facsimile and Mail 

Balloting. These types of meeting and/or votes may be used only for Board of Directors and 

Committee action. These procedures are only to be used between regularly scheduled meetings 

and must address an issue which is time sensitive. All actions taken by this method must be 

ratified and incorporated in the Minutes of the next scheduled meeting. 



Article VII 

Committees 

Section 1. Steerinu Committee - The Steering Committee will be granted the 

authority to act for the Board of Directors between regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of 

Directors. The Steering Connnittee will help direct policy and administrative functions and will 

be a source of guidance to the Chief Executive Officer. The Steering Committee will be 

governed by the same rules and procedures as the Board of Directors and shall maintain adequate 

records and minutes to document actions and proceedings. The membership of the Steering 

Committee sha11 include: Immediate Past President of the Board of Directors, Current President, 

Vice-President, and Secretary-Treasurer of the Board of Directors. The ex-officio members of 

the Committee will be empowered to appoint between three and five members to the Steering 

Committee from the membership of the Board of Directors who shall be reflective of the 

Districts racial, urban and ruraJ composition. TI1e President of the Board of Directors shall serve 

as Chairman; the President, Vice-President, or Chief Executive Officer shall have the authority to 

call meetings of this Committee. 

Section 2. Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) - The Metropolitan Planning 

Organization (MPO) shall have the responsibility for the policy decisions affecting overall 

growth and development unique to the Jackson Metropolitan Area. The principal function of the 

MPO will be to seek common solutions to mutual problems affecting more than one 

governmental unit within the highly urbanized counties of Hinds, Madison, and Rankin. The 

Metropolitan Planning Organization shall be governed by the same rules and procedures as the 

Board of Directors for regular and special meetings and quorum. It shall keep such records and 

make such reports as deemed necessary to keep the full Board of Directors informed of its 

actions. The Chainnan of the MPO shall be elected by a majority vote from the membership of 



the MPO. The MPO may also choose to elect a Vice-Chairman if it deems necessary. The MPO 

shall meet as needed. The MPO shall consist of the elected officials currently serving on the 

District's Board of Directors from the City of Jackson and the counties of Hinds, Madison and 

Rankin. Also, each municipality not otherwise represented, within the Urban Transportation 

Planning Study Boundary, shall appoint one (1) member to this MPO. Membership in this MPO 

shall also include the County Administrator/Comptroller from Hinds, Madison and Rankin 

Counties unless the respective Boards of Supervisors chose to designate someone else. The four 

(4) minority representatives from the City of Jackson and counties of Hinds, Madison and Rankin

shall also be members of this MPO. Also serving as a voting member of this MPO for 

transportation related matters will be the Du:ector of the Mississippi Department of 

Transportation. The MPO is authorized to appoint up to three (3) additional at-large members as 

deemed necessary. 

Section 3. Special Committees - The Board of Directors shall have the authority to 

appoint any special committee that they deem necessary for the efficient operation of the 

District's affairs. These committees may include but not be limited to the following: Aging 

Advisory, Revolving Loan Fund, Metropolitan Planning Organization, Mississippi Small 

Business Loan, Local Workforce Development Board, and, if deemed necessary, an Economic 

Advisory Committee. 

Section 4. Arbitration Committee - Should any member political subdivision (County 

or Municipality) feel aggrieved at any decision of the Board of Directors, the Steering 

Committee, or the Metropolitan Planning Policy Committee, a written request may be made to 

the President of the Board of Directors for an arbitration hearing. At such hearing there shall be 

present appropriate State or Federal representatives if such agencies are involved, the President 

of the Board of Directors of the Central Mississippi Planning and Development District, 



Incorporated, and a designated representative of the aggrieved party. Opportunity shall be given 

for a presentation of the facts relative to the problem and a decision reached as to the merits of 

the case. The final statement of this Committee shall be presented in the form of a written 

statement of recommendations to the Board of Directors of the Central Mississippi Planning and 

Development District, Inc, and will be subject to their review and final action. 

Article VIII 

Amendments To B,. •Laws 

Section 1. Amendments - These By-Laws may be amended at any regular or special 

meeting of the Board of Directors by an affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the total 

membership of said Board. Written notice of said amendment and a copy of the amendment 

shall be sent to each member of the Board of Directors at least five (5) days prior to any said 

meeting. 



r 

{ 





//;.:, 
ORDER CONFIRMING MAYOR JOHN HORHN'S APPOINTMEN;��--­
JILLIAN CALDWELL AS CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF THE CITY )J/, 
OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI / ,(ii,_· 

. ')/'. WHEREAS, on October 21, 2025, the Mayor appointed Jillian Caldwell as Chief ? � 
Financial Officer for the City of Jackson, Mississippi; and

WHEREAS, the appointment came before the City Council for confirmation as required
by Mississippi Code §21-8-23 which specifies the city may have a "department of administration
and other departments the council may establish by ordinance"; and

WHEREAS, Jackson Municipal Code Chapter 2, Article IV, Section 2-336 establishes
additional city departments and states "[t]he department of administration shall perform the
functions of finance and management, fleet management, purchasing and municipal courtservices"; and 

WHEREAS, Jackson Municipal Code Chapter 2, Article III, Section 2-331 creates the
position of Chief Financial Officer; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the appointment, and a majority of the
Council present and voting has detennined that the appointment should be confirmed.

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED by the City Council of the City of Jackson, 
Mississippi, that the appointment of Jillian Caldwell as Chief Financial Officer for the City of
Jackson, Mississippi, is hereby confirmed.

Agenda Item: _____ _Date: October 21, 2025 By: Horhn

Agenda Item No.:_l..;..,J.-,,:.._ __ 
October 21, 2025
Horhn



Office of the City Attorney 455 East Capitol Street 
Post Office Box 2779 Jackson, Mississippi 39207-2779
Telephone: (601)960-1799 Facsimile: (601) 960-� 

--� 
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY i,,._ 

�

This ORDER CONFIRMING THE MAYOR JOHN HORHN'S APPOINTMENT OF JILLIAN 
CALDWELL AS CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF THE CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI is 
legally sufficient for placement in NOVUS Agenda. 

Drew Martin, City Attorney (} 
Sondra Moncure, Special Assistant� ,CJ'tl;. lOl li\1> S 
Megan Bennett, Deputy City Attorney /lfK5 

IP§f'/2S---
nate 



OBJECTIVE: 

EDUCATION: 

EXPERIENCE: 

JILLIAN ANDERSON CALDWELL 

Seeking the opportunity to serve as Chieffinancial Officer for the City of Jackson where I can 
leverage my skills, expertise and training in governmental accounting, financial management, 
and public sector reporting to enhance financial operations and uphold the highest standards of 
accountability. 

Mississippi College School of Business (ACBSP Accredited) 
Master of Business Administration 

Major: Business Administration 

.Jackson State University College of Business (AACSB Accredited) 

Bachek>r of Business Administration 
Major: Accounting 

City of Jackson 
July 2017 - Present 

CONTROLLER 

Department of Administration 

Clinton, MS 
December 2009 

Jackson,MS 

May 2005 

Jackson, MS 

• Plan and direct the activities of the payroll, accounts payable, general ledger, fixed assets,
and grants management sections of the Controller's Office

• Process all federal and state financial reporting as it relates to payroll, accounts payable,
and grants management

• Assist vendors to resolve issues with payments and facilitate a smooth, efficient experience
throughout their engagement with the City

• Assist employees with a variety of issues to ensure they are paid timely and accurately
• Provide support to the Chief Financial Officer
• Communicate updates regarding the City's financial performance to internal and external

users
• Compile the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)
• Participate in discussions with bond rating agencies
• Prepare and analyze difficult and complex financial reports
• Select, train, motivate and evaluate professional, technical, and clerical accounting staff
• Develop and implement goals, objectives, policies, and priorities for the Controller's

Office
• Assist, supervise, and participate in daily activities of the Purchasing, Treasury, and

Budget Offices
• Assist with securing and managing Jong-term funding to finance large-scale spe.cial projects

• Attend conferences and trainings offered by the Government Finance Officers Association
• Provide citywide training on Tyler Munis ERP
• Assisted with implementation of Tyler Munis ERP

City of Jackson Department of Administration 
December 2016 - July 2017 
ASSISTANT FINANCE MANAGER 

Jackson, MS 

• Planned and directed the activities of the general ledger, fixed assets, and grants
management sections of the Finance Division



EXPERIENCE: 

Jillian Anderson Caldwel� Page 2 

ASSISTANT FINANCE MANAGER (Continued) 

• Reviewed assignments completed by staff including, but not limited to, monthly and
quarterly reports

• Advised departments and divisions on accounting problems, policies, and procedures;
assists in the maintenance of proper controls

• Participated in the preparation of difficult and complex financial reports
• Supervised the work of staff involved in general ledger activities

City of Jackson Deparhnent of Administration 
February 2015 - December 2016 
SENIOR ACCOUNTANT 

Jackson,MS 

• Planned, directed, and supervised the activities of the grants management section of the
Finance Division

• Reviewed assignments completed by Accountant II including, but not limited to, quarterly
reports and CAFR statements

• Made decisions and recommendations regarding accuracy and fairness of presentation
• Provided information and assistance to other departments and divisions regarding the

development of budget documents
• Prepared complex financial statements in accordance with GAAP
• Provided assistance in the preparation of the annual audit report; provided assistance to

auditors as requested
• Supervised the work of staff involved in grants management activities
• Provided administrative and professional leadership and direction for assigned area of

responsibility

City of Jackson Department of Administration 
De�ember 2008 - February 2015 
ACCOUNTANT 11 

• Retrieved advances and reimbursements from funding agencies
• Prepared and submitted required periodic reports to funding agencies

Jackson, MS 

• Provided responsibility over the grants management section of the Finance Division
• Maintained appropriate documentation on all expenses and cash requests
• Provided support and assisted program grant managers with budget preparation, account

analysis, and other grant related issues
• Analyzed and reconcliled all revenue accounts
• Prepared Single Audit in accordance with 0MB Circular A-133
• Reviewed cash receipts and assigned proper account numbers for posting to the general

ledger
• Ensured compliance with organization fiscal policies and procedures
• Analyzed and interpreted accounting rccoJds and prepare accurate and complete financial

reports



EXPERIENCE: 

HONORS& 

ACTIVITIES: 

SKILLS: 

REFERENCES: 

Jillian Anderson Caldwell, Page 3 

City of Jackson Department of Administration 

June 2005 - December 2008 
ACCOUNTANT I 

• Maintained and reconciled a variety of ledgers and accounts
• Performed daily data entry procedures within the accounting system
• Prepared and processed travel vouchers for aU city employees
• Responsible for timely closeout of all travel accounts
• Investigated claims for duplicate accounts payable and petty cash checks
• Assisted in preparation of the annual audit

Jackson, MS 

City of Jackson Department of Public Works Jackson, MS 

June 2004-June 2005 
ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARY 

• Responsible for processing payroll, requisitions and payments
• Composed and generated requisitions in the JJMS system
• Assisted in annual Public Works Parking Meters Division audit
• Examined accounting transactions to ensure accuracy for the Parking Meters Division
• Created and designed the J •1 Public Works Parking Meter Tracking System
• Assisted with Public Works Department Accreditation

W.E.B. DuBois Honors College 

Accounting Society 
Government Finance Officers Association 

National Honor Society 

Dean's List Scholar 

Ability to proficiently navigate Tyler Munis ERP, Microsoft Office Suite, Internet, Cayenta 
Financial Systems, Kronos Workforce System, AssetWorks, Incircuit, muhiple Federal and 
State online portals 

Available Upon Request 





r 

t 





a 
ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE T�� 
RENEW AL OF THE 12-MONTH CITYWORKS LICENSE 
AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT WITH AZTECA 
SYSTEMS, LLC - CITYWORKS SOFTWARE FOR THE 
RECEIPT AND TRACKING OF ALL NON-EMERGENCY 
CONSTITUENT SERVICE REQUESTS 

WHEREAS, Constituent Services recommends that the governing authorities authorize
the Mayor, by ratification, to renew the City's 311 Action Line license and maintenance 
agreement and authorize payment to continue to provide an avenue for residents to submit a 
request for non-emergency services; and, 

WHEREAS, Constituent Services utilizes the 311 Action Line to track and monitor
constituent requests for all non-emergency service requests, including, but not limited to, 
pothole repair, traffic signs and signals repairs, drainage maintenance, and the like; and, 

WHEREAS, Azteca Systems, LLC offers to the City of Jackson a one-year license and
maintenance agreement for an amount of $62, 771.28.00 for the following products: 

I Product Name-- Quantit>. 
AMS ELA Custom 1.00 
Storeroom 1.00 

Equipment Checkout 1.00 
Cityworks Analytics - AMS 1.00 
CCTV Interface for P ACP 1.00 

, Pavement ManaS?,ement 1.00 
Service ReQuest API 1.00 

- -·-- ··-" 

Net Unit Price 
USD 62,771.28 
USD 0.00 
USD0.00 
USD·0.00 
USD0.00 
USD0.00 
USD 0.00 

-

WHEREAS, the Administration represents that thls non-emergency request line is
imperative to ensure the timely and consistent recording, monitoring, and managing of 
constituents' service requests; and, 

WHEREAS, on or about September 23, 2020, the City of Jackson executed an
agreement with Azteca Systems, LCC, located at 11075 S. State Street, Suite 24, Sandy, Utah 
84070, for the maintenance and technical support of the Cityworks software; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Jackson has executed renewals each year since, the last of
which was from September 08, 2024 through September 07, 2025; and, 

WHEREAS, Section 5.1 of the 2020 Agreement provides that the License Agreement
and its maintenance provisions may then be renewed annually by payment of the then-current 
maintenance fees for the next annual maintenance period; and, 

Agenda Item No.: __ 14 __ 
October 21, 2025 
Lott, Horhn 



WHEREAS, the essential tenns of the renewal, all of which is attached and fully 
incorporated into the minutes, incorporates the 2020 Agreement provisions in whole, and the tenns 
and conditions of the executed Cityworks Software License Agreement (2020) apply to the quote 
unless otherwise specifically stated therein; and, 

WHEREAS, Miss. Code Ann. · § 2 I -17-5 provides the governing authorities of every 
municipality of this state shall have the care, management and control of the municipal affairs and 
its property and finances and the governing authorities of municipalities shall have the power to 
adopt any orders, resolutions or ordinances with respect to such municipal affairs, property and 
finances which are not inconsistent with the Mississippi Constitution of 1890, the Mississippi Code 
of 1972, or any other statute or law of the State of Mississippi; and, 

WHEREAS, in accordance with·:the City of Jackson's Personal and Professional Services 
Procurement Policy (Aug. 2024) Section 3.4, the renewal of a contract may be awarded without 
competition ifit is deemed in the best interest of the City, and the services provided are necessary 
to meet the City's operational needs. 

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED AND HEREBY RATIFIED that the governing 
authorities authorize the Mayor to execute the 12-month lease renewal quote with Azteca Systems, 
LLC, beginning September 08, 2025 through September 07, 2026. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Mayor's office is authorized to make payment in 
an amount not to exceed $62,771.28 as set forth in this Order. 

Agenda Item: __ _ 
Date: 
By: Lott, Horhn 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 10 POINT DATA SHEET 10-10-2025
DATE 

��--

f .. IPOINTS COMMENTS 

I BrieO.lescription 
ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE 

RENEW AL OF THE 12-MONTH CITYWORK.S LICENSE AND 
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT WITH AZTECA SYSTEMS, LLC 

- CITYWORKS SOFTWARE FOR THE RECEIPT AND

TRACKING OF ALL NON-EMERGENCY CONSTITUENT

SERVICE REQUESTS
f-

2. Public Policy Initiative
l. Youth & Education Infrastructure and Transportation 
2. Crime Prevention Quality of Life 
3. Changes in City Government 
4. Neighborhood Enhancement Changes in City Government 

s. Ecoaomic Development Neighborhood Enhancement 
6. Infrastructure and Tra■sportation 
7. Quality of Life 

3. Who will be affected
All Departments 

4. Benefits
The Cityworks (311) database serves to track and monitor constituent concerns
related to City of Jackson programs and services. 

5. Schedule (beginning date)
ASAP 

� 
6. Location: 

• WARD Citywide 

• CITYWIDE (yes or no) (area)

■ Project limits if applicable
-

7. Action implemented by:
• City Department

D City Department 

• Consultant D 

--

8. COST
$62,771.28.00 - Renewal Maintenance Support Cost (Azteca) 

9. Source of Funding
• General Fund • Account# 001-493.00-6419 

• Grant CJ 
• Bond CJ 
• Other D 

I 

10. EBO participation ABE % WAIVER yes_ no NIA --
AABE % WAIVER yes_ no - NIA _x_ 

'
WEE % WAIVER yes_ no - NIA X --

l 
HBE % WAIVER yes_ no - NIA _x_ 

L_ 
NABE % WAIVER yes no NIA X 



Office of the City Attorney 455 East Capitol Street 
Post Office Box 2779 
Jackson, Mississippi 39207-2779 
Telephone; (601) 960-1799 
Facsimile; ( 60 I) 9 · 6 

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

This ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE RENEWAL OF TH 1 
MONTH CITYWORKS LICENSE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT WITH AZT CA 
SYSTEMS, LLC- CITYWORKS SOFTWARE FOR THE RECEIPT AND TRACKING · F 
ALL NON-EMERGENCY CONSTITUENT SERVICE REQUESTS is legally sufficient for 
placement in NOVUS Agenda. 

J;tt/4/· 
Drew Martin, City Attorney 

Sondra Moncure, Special Assistant�=,.----\\,'�� 
Chelsea Chicosky, Deputy City Attorne_

'"
·-__,�-L+,:,:..., 



TO: 
FROM.: DATE: 

CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 

Purchasing D1v�1on The bffice of l\fayor October 13, 2025' RE: Exception to Procurement Policy - Person:al/Profes·sional Services Contract 
Pursuant to the City'.s Procurement Policy, this memorandum documents an Exceptio1l'to, Policf for the award of a contJ:act for grant manav�mcnt cqnslllting senr1ces. 
Justification for Exception: In acco:r:dance with the P:r:ovision 3.4 of the City\ Pro¢qrelnent Policy, tlus renewal contract is being awarded without competibon as it is deemed to be rn the best interest of the City. No i-ea·sonal::ile .alternative sour¢es _exist, and the services provided ;;ii:e necessary to meet the City\ operational needs: 
Vendor Information: • Vendor: .Azteca Systems, LLC - CiryWorks• Description of Services: A. Scope of Sen•ices and list of Deliverables is in the attachedsuppo1tiilg doc·umerttMion.• Estimated Contract Value: $62,771.28 for a 12-month term.• Funding Source: City General F1.1rtd
Supporting Documentation; Supporting documentation in the form of a dnift conti;act is attached and will be main tamed in the City's f111ancial system as a public record. 
Required Approyals Title j Narne � Si_g_n_a_n_u_·e_· ____ _ Department Nie Lott, 

l' Dimto, fomtnuni"'tion, _ ,/ � .\ C'.ity Attorney ID, ''-"'" -IJJ.)-
/4

+-,�==--� 

Page 1 of2 

Date 

t 



Interim Chief 

Financial 

Officer 

Chief 

Administrative 

Officer 

Mayor 

Jillian Caldwell 

➔-
Pieter 

Tceuwisscn 

! . -

John Horhn 

Purchasing Division Use Only 

D Documentation reviewed and approved 

Reviewer: ________ _ Date: 

D Purchase order issued 

P.ige 2 of2 



: 

Contact Information 

Contact Name: 

Customer: 

Contact 
Address: 

Quote Lines 

Product Name 

AMS ELA Custom 

Storeroom 

Equipment Checkout 

Azt!!Q S15tems, LLC - Otyworks 
11075 S State St, Sufte 24 I Sandy, UT 84070 
801-523-2751 I Fax# 801-523·3734

Andrew Boone 

Jackson (MS), City of 

200 S. President St., Rm 405 
Jackson, MS 
39201 

Cityworks Analytics - AMS 

CCTV Interface for PACP 

' Pavement Management 

Service Request API 

Notes 

Year 1 Dollar Value USO 62,n1,28 

Prepared By 
Name: 

Prepared By 
Phone: 

Prepared By 
Email: 

-

Year 1 Date Range 

Maintenance Start Date: 9/8/2025 Maintenance End Date: 9/7/2026 

Quote Notes: 

Quote Number 

Created Date 

Kristi Ross 

Q-40105-1 

6/3/2025 

(916) 294-2234

kristi_ross@trimble.com 

� --Pd0e
1 

1.00 USO 62,771.28 

1.00 USD 0.00 

1.00 USO 0.00 

1.00 USD0.00 

1.00 USO 0.00 

1.00 USD 0.00 

1.00 USD0.00 

TOTAL: USO 62,771.28 

9/8/2025 - 917/2026 

Price has increased to reflect adjustment from the previous year. This change will take effect on your next 
annual renewal. 

Terms and Conditions 

Payment Terms 
Payment due within 30 days 

IF YOUR ORGANIZATION REQUIRES A PURCHASE ORDER, PLEASE CONTACT YOUR FINANCE DEPARTMENT TO BEGIN THE APPROVAL 
PROCESS TO AVOID PAYMENT DELAYS. 

I 



All quotations are valid for ninety-days (90) from the date above, unless otherwise stated in this quotation form. All prices quoted are in 
USO, unless specifically provided otherwise, above. These prices and terms are valid only for items purchased for use and delivery for 
the Customers listed above. 

Unless otherwise referenced, this quotation is for the Cityworks software products referenced above only. Pricing for implementation 
services (installation, configuration, training, etc.), or other software applications is provided separately and upon request. 

The procurement, installation and administration of the Esri software or any other third-party software utilized in conjunction with 
Cityworks will be the responsibility of the Customer. 

For "on-prem" installations, the procurement, installation and administration of the RDBMS utilized in conjunction with Cityworks 
will be the responsibility of the Customer. Currently, Cityworks supports Oracle and SQL Server. The procurement. installation and 
administration of the infrastructure 
(hardware and networking) utilized in conjunction with Cityworks will be the responsibility of the Customer. 

This quotation and the pricing information herein is confidential and p'roprietary and may not be copied or released other than for the 
express purpose of the current system Software and Product selection and purchase. This infonnation may not be given to outside 
parties or used for any other purpose without written consent from Azteca Systems, LLC or unless otherwise specifically permitted by 
law. If a "public access" or similar request is made, Customer, shall notify Azteca Systems, prior to any disclosure. 

Software Licensing 
All Azteca Systems software offered in this quotation are commercial off-the-shelf (COTS) software developed at private expense, and 
is subject to the terms and conditions of the signed "Cityworks Software License and Maintenance Agreemenr ("Agreement") and any 
and all addendums or amendments thereto. A fully executed copy of the Agreement and any addendum(s) is required before delivery 
and installation and usage of the software is subject to the terms of the current license agreement. 

The terms and conditions of the executed Cityworks Software License Agreement apply to this Quote unless otheiwise specifically 
stated herein. Any additional or conflicting terms set forth in any purchase orders, invoices, or other standard form documents 
exchanged during the ordering process, other than product descriptions, quantities, pricing, and dates are void and of no effect. 

Delivery method is by way of download through Azteca Systems. LLC. customer support web portal. 

Taxes 
Prices quoted do not include any applicable state, sales, local, or use taxes unless so stated. In preparing your budget and/or Purchase 
Order, please allow for any applicable taxes, including, sales, state, local or use taxes as necessary. Azteca Systems reserves the 
right to collect any applicable sales, use or other taxes tax assessed by or as required by law. Azteca Systems reserves the right to 
add any applicable tax to the invoice, unless proof with the order is shown that your organization or entity is tax exempt or if it pays any 
applicable tax.directly. 

International Customers 
These items are controlled by the U.S. government and authorized for export only to the country of ultimate destination for use by the 
ultimate consignee or end-user(s) herein identified. They may not be resold, transferred, or otherwise disposed of, to any other country 
or to any person other than the authorized ultimate consignee or end-user(s), either in their original form or after being incorporated into 
other items, without first obtaining approval from the U.S. government or as otherwise authorized by U.S. law and regulations. 

Your signature indicates your acceptance of this Quote, and that you have read and accepted the Terms and Conditions 
set forth above. 

Accepted by: 

Title 

---'--�/ __ _

Date 

Azteca Systems, LLC - Cityworks I 11075 South Stale Street Suite 24, Sandy, UT 84070 I Corporate Main 801-523-2751 I Corporate Fax 801-523-3734 



( 





ORDER RATIFYING THE EMERGENCY PROCUREMENT OF W 
DEVELOPMENT AND SUPPORT SERVICES FROM RED LAS._,.� 
TECHNOLOGY, INC,· AND AUTHORIZING THE PAYMENT • F 
INVOICE #202500187 IN THE AMOUNT OF $33,000.00 AND 
FURTHER AUTHORIZING THE PROCUREMENT OF 
MAINTENANCE SUPPORT AND TRAINING SE RVICES AT A 
COST OF $5,000 PER MONTH FOR A PERIOD OF FOUR (4) 
MONTHS. 

WHEREAS, in the month of July 2025, the Mayor, City Attorney, and Interim ? 

Director of the Department of Information Technology became aware of an issue related to
the City of Jackson's website; and 

WHEREAS, the website is used to support several fi.inctions of the City of Jackson, 
including but not limited to the posting of meetings of the governing authorities; thereby 
necessitating immediate and urgent action; and 

WHEREAS, Red Laser Technology, Inc., was requested to come and make an

assessment concerning the website issue and discovered that the City's previous website 
developer had blocked access to the content; and 

WHEREAS, the policy adopted by the governing authorities on August 27, 2024 
contained provisions which provided for the emergency procurement of services where a 
delay incident to competitive bidding would be detrimental to the interests of government; 
and 

WHEREAS, Red Laser Technology, Inc., was authorized by the Interim Director of 
the Deparlment of Information Technology to perform services which would result in the 
expedient restoration of the website; and 

WHEREAS, Red Laser submitted Invoice# 44047 to the City of Jackson on August 
7, 2025 in the amount of $53,000.00; and 

WHEREAS, the Office of the City Attorney reviewed the invoice and det.ermined 
that Red Laser's invoice included charges for services which had not yet been provided; and 

WHEREAS, Red Laser was advised that the City of Jackson may not pay in advance 
for services not rendered; and 

WHEREAS, Red Laser submitted a revised invoice on September 8, 2025 
containing the number 202500187 in the amount of $33,000.00 for the following services, 
which were confirmed by the Department of Information Technology as having been 
performed: (1) emergency website replacement (2) hosting, server, CMS & SSL 
Certification Implementation and (3) 1 month setup of training and support; and 

WHEREAS, the best interest of the City of Jackson would be served by authorizing 
Red Laser to provide additional training and support services for a period of four ( 4) months 
at a cost of$5,000 per month; 

WHEREAS, the additional training and support services will enable personnel 
within the Department of Information Technology to service and maintain the site. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the emergency procurement of services from Red 

Agenda Item No.:_f....:,5::..___ 
October 21, 2025

Slater, Horhn 



Laser Technology Inc., is ratified. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Invoice Number 2025@0187 in the amount of 
$33,000.00 may be paid to Red Laser Technology, Inc. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that four ( 4) months of additional support and training 
services may be procured. 

. IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that a sum not exceeding $5,000 per month may be 
paid to Red Laser Technology, Inc., for the additional support and training upon receipt of 
an invoice and verification from the Department oflnformation Technology that support and 
training was received. 



r 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 10 POINT DATA SHEET (SLATER, HORHN) 

DATE September 9, 2025 
---

POINTS COMMENTS 

I l. Brief Description/Purpose Order Ratifying the Procurement of Emergency Web Services from Red Laser 
Technology Inc and approving payment ofinvoice 202500187 and also authorizing 
procurement of additional sU.E!llOrt and train in!! services at cost of $5 000 ner month 

-

2. Purpose Order ratifies the emergency procurement of services associated with the City's 
website because nrevious vendor blocked access 

3. Who will be affected All Departments, citizens, and users of website 

4. Benefits Access to website has been restored and there will be ongoing support and training 
of personnel in house for four (4) months to reduce the likelihood of incidents 
occurrin� in the future 

-

5. Schedule (be:e.inninn date) Services performed in July 

6. Location: City Wide 
• WARD

• CITYWIDE (yes or no) (area)

• Project limits if applicable
-

7. Action implemented by:
• City Department

-
Department of Iafonnation Technology 

• Consultant

8. COST $33,000 for services provided. An additional $5,000 per month for four (4) months 
will be id if wocurement of additional sum,ort services and trainin� authorized 

9. Source of Funding
• General Fund D
• Grant D Technology Fund Other Professional Services-004.904.00.6419 

• Bond D 
• Other D I 

10. EBO participation ABE % W
A

IVER yes_ no NIA _L_ -

AABE % WAIVER yes_ no NIA _x_ -
WBE % WAIVER yes_ no NIA _x_ -
HBE % WAIVER yes no NIA _x.. -
NABB % WAIVER yes_ no NIA _x_ 

Revised 2-04 

.__ 

-



Memorandum 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

Honorable Mayor John Horhn 

Nathan Slater, Director of Information Technology 

Order Authorizing Payment to Red Laser Technologies 

October 13, 2025 

The attached agenda item ratifies the emergency procurement of Red Laser 
Technology to develop and implement a website for the City of Jackson after triage 
revealed that the previous website developer had blocked access and availability 
and payment to the vendor for the services rendered. 

In addition, the item authorizes the procurement of support, maintenance, and 
training services for a period of four ( 4) months which will enable the City of 
Jackson to maintain the site in-house using municipal employees. 

DS/NS 

004.904.00.6419 



Office of the City Attorney 4S5 East Capitol Stred 
Post Office Box 2779 
1111:Jcson, Mississippi 39207-2779 
Tdqmonc: (601)960-1799 
Facsimile: (601) 9'0-1756 

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 
' ,,.�_ 
'1. .. � � . 
. _.;;- \ >.-� 

. 

This ORDER RATIFYING THE EMERGENCY PROCUREMENT OF, WEB DEVELOP 
AND SUPPORT SERVICES FROM RED LASER TECHNOLOGY, INC AND AUTHORIZING 
THE PAYMENT OF INVOICE #202500187 IN THE AMOUNT OF $33,000.00 AND FURTHER .. 

AUTHORIZING THE PROCUREMENT OF MAINTENANCE SUPPORT AND TRAINING 
SE�VICES AT A COST OF SS,000 PER MONTH FOR A PERIOD OF FOUR (4) MONTHS is 
legally sufficient for placement in NOVUS Agenda. 

Drew Martin, City Attorney 
JSondra Moncure, Special Assistant-,8.1' � 

Carrie Johnson, Deputy City Attorney �- fl,� 

L' 

10/14/25 

Date 



• 

I 

n1. 
www.radlaser.n&t 

TOTAL DUE: 

USD: $ 53,000.00 

fl ---- - ~ T 1 
�•ioescription 
a__ .. L; - J
Emergency Website 

Replacement -See below 

Hosting, Server, CMS & 

SSL Cert Implementation 

1st Month • Setup, 
Training & Support 

Support Services 
Months2•5 

Support Services & 

Training - Last Month 

Payment Method 

I 

Date : 08/07/2025 

#44Q47 

Qty Price Total 

1 

1 

1 

4 

1 

$15,500 $15,500 

$7,500 $7,500 

$10,000 $10,000 

$5,000 $20,000 

$0 $0 

Sub•total : $53,000 

Tax: $0 

Payment is due upon receipt 

using any method the county 

orefers 

Total: $53,ooo 



a ■■ Red Laser August2025 

"L. Technologies

Work Pert armed 
Red Laser has been enjoyi'ng the work that has been done so far, and would like to 
refresh everyone on wher� we are now, and what's next. 

@) Urgent Design

Within 3 days, Red Laser Technology ensured that the current website, 
wwwJacksonms.gov, was operational to it's users after a situation with the 
current webmaster. This was an abnormal design, forcing our team to work 
with already made site schematics & features. We enjoyed the challenge. 

@ CMS, Site, & Server Takeover

While our design team was working on the solution, our goal was to solve the 
other half - where to maintain the site, ensure it has SSL encryption, a server 
that's safe from any hostility, along with implementation of the domain into a 
new CMS system. This isn't a light feat, and it did take a combined effort from 
our administrative team, who worked hand-in-hand to ensure this was solved 
within the time they had an inital desing up. 

@ Support, Training, & Upkeep

In the first month, the primary focus is to ensure our work is audited internally 

and tested for quality. Additionally, we will be training the new webmaster to 
not only understand how to manage these tasks, but improve on the site to 
best fit the envisions of himself and the the City of Jackson stakeholders. While 
the first month may be a learning curve, towards the end we're so confident in 
their abilities and progression, the last month of support has been waived of 
any fees while we look forward to what's next. 



Reel Luer Technology tnc. 
123D Raymon(! Rd., Sui!e 1222 
Jackson, MS 39204 US 
adrianjones@redlaser.net 

BILL TO 

Cfty of Jackson, MS 
353 Sou1h Congress Street 
Jackson, MS 39l!01 

SHIPTO 

City of Jackson, MS 
353 South Congress Street 
Jackson,MS 39201 

1 
INVOICE 202500187 

DATE 09/08'20?5 TERMS N·�! 30 

DUE DATE i0:08/2025 

DESCRIPTION Ol� RATE AMOUNT 

Webelt& 

Maintenance 
&Content 

Development 

_,Re!afn!'. __ 

Website 

Maintenance 

&Cortent 

Development 

Retainer 

Website 

Maintenance 

&Content 

Development 
Retainer 

City of Jackson Website Portal 

Emergency Website 
Replacement 

- -- --

Hosting, Server, CMS & 
SSL Cert Implementation 

1 Month - Setup, 
Training & Support 

We appreciate your business. SUBTOTAL 

TAX 

TOTAL 

15,500.00 

7,500.00 

10,000.00 

15,500.00 

7,500.00 

---

10,000.00 

33,000.00 

0.00 

33,000.00 



.... 
"'-

m.r.:t.mcilosar.Mt 

. . 

Lab�r Category I 

Sr. Network Engineer 

Sr. Network Engineer II 

Security Specialist 

Security Specialist II 

Developer 

Materials & Licensing 

Date : 08/07/2025 

Emergency Website Services 

Labor Breakdown 

--

Qty Houriy Total 

25 $99.32 

15 $59.11 

10 $75.12 

18 $85.00 

4 $9,849.15 

Sub-total: 

Tax: 

$2,482.00 

$886.65 

$751.20 

$1,530.00 

$9,849.15 

$15,500 

$0 
L, ': lOI R t � r dire ti" fro Yl (, r ra � v c e -'• .. ::; i: ,;,:'.,;·, :�-f.:.: 

(CSA) Pdte,c, c1t O' :'.') ' pt ,r .., d" , · 

eLltYary y dr h Re c, T c nm logy >' L.oc,r r ,que ... Tota I: $1s,soo 



l



( 





� 

--� �Q
ORDER RATIFYING AND APPROVING PAYME��F \ 
INVOICES RECEIVED BY THE JACKSON POLICE 
DEPARTMENT FROM LIVE OAK PSYCHOLOGICAL 
ASSOCIATES, P.A. 

) 

WHEREAS, the Mayor recommends that the governing authority authorize payment to 
Live Oak Psychological Associates, P.A., in the amount of $800.00, for rendering psychological 
evaluation services to the Jackson Police Department; and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Human Resources contacted Live Oak Psychological 
Associates, P.A., to assess Jackson Police Department employees' fitness for duty; and, 

WHEREAS, the services obtained from the vendor were lawful and for a proper municipal 
purpose� and, 

WHEREAS, the unpaid invoices submitted by Live Oak Psychological Associates, P.A. 
are as follows: 

- - -----

hi\ oil'.'<' Dak f m·oi,:c Amount Service Rendered 
09/04/2025 
10102no2s 
Total 

$400.00 60 Min Session 
$400.00 ______ 60 Min Session 
$800.00 

WHEREAS, Miss. Code Ann.§ 21-17-5 states that the governing authorities of every
municipality shall have the care, management, and control of municipal affairs and its property 
and finances and may adopt orders, resolutions, or ordinances with respect to the same which are 
not inconsistent with the Mississippi Constitution of 1890, the Mississippi Code of I 972, or any 
other statute or law of the State of Mississippi; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Jackson's Personal and Professional Services Procurement
Policy (Aug. 2024), Section 3.1 provides that any procurement of personal or professional services 
not exceeding $5,000.00 is considered a small purchase and may be made in accordance with small 
purchase procedures, requiring one quote solicited, submitted, and recorded; and, 

WHEREAS, it is in the best· interest of the City of Jackson to approve payment of these 
invoices to ensure continued access to essential psychological evaluation services for departmental 
personnel. 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the invoices provided by Live Oak Psychological 
Associates, P.A., dated September 4, 2025 ($400.00), and October 2, 2025 ($400.00), totaling 
$800.00, are hereby ratified and approved for payment. 

Item __ _ 
Agenda Date __ _ 
By: Jones, Horhn 

Agenda Item No.:l...le__ 
October 21, 2025 
Jones, Horhn 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 10 POINT DATA SHEET 

DATE: October tot 2025

-
-

POINTS COMMENTS 

1. Brief Description/Purpose ORDER APPROVING PAYMENT OF INVOICES RECEIVED BY THE 
JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT FROM LIVE OAK PSYCHOLOGICAL 
ASSOCIATES 

2. Public Policy Initiative
1. Youth & Ed•catlo11 
2. Crime Prevention Crime Prevention, Quality of Life, Neighborhood Enhancement 
3. Cllanges i■ Clly Gover■ment 
4. Nei&llborhood Eahance11u,nt 

s. Eronomlc Development

6. Infr■1tructure a■d TnDtportation 
7. l'!h,aut,· of Llfr 

3. Who will be affected City of Jackson Police Department 

4. Benefits Payment to vendors. 

5. Schedule {til'lrinnina date) Upon council approval 

6. Location:
• WARD , 

Citywide 

■ CITYWIDE (yes or no) (area)
•
• Project limits if applicable 

7. Action implemented by:
■ City Department

-
Jackson Police Department 

• Consultant t:J. 

8. COST
$800.00 

9. Source of Funding
• General Fund CJ 

001.442.26.6419 

■ Grant D 
■ Bond □ 
• Other CJ 

10. EBO participation ABE % WAIVER yes_ no NIA --

AABE % WAIVER yes_ no NIA --
WBE % WAIVER yes_ no NIA --

HBE % WAIVER yes_ no NIA --
NABE % WAIVER yes_ no NIA --



Assistant Chief of Police 

Wendell Watts 

JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Interim Chief of Police Tyree D. Jones

MEMORANDUM 

To: John Horhn, Mayor

From: Tyree D. Jones, Interim Chief of Police@ /I> 1/0 I Ji S­

Date: Friday, October 10, 2025

Re: Payment to Live Oak Psychological Associates

Assistant Chief of Police 

Vincent Grizzell 

The Jackson Police Department requests authorization to place on the City Council agenda an 
order approvingpayrnent to Live Oak Psychological Associates for psychological evaluation 
services rendered to department personnel on September 4, 2025, and October 2, 2025, totaling 
$800.00. 

Approval of this payment will ensure continued access to essential psychological evaluation 
services for departmental staff. 

TDJ/mxo 

Jackson Police Department 1327 E. Pascagoula Street, Jackson, MS 39205 I 601.960.1234 



Office of the City Attorney 455 � Capitol Street 
Post Office Box 2779 
Jackson, Mississippi 39207-2779 
Telephone: (601) 960-1799 
Facsimile: (601)960-1756 

� 
� 

�-.£\

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY� 
\��-

\. ' -� .. 
This ORDER APPROVING PAYMENT OF INVOICES RECEIVED BY THE \ '�')._

JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT FROM LIVE OAK PSYCHOLOGICA� 

AS SOCIA TES is legally sufficient for placement in NOVUS Agenda. 

Drew Martin, City Attorney
.-

�..., 
Sondra Moncure, Special Assistant

...__
_ 



View Filed Documents Opt-in or Opt-out of Email updates Print Business Details 

Name History 

Name 

LIVE OAK PSYCHOLOGICAL ASSOCIATES, P.A. 
Name Type 

Legal 

Business Infonnation 

Business Type: 

Business ID: 

Status: 

Effective Date: 

State of Incorporation: 

Principal Office Address: 

Registered Agent 

Name 

JOHN COX 
1151 N STATE ST, #212 
JACKSON, MS 39202 

Officers & Directors 

Name 

John Cox 
1151 N State St, #212 
Jackson, MS 39202 

James H Brown 
1151 North State St 
Jackson, MS 39202 

John Cox 
1151 N State St, #212 
Jackson, MS 39202 

James H Brown Junior 
1151 North State St, #212 
Jackson, MS 39202 

Profit Corporation 
716197 

Good Standing 

10/27/1993 

Mississippi 

1151 N STATE ST #212 
JACKSON, MS 39202 

Title 

Incorporator 

President 

Director, President 

Director, Vice President 



Data 

P�c:1 

Clmt#: JACOOOOl 
Cue#: 12478 

Deecliptlon 

Live Oak Psychological Assoc 
1151 North State St. 

Jackson, MS 39202-2467 
(601)352-7398

Jpur.ucttons: 

10/7/2025 

C.Omplete the patient information portion of your insurance 
claim funn. Attach th� bill, slgnod and daced, and aD other 
bills pertaining to the claim If you have a dcductmle policy, 
hold your clalrn fimns until you he.vc met your deductible, 
Mail dimctly to yQllr insuranco cmrier. 

. Procedure Modifier Dx 1 Dx2 Dx3 Dx 4 Unit& Charge 

10/2/2025 60·• ms ion 90837 400.00 

r --Providerlafonnatlon � 
PJovider_Name: Brittany Sapp 

License: 
lnsunnce PIN: 

SSN or EIN: 640836983 

Tola! Olarges: 
Total Pay mm ts: 

Total Adjustments: 
Tatat he 'Illis Visit; 

Total Account Balance: 

Assign and Release: I hereby authorbz piiyment of medical benefits to this physician for the services described 
above. l also aulborim the rekase of any infonnation nec.essaiy to process this claim. 

Patient Sigi,aturc: _________________ _ Date: 

S400.00 
SO.DO 
so,oo 

S 400.00 
S800.00 



r 
Page: I 

Patient: Jackson Police 

Chart#: JACOOOOl 
Case#: 12478 

Date Description 

Live Oak Psychological Assoc 
1151 North State St 

Jackson, MS 39202-2467 
(601)352-7398

Jns tr,11ctiOD! : 

10/7/2025 

Complete the patient information portion ofyour insurance 
claim fonn. Attach this bill, signed and dated, and all other 
bills pertaining to the claim. ff you have a deductible policy, 
hold your claim fonns until you have met your deductible. 
Mail directly to your insurance carrier. 

Procedure Modifier Dx 1 Ox 2 Ox 3 Ox 4 Units Charge 

9/4/2025 60-min session 90837 400,00 

Provider Information Total O!arges: 
Provider Name: Brittany Sapp Total Payments: 

License: Total Adjustments: 
Insurance PIN: 

Total Due This Visit: 
SSN orEIN: 640836983 

Total Account Balance: 

Assign and Release: I hereby authorize payment of medical benefits to this physician for the secvices described
above. I also authoriz.e the release of any information necessary to process this claim. 

Patient Signature: ___________________ _ Date: 

$400.00 
$0,00 
$0.00 

$ 400.0tl 

$ 400,00 



\ 



l)

) 

J 





ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO�' AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE JACKSON POC'F.ll,..�DEPARTMENT AND GUARDIAN ALLIAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC. FOR A SUBSCRIPTION TERM 0 TWELVE (12) MONTHS WHEREAS, the City of Jackson Police Department conducts pre-e . o background investigations and applicant screening to ensure it hires qualified candidates w departmental standards; and, WHEREAS, Guardian Alliance Technologies, Inc. provides a cloud-based background investigation and applicant pre-screening platform that enables the Department to manage investigations, triage applicants, and document :findings efficiently; and, WHEREAS, Miss. Code Ann. § 21-17-5 states that the governing authorities of every municipality shall have the care, management, and control of municipal affairs and its property and finances and may adopt orders, resolutions, or ordinances with respect to same which are not inconsistent with the Mississippi Constitution of 1890, the Mississippi Code of 1972, or any other statute or law of the State of Mississippi; and, WHEREAS, web-based services are not subject to the statutory mandates of Miss. Code 
Ann.§ 31-7-13 (Phillips, No. 2010-00123 (Miss. A.G. Sept. 3, 2010) and in accordance with the City of Jackson's Personal and Professional Services Procurement Policy (Aug. 2024) Section 3.2, the Purchasing Division has the authority to approve small purchases between $5,000.01 and $75,000.00 from the vendor offering the lowest responsible response, having obtained a scope of work and no less than two (2) quotes solicited, submitted, and recorded; and, WHEREAS, the Department solicited two (2) quotes for a cloud-based software as a service for the purpose of conducting pre-employment background investigations and applicant screening to ensure it hires qualified candidates who meet departmental standards: QUOTE 1: eSOPH by MillerMendel, located at 1425 Broadway #430, Seattle WA 98122, and, QUOTE 2: Guardian Alliance Technologies, Inc., located at 11 S San Joaquin St, Ste 804, Stockton, CA 95202; and, WHEREAS, Quote 1 (eSOPH by MillerMendal) offers a $23,360.00 quote for 12 months for up to 200 entries, admin setup and training, end user training, unlimited agency users, support, data storage, credit reports for up to 200 reports, up to 200 social media screening reports, unlimited two-way faxing and two-way SMS within annual eSOPH subscription period; and, WHEREAS, Quote 2 (Guardian Alliance Technologies, Inc.) offers $17,500.00 annual fee for 12 months for up to 250 background investigations, including 75 social media screening reports and 7 5 credit reports, and the actual costs will be billed monthly based on use and training, support, and data storage, and unlimited total application added to the system for prescreening; and, 

Agenda Item No.:_/1---'---­October 21, 2025

Jones, Horhn 



WHEREAS, Guardian Alliance Technologies, Inc. will provide this software platform to 
the Jackson Police Department for a subscription term of twelve (12) months with a quote of 
$17,500.00 and with monthly invoicing pursuant to the vendor's subscription agreement and 
additional provisions, including termination for convenience, all of which is attached and fully 
incorporated into the minutes; and, 

WHEREAS, given that the quantity and actual usage may vary, the Jackson Police 
Department requests the governing authorities to authorize payment in an amount not to exceed 
$20,000.00, with monthly invoicing pursuant to the vendor's subscription agreement; and, 

WHEREAS, the quote from Guardian Alliance Technologies, Inc. is the lowest and best 
quote received for the equipment and software; and, 

WHEREAS, this purchase supports public safety and is lawful and for a proper municipal 
purpose and the best interest of the City of Jackson would be served by accepting the quote of 
Guardian Alliance Technologies, Inc.; and, 

WHEREAS, the Jackson Police Department has sufficient funwng to pay the subscription 
quote and has budgeted the not-to-exceed amount of $20,000.00 for the 12 month term from its 
General Fund appropriation. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the quote received from Guardian Alliance 
Technologies, Inc. may be accepted and that the monthly invoices may be paid upon receipt of the 
billing from the Jackson Police Department's general fund, so long as the monthly invoices do not 
exceed of$20,000.00. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Mayor is authorized to enter into an agreement 
which shall be attached in the minutes to pay Guardian Alliance Technologies, Inc. an amount not 
to exceed $20,000 for a subscription term of twelve (12) months, and the Mayor is authorized to 
execute all documents related to the Agreement and necessary to fulfill the purpose of this order 
provided it does not obligate any additional monetary expenses to the City of Jackson. 

Agenda Item: 
---

Date: 
By: Jones, Horhn 



r CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 10 POINT DATA SHEET 

DATE: September 15, 2025 

POINTS COMMENTS 
I-= 

Brief Description/Purpose 1. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT AND GUARDIAN 
ALLIANCE TECHNOLOGIES, INC. FOR A SUBSCRIPTION TERM OF 
TWELVE (12) MONTHS 

2. Public Policy Initiative
1. Youtll & Ed11cation 
2. Crime Prevention Crime Prevention, Quality of Life, Neighborhood Enhancement 
3. Chanser in City Gowrnmeat 
,. Neig)tborbood Ellhaacement 
s. Ecooonuc Development
6. Infrastructure ■nd Tra•sportatio■ 
7. Oualih' of Ufe 

3. Who will be affected City of Jackson Police Department 

4. Benefits PROVIDES A CLOUD-BASED PLATFORM TO MANAGE APPLICANT PRE-
SCREENING AND BACKGROUND INVESTIGATIONS, IMPROVING HIRING 
EFFICIENCY AND DOCUMENTATION 

5. Schedule {beginning datel Upon council approval 

6. Location:
• WARD ALL WARDS 

• CITYWIDE (yes or no) (area)
•

• Project limits if applicable 
I 

7. Action implemented by:
• City Department

-
Jackson Police Department 

• Consultant D 

8. COST
NOT TO EXCEED $20.000 

.__ 
9. Source of Funding

• General Fund D Account# 001.442.40.6419 

• Grant D 
• Bond D 
• Other D 

10. EBO participation ABE % WANER yes_ no NIA --
AABE % WAIVER yes_ no NIA --

WBE --% WAIVER yes_ no NIA 
--

HBE % WAIVER yes_ no NIA - - --
NABE % WAIVER yes_ no NIA --

-



Assistant Chief of Police 

Wendell Watts 

JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Interim Chief of Police Tyree D. Jones 

MEMORANDUM 

To: John Horhn, Mayor 

From: Tyree D. Jones, Interim Chief of Poli�

Date: Monday, September 15, 2025 

Assistant Chief of Police 

Vincent Grizzell 

Re: Agenda Item to Acquire Guardian Alliance Background Investigation Software 

I request approval to place on the City Council agenda an entry into a twelve-month subscription 
with Guardian Alliance Technologies to support applicant prescreening and background 
investigations. Guardian provides unlimited, no-cost prescreening, triage tools, change reports 
for reapplicants, and monthly invoicing based on actual use. Under our expected volume this 
selection will reduce total cost and improve time to hire compared with the alternative platform. 
Funding is available within the Police Department General Fund. 

Approve an agreement with Guardian Alliance Technologies in an amount not to exceed twenty 
thousand dollars for a twelve-month term and authorize legal review and your execution of all 
related documents. 

Upon approval, IT will complete system wbitelisttng and user provisioning. Fiscal Affairs will 
monitor monthly usage and provide quarterly updates. 

Jackson Police Department I 327 E. Pascagoula Street, Jackson, MS 39205 I 601.960.1234 



Office of the City Attorney 4SS Fast Capitol Street 
Post Office Box 2779 
Jackson, Mississippi 39207-2779 
Telephone: (601) 960-1799 

csimile: (601)960-1756 

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORN 

This ORDER AUIBORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN 
AGREEMENTBETWEENTHEJACKSON POUCE DEPARTMENT 
GUARDIAN ALLIANCE TECHNOLOGIES, INC. FOR A SUBSCRIP 'V\-�-.Ji........,,.1

TERM OF TWELVE (12) MONTHS is legally sufficient for placement in NOVUS Agenda.

Drew Martin, City .ilttomey u,u,·0,,,_, 

Sondra Moncure, Special Assistan =' � ....... �, 
Chelsea Chicosky, Deputy City Alton. ey ......J11�1,,o 

1/J//l/.L� 
Date 



Assistant Chief of Police 

Wendell Watts 

JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Interim Chief of Police Tyree D. Jones 

To: Tyree D. Jones, Interim Chief of Polle 

Assistant Chief of Police 

Vincent Grizzell 

From: Michael X. Outland, Sr. Captain, Professional Standards "4.o t;, IS-�S 

Date: Monday, September 15, 2025 

Re: Recommendation to Acquire Guardian Alliance Background Investigation Platform 
over eSOPH 

This memorandum recommends selecting Guardian Alliance Technologies' cloud-based 
background investigation platform instead of Miller Mendel's eSOPH for the Jackson Police 
Department's applicant screening and background investigations. 

Guardian Alliance offers an ••add all applicants" model, which allows for unlimited pre­
screening at no cost and charges only when an applicant is moved into a full investigation. The 
platform includes a Triage Center, cross-agency application visibility, and a change report that 
flags discrepancies when an applicant re-applies. The standard term is twelve months with 
monthly invoicing, a twelve-month price Jock, and agency termination flexibility. IT can allow 
required domains to ensure reliability. 

By comparison, the current eSOPH proposal is a single annual subscription that bundles a set 
number of entries with separate line items for social media screening, credit reports, and optional 
fax and SMS modules. 

Fiscal Impact and Pricing Comparison 

• Guardian Alliance: Example twelve-month cost based on 200 complete investigations with 50
social media reviews and 50 credit pulls is approximately $17,500. Billing is monthly and tied to
actual use. Prices are locked for twelve months.
• eSOPH: The quoted annual subscription totals $23,360 for up to 200 entries with bundled
options.

Under our typical annual usage of approximately 200 investigations, which includes selective 
social media and credit pulls, Guardian's pay-for-use model is expected to lower total costs 
while enabling unlimited, no-cost pre-screening, which reduces investigator workload on 
unqualified candidates. 

Jackson Police Department 1327 E. Pascagoula Street, Jackson, MS 39205 1601.960.1234 



Operational Advantages of Guardian 

• Unlimited pre-screening of all applicants at no cost
• Triage tools, cross-agency visibility, and change reports that strengthen integrity checks
• Monthly invoicing based on actual usage with a twelve-month price lock
• Agency option to terminate if performance or needs change

Risk and Mitigation 

• If volumes of optional reports rise significantly, total costs could increase. Fiscal Affairs will
monitor monthly usage and align orders with investigative priorities and budget ceilings.
• IT will implement domain allowlisting and coordinate with the vendor on any technical
requirements.

Recommendation 

Approve the acquisition of Guardian Alliance Technologies' background investigation platform 
for a twelve-month tenn. Authorize the execution of account activation documents and monthly 
invoicing, consistent with actual usage. 1bis selection advances investigative rigor improves 
workflow efficiency through no-cost pre-screening and triage, and is expected to reduce total 
cost under our usage profile while preserving flexibility. 

Attachments 
• Guardian Alliance Account Activation materials and pricing exhibit
• Miller Mendel eSOPH quote summary

Jackson Police Department I 327 E. Pascagoula Street, Jackson, MS 392051601.960.1234



Account Activation Request 

By executing and submitting tl,iis Account Activation Request ("Activation Request''), Customer hereby requests thatpuardian 
Alliance Technologies, Inc. (''Guardian") establish and activate an account on Guardian's cloud-based software platfonn (the 
"Guardian Platfonn") for use hr Customer and its Authorized Users (the "Customer Account"). 

Customer Name (Agency Name) 

Street Address, City, State, Zip 

Authorized Representative Name and Title Authorized Rep Phone Number 

Contact Name for Billing Billing Contact Phone # Ext 

Billing Contact Email Address 

Agency Size Total Personnel (check one): 1-49 50-99 100-199 200-399 400t-

Please provide the figures below based on best estimates if you don't know actual numbers. 

Total Agency Personnel: __ _ Authorized Sworn Strength: Swom Officers Actual: ___ _ 

Approximately how many backgrounds did your agency conduct in the last 12 months? 

Upon receipt of a signed copy of your Activation Request, Guardian will establish a User Account for an 
Account Administrator. The "Account Administrator" will be the individual responsible for authorizing and 
managing activity occurring under the Customer Account. 

The Account Administrator will have the authority and ability, through their User Account, to establish a User 
Account for each other individual authorized by Customer to use the Guardian Platfonn on Customer's behalf 
(each, an "Authorized User"). Additionally, the Account Administrator shall be responsible for deactivating 
Authorized User accounts when necessary. 

2 



t. General.

1.1 Fees. Customer agrees to pay all of the fees associated with its use of the Guardian Platform in 
accordance with the 
Platform Pricing set forth on Exhibit A, as may be updated as set forth herein (the "Fees'} 

1.2 Price Assurance. The prices reflected in Exhibit A shall remain in effect for a minimum of 12 
months ("Price Lock Period") from the Effective Date, which is the last signature acquired, on 
the signature page hereof. 

1.3 Payment Terms. Customer will be invoiced at the end of each calendar month for all use of the 
fee-based features that occurred during such calendar month. The City shall pay invoices in 
accordance with Mississippi law on "Timely Payments for Purchases by Public Bodies," Miss. 
Code Ann. § 31-7-305(2), et seq., which generally provides for payment of undisputed amounts 
within forty-five (45) days ofreceipt of the invoice. Invoices shall be submitted to the City 
using the processes and procedures identified by the City. No payment, including final payment, 
shall be construed as acceptance of defective or incomplete work, and the vendor shall remain 
responsible and liable for full performance after the invoice date. The vendor understands and 
agrees that the City of Jackson is exempt from the payment of taxes and that the City shall pay 
the fees set forth herein. The Annual Platform Fee will be billed at the end of the calendar 
month in which from the Effective Date (the date of the last signature acquired) on the signature 
page. 

1.4 Terms of Service. By accessing and using the Guardian Platform, Customer agrees to be bound 
by the Guardian Terms of Service and Privacy Policy. 

1.5 Third-Party Requests. Notwithstanding any other provision, if either Party receives a 
subpoena, court order, or other legal or governmental demand requesting the disclosure of any 
Confidential Information of the other Party, the receiving Party shall promptly notify the 
disclosing Party in writing, to the extent legally permitted, prior to disclosing such Confidential 
Information. The receiving Party shall cooperate with the disclosing Party, at the disclosing 
Party's expense, in seeking a protective order or other appropriate remedy. If disclosure is 
ultimately required, the receiving Party shall disclose only that portion of the Confidential 
Information that is lega11y required and shall use reasonable efforts to obtain assurances that 
such information will be treated confidentially. 

1.6 Privacy Policy. The Vendor will hold all information the City and the IPD provides in the strictest 
of confidence unless required to provide information in accordance with an order from a �urt 
or other governmental agency or other legal process. The Vendor agrees to utilize industzy 
standards to ensure the confidentiality related to internet transmissions. 

1.7 Data Retention. Provider shall retain aU Customer Data for a period of five years from the date 
of collection or receipt, unless otherwise required by applicable law or agreed upon in writing 
by the Parties. Upon expiration of the retention period, Service Provider shall delete or securely 
anonymize such data, unless otherwise directed by Customer in writing prior to such deletion. 
Data Ownership and Access Post-Termination. All Customer Data sha11 remain the sole and 
exclusive property of Customer. Service Provider shall not access, use, or disclose Customer 
Data except as necessary to perform its obligations under this Agreement or as otherwise 
authorized by Customer in writing. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, 
Customer may request a copy of its data in a commonly used, machine-readable format. Such 
request must be made within one (1) year from the effective date of termination or expiration. 
Service Provider shall provide the requested data within thirty (30) days of receipt of such 

3 



request. After the one-year period, Service Provider may delete the Customer Data in 
accordance with its standard data destruction policies, unless otherwise required by applicable 
law. 

1.8 Term. 12 months from the Effective Date, established by the last of the parties' signature 
acquired. 

1.9 Termination by Customer. Customer may terminate this Agreement and request that their 
Account be deactivated at any time, for any reason. In the event of Termination for Convenience 
by Customer, Customer agrees to pay for all system use that occurred prior to the date of Notice 
of Termination. 

1.10 Notice of Termination. In the event Customer wishes to Terminate this Agreement and 
deactivate their Account, a Notice of Termination ("Notice") shall be delivered to Guardian by 
emailing billin�(ti·µuardianalliancetechnologies.com 

(a) Customer shall receive acknowledgement of receipt by Guardian on the same business
day that Notice is sent.

(b) In the event that Customer does not receive an email response acknowledging receipt
of Notice of Termination, Customer shall call 415-655-2733 to confirm receipt verbally
and request an email confirmation. With or without "same day" confirmation,
Customer will be deemed to have Terminated on the date that Notice is sent.

2. Whitelist. Content filtering systems in use by Customer, if any, may unexpectedly cut parts of html
pages out of the user interface as well as some email traffic, lead to unexpected errors, broken links,
unclickable buttons, partially loaded pages or other unintended/unpredictable behaviors with the
Guardian Platform. These issues are completely resolved by •'whitelisting" all Guardian domains. By
whitelisting the domains below, these potential problems can be avoided.

(a) guardian.network
(b) www.guardianalliancetech.com
(c) www.guardianalliancetechnologies.com

3. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and governed by, the laws of
the State of Mississippi without giving effect to any choice oflaw doctrine that would cause the law of
any other jurisdiction to apply.

4. Entire Agreement. This Agreement embodies the entire agreement and understanding of the parties
hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof. No represe,;itation, promise, inducement, or statement
of intention has been made by any party hereto that is not embodied in this Agreement. Terms and
conditions set forth in any purchase order, or any other form or document of either party, which are
inconsistent with, or in addition to, the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, are hereby
objected to and rejected in their entirety, regardless of -when received, without further action or

. notification by either party, and shall not be considered binding on either party unless specifically 
agreed to in writing by it. 

s. Amendment. No amendment, modification, or supplement to this Agreement shall be binding uni ess
it is in writing and signed by the party sought to be bound thereby.

,. Attorneys' Fees. If any action is brought by either party to this Agreement against the other party
regarding the subject matter hereof, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover, in addition to
any other relief granted, reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses oflitigation, if determined by a court

4 



r 7. 

of competent jurisdiction. 

Non-Appropriation. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, all obligations of the 
Customer under this Agreement that require the expenditure of public funds are conditioned on the 
availability of said funds appropriated for that purpose. To the extent applicable, Customer shall have 
the right to terminate this Agreement for non-appropriation with thirty (30) days written notice 
without penalty or other cost. 

s. Conflict oflnterest This Agreement is subjectto Mississippi Code Annotated Section 25-4-101, as
amended. This Agreement may be cancelled if any person significantly involved in the initiating,
negotiating, securing, drafting or creating of the Agreement on behalf of the Company is an
employee, consultant, or agent of any other party to this Agreement. Should ,this Agreement violate
a Mississippi Conflict of Interest law, the Agreement may be declared void.

9. Compliance with Laws. Parties shall comply with all applicable laws under the State of Mississippi,
and all local, state and federal laws, regulations, policies and ordinances and their associated record
retention schedules, including responding to any subpoena request(s).

10. Miscellaneous. Notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement or in any other documents
referenced or contemplated, at all times:

10.l Any references to the Customer waiving any cause of action it may have against Company or
any other party as a result of Company's breach of the contract, or Company's own 
negligence or willful misconduct or the negligence or willful misconduct of Company's 
employees or agents are deleted. Miss. Const. Art. 4, § 100; Miss. AG Op., Clark (June 7, 
2002); Miss. AG Op., Chamberlin (Oct. 18, 2002). 

10.2 Any references to the Customer limiting damages, remedies or waiving any claim are 
deleted. Miss. Const. Art. 4, § 100; Miss. AG Op., Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG Op., 
Chamberlin (Oct. 18, 2002). 

11. Authority. Each party represents that it (a) has the power and authority and the legal right to enter
into this Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder, and (b) has taken all necessary action on
its part required to authorize the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the performance of its
obligations hereunder. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of such party
and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of such party and is enforceable against it in
accordance with its terms subject to the effects of bankruptcy, insolvency or other laws of general
application affecting the enforcement of creditor rights and judicial principles affecting the
availability of specific performance and general principles of equity, whether enforceability is
considered a proceeding at law or equity.

· IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Customer is causing this Account Activation Request to ·be executed by its duly
authorized representative: 

Customer: 

Signature of Authorized Representative 

Print Name Title 
5 

Effective Date 



IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT GUARDIAN PRICING 

Guardian's unique pricing and system deployment model allows you to maximize system functionality and 
value, while minimizing your costs. One of the major advantages of using the Guardian Platform is that 
you can add all of your applicants to the system and pre-screen them at no cost. This is a very 
important distinction as compared to other pricing models as it maximizes the value of the system while 
minimizing your costs of deploying technology in this area. 

When agencies must pay a fee for every applicant added to a system, one of the following occurs: 

I) Either the agency will perform manual prescreening (wasting precious man hours in the process) in an
effort to keep applicants out of the system and thereby reduce system costs; or

2) The agency will pay the same fee for an applicant that is immediately DQ'd as they do for one that
undergoes a full background investigation.

Neither scenario is ideal. 

With Guardian, you only incur a fee when you perform an in-depth background investigation on an 
applicant. This paves the way for your agency to add all applicants to the system without concern over 
costs. 

Key Advantages of Adding All Applicants to the Guardian Platform are: 

1) Rapid pre-screening of the full applicant pool using tools in the Triage Center.
2) Immediate visibility as to whether the applicant has applied at any other Guardian agencies (including

yours).
3) Immediate visibility of a "change report" for.applicants who have applied with a Guardian agency

before. The change report presents any/all changes applicant has made to information in their PHS
since the last time they certified and submitted. This enables you to detect applicants who are
attempting to work their way into your agency through deception.

4) Having 100% of your applicant pool in the system will give you the ability to pull comprehensive
reports regarding who is applying with your agency and related statistical data.

We are excited about the possibility of welcoming you to the Guardian Alliance. Should you have any questions 
or require further information, please don't hesitate to reach out. We look forward to assisting you in enhancing 
your background investigation processes. 

6 



EXHIBIT A 
Cost Estimate - Monthly Billing 

Guardian Background Investigation Software 

Below is a cost estimate for the use of Guardian in processing.up to 250 background investigations, including 75 social media screening 
reports and 75 credit reports. Actual costs .will be based on ac.tual system use, billed monthly. 

Agencies only incur a fee for those applicants who survive p�-screening and are moved to the fuvestigation Center and assigned to an 
investigator to undergo a more in-depth investigation. As an example, if you add 600 applicants to the system, and only 200 of them pass 
pre-screening, with Guardian you only incur a fee for the 200 and you are invoiced on a monthly basis for actual system usage. This unique 

model ensures that you can maximize use of the system while minimizing your costs. 

Both Monthly and Annual payment plans are available. Fees for annual plans are based on your anticipated system usage during the 12 
month tenn. Please reach .out to us for price quote if you are interested in an annual payment plan. 

Quantity Price Each Total Per Year Per Year 

Total Applicants Added 
UNLIMITED $0.00 $0.00 

To System 

Total Background 
200 $58.50 $13,000.00 

Investigations 

-

Social Media Screening 
50 $40.50 $ 2,025.00 

Reports 

Credit Reports 50 $13.50 $ 675.00 

Training, Support, Data 
1 $1,500 $ 1,500.00 

Storage 

TOTAL FOR 12 MONTH TERM s 11,500.00 I 

7 



Miller Mendel, Inc. 
1425 Broadway, #430 
Seattle, WA 98122 
Accounting@MillerMendel.com 

MillerMendel 

ADDRESS 
Jackson Police Department 
Accounts Payable 
327 E Pascagoula St 
Jackson, MS 39205 USA 

SHIP TO 

Jackson Police Department 
Accounts Payable 
327 E Pascagoula St 
Jackson, MS 39205 USA 

Annual eSOPH Subscription 1 
Annual subscription tor eSOPH background system. Includes up to 200 
entries, admin setup and training, end user training, unlimited agency 
users and no additional cost for support or data.storage. 
Credit Report 1 

Up to 200�_r:��t reRQrtS within ann!_J��_ub��.!!J?!ion_period. 
Social Media Report 
Up to 200 social media screening reports within annual subscription 
_period. ___________________________ ---------------------------------- _______ _ 
Fax Module 1 
Unlimited fwo-wey faxin_g within annual eSOPH subscriptionpe!iod. ____ _ 
SMS Module 

_ Unli�ited two-w� S�S vv[t!'!!n ann_LJ�I ��9.rli�t,1t!!>«?fip�-�P�T!�� .... 

Terms & Additional Details 

1. EIN: 27-1802751.
2. Unless a separate mutual agreement between Client and
MMI states otherwise, all invoices are due NET 30.
3. All other Terms and Conditions are set forth in the Miller
Mendel MSSSA (licensing agreement) and any mutually
agreed to and signed addendums. Client's PO does not add,
modify, or cancel any terms found in the MSSSA.

Accepted By 

SUBTOTAL 
TAX 

Accepted Date 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS 

15,800.00 15,800.00 

900.00 900.00T 

4,500.00 4,500.00T 

1,260.00 1,260.00T 

900.00 900.00T 

23,360.00 
0.00 



,. 

i 



. 



ORDER AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF JACKSON TO RELEASE 

TITLES OF VEIDCLES AND EQUIPMENT SOLD 

PROPERTYROOM.COM 

WHEREAS, the City of Jackson is authorized by Miss. Code Ann. § 17-25-25(4) � 
or dispose of any surplus personal or real property at a public auction that shall be conducte 
an auctioneer or auction company that meets the standards established by the State Department 
Audit and is hired by the governing authority of a county or municipality; and 

WHEREAS, the Fleet Manager has identified in this order equipment and vehicles tha 
the City of Jackson has ceased to use for public purposes; and 

WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City to dispose of the vehicles and 
equipment at an online auction, at the time of their choosing; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Jackson has retained PropertyRoom.com, who meets the
requirements of the State Department of Audit, to conduct an online auction for the City; and 

WHEREAS, the following are municipally-owned surplus motor vehicles and equipment 
that were sold at an online auction by Property Room.com: 

Year, Make, 
Patrol Car Model, VIN 

Color 

2007 
Chevrolet 

PC 1377 Imoala Grav 2G1WS55R579240694 
2011 Dodge 
Charger 

PC 1606 White 2B3CL 1 CT7BH539764 
2011 Dodge 
Charger 

PC 1607 White 2B3CL1CT4BH539768 
2011 Dodge 
Charger 

PC 1633 White 2B3CL Tl CT4BH53978 
2011 Dodge 
Charger 

PC 1634 White 2B3CCT1 CT4BH53987 
2011 Dodge 
Charger 

PC 1638 White 2B3CT1 CT7BH539795 
2011 Dodge 
Charger 

PC 1662 White 2B3CT1 CT3BH582305 
2012 Dodge 
Charger 

PC 1710 White 2C3CDXAG3CH225216 

Marked/ 
Current Date 

Unmarked 
Location Picked up 

Vehicle 

Property 
Unmarked Room 

Property 
Marked Room 6/10/2025 

Property 
Marked Room 

Property 
Marked Room 

Property 
Marked Room 

Property 
Marked Room 

Property 
Marked Room 

I Marked 
Property
Room 

Agenda Item No.: /f!,
October 21, 2025 
Jones, Horhn 



PC 1728 

PC 1750 

PC 1765 

PC 1772 
-----

PC 1784 

PC 1890 

PC 1621 
f----

PC 1627 

PC 1775 

PC 1774 
--

I
PC 1705 

I 
PC 1660 

PC 1891 
r-

1 

PC 1855 

,-
PC 1895 

�
Dodge 

ger 
White 2C3CDXAG0DH568311 
2013 Dodge

= Charger 
White 2C3CDXAG9DH56834 l 
2014 Dodge 
Charger 
White 2C3CDXAGEH172374 

Property 
Marked Room 

-

Property 
Marked Room 

Property 
Marked Room 

---

2014 Dodge 
Charger 
White 2C3CDXAGXEH172369 Marked 
2014 Dodge 
Charger 
White 2C3CDXAG5EH172389 Marked 
2018 Ford 
Taurus 

1FAHP2MK4JG114569 I Marked White 
2011 Dodge 
Charger 

2B3CL1CT9BH5397� Marked White 
--

2011 Dodge 
Charger 

I Marked White 2B3CL 1 CT8BH539773 
---

2014 Dodge 
Charger 
White 
2014 Dodge 
Charger 
White 

2C3CDXAG4EH172397 IMmked 

2C3CDXAG9EH172394 Marked 
2014 Dodge 
Charger 
White 2C3CDXAG8CH222392 
2011 Dodge 
Charger 
White 

� 
2B3CL 1 CTXBH582303 

2018 Ford 
Taurus 

I 
White . 1FAHP2MK0JG114570 
2018 Ford I Taurus 
White 

�
�FAHP2MK5JG114581 

2018 Ford 
Taurus 

I Mmked 

Marked 

Marked 

I 
Marked 

I 
1 MarkedI White_ ______!EAHP2MK8JG1145_74_ 

Property 
Room 

Property 
Room 

--

Property 
Room 

Property 
Room 

Property 
Room 

Property 
Room 

-

Property 
Room 

Property 
Room 

Property 
Room 

Property 
Room 

j_:
perty 
om I Property 

. Room 

6/10/2025 

7/7/2025 

7/11/2025 

7/16/2025 

7/23/2025 



2018 Ford l I 
Taurus Property 

�White IF AHP2MK0JG 104864 I Marked Room 7/23/2025 
2011 Dodge I I 
Charger 

I Marked I 
Property

PC 1617 White 2B3CLICTXBH539788 Room 7/24/2025 
2014 Dodge 
Charger Property 

PC 1786 White 2C3CDXAG1EH172390 Marked Room 7/22/2025 
2014 Dodge 

I Marked 
Charger Property 

PC 1794 White 2G3CDXAG6EH172398 Room 7/22/2025 
2018 Ford 
Taurus Property 

PC 1893 White lF AHP2MK6JG 114572 Marked Room 7/22/2025 
2008 Ford 
Crown I 
Victoria 

PC 1390 White 2FAFP71 W07X147163 Marked 1 Gara�e 
2011 Dodge 
Charger 

PC 1612 White 2B3CLICT7BH539778 Marked Garatte 
2011 Dodge 
Charger 

PC 1613 White 2B3CL1 CT5BH539780 Marked Garage 
2011 Dodge 
Charger 

PC 1622 White 2B3CL1 CT5BH539763 Marked Gar&?.e 
2011 Dodge 
Charger 

PC 1653 White 2B3CL1CT4BH555758 Marked Gara2e 
2011 Dodge 
Charger 

PC 1661 White 2B3CL1CT4BH555758 Marked Gara�e 
2012 Dodge 
Charger 

PC 1711 White 2C3CDXAG8CH225213 Marked l Garaue
2012 Dodge 
Charger 

PC 1734 White 2C3CDXAG9DH5683 l 0 Marked Garrute 
2012 Dodge 
Charger 

I 2c3CDXAG&Dh568332 PC 1738 White Marked Gar8!!e 



PC 1739 

PC 1749 

PC 1769 

PC 1771 

PC 1783 

PC 1800 

PC 1805 

ge 2012 Dod 
Charger 
White 

2012 Dod 
Charger 
White 

ge 

e 2014 Dodg 
Charger 
White 

ge 2014 Dod 
Charger 
White 

ge 2014 Dod 
Charger 
White 

2014 Nissa 
Sentra Wh 

n 

ite 

2014 Niss 
AltimaB 

an 

lue 

ge 2015 Dod 
Charger 

I PC 1
_
83

_
0
-l-

Whi
-
·1
_

e 
_

I 

PC 1848 

PC 1854 

PC 1857 

PC 1869 

ge2015 Dod 
Charger 
White 

2015 Dod 
Charger 
White 

ge 

2018 Ford 
Taurus 
White 

2018 Ford 
Taurus 
White 

' 
I I 

I 2C3CDXAGXDH568333 Marked Garage 
--

2C3CDXAG0DH568339 Marked Garage 

2C3CDXAG2EHI 72382 Marked Garage 

2C3CDXAG9EH172377 Marked Garage 
-

2C3CDXAG6EHI 72370 Marked Garage 

3N1AB7AP4EY239652 Unmarked Garage 

1N4AB7 AP9EN854567 Unmarked Garage 

2C3CDXAG3FH735280 Marked Garage 

4T1BE46KX7U65 l 077 Marked Garage 
- ·�·

1FAHP2MK3JGI 14580 Marked Garage 
·-

1FAHP2MK4JG104818 Marked Garage 

1FAHP2MKOJG10484 7 Marked I Garage 



r 2018 Ford 
Taurus 

PC 1872 White 1FAHP2MK2JG104851 Marked Garage 
-

2018 Ford 
Taurus 

PC 1875 White 1FAHP2MK8JG104854 Marked Garage 

2018 Ford I 

Taurus 
PC 1877 White 1FAHP2MK8JG104860 Marked Garage 

2018 Ford 
Taurus 

I PC 1882 White 1FAHP2MK4JG104866 Marked Garage 

2018 Ford 
Taurus 

PC 1883 White lF AHP2MK6JG 104867 Marked Garage 

2018 Ford 
Taurus 

PC 1884 White lF AHP2MK8JG 104868 Marked Garage 

2018 Ford 
Taurus 

PC 1886 White lF AHP2MK6JG 104870 Marked Garage 
-

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the foregoing municipally-owned surplus motor 
vehicles and equipment have or will be sold at an online auction. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Municipal Fleet Manager is authorized to sign 
necessary documents to transfer titles of motor vehicles and equipment, which were or are to be 
sold at the online auction by PropertyRoom.com. 

AGENDA DATE: ______ _ 
BY: JONES, HORHN 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 10 POINT DAT A SHEET Sept 29, 2025 
DATE 

POINTS COMMENTS 

1. Brief Description/Purpose ORDER AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF JACKSON TO 
RELEASE THE TITLES OF VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT 
SOLD BY PROPERTYROOM.COM 

2. Public Policy Initiative Crime Prevention 
I. Youth & Education
2. Crime Prevention
3. Cbanges in City Government
4. Neigbborhoocl Enhancement
s. Economic Development
6. JnfralJtructure and Transportation
7. Quality of Life

3. Who will be affected City of Jackson, 

4. Benefits
To improve the safety and well-being of the citizens of Jackson 
by dispose of vehicles that were obtained by seizures 

5. Schedule (beginning date)
IMMEDJATEL Y 

6. Location:
■ WARD

ALL WARDS 

■ CITYWIDE (yes or no) (area) 
CITY WIDE

• 

• Project limits if applicable 

I 
7. Action implemented by:

■ City Department JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT 

• Consultant

8. COST
NONE TO CITY OF JACKSON 

9. Source of Funding
• General Fund
• Grant
• Bond
• Other X 

-

10. EBO participation ABE % WAIVER yes_ no NIA 

AABE 
---

% WAIVER yes_ no N/A 
WBE % WAIVER yes_ no - NIA 

HBE % WAIVER yes_ no - NIA 

NABE % WAIVER yes_ no -- NIA 

-

I 

--
--

--

--

--



r Office of the City Attorney 455 F.ast Capitol Street 
Post Office Bo" 2779 
Jackson, Mississippi 39207-2779 
Telephone: (601) 960-1799 
Facsimile: (601) 960-1756 

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

This ORDER AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF JACKSON TO RELEASE THE TITLES 

VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT SOLD BY PROPERTYROOM.COM is legally sufficient 
placement in NOVUS Agenda. 

D ew artin, City Attorney 
I 

Sondra Moncure, Special Assistant��
----1

· '-----icfl-''--H,-' 

Chelsea Chicosky, Deputy City Attorn v_.,tJ.-.,1��"""'" 

M:/2s-
»ate



Assistant Chief of Police 

Wendell. Watts 

JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT
Tyree .Jones, Interim Chief of Police 

MEMORANDUM 

��-

Assistant Chief of Police 

Vincent Grizzell 

To: Tyree Jones, Interim Chief of Police �./ "'I

From: Vincent Grizzell, Assistant Chief of Police, Administration Division \j &

Date: September 29, 2025

Re: Agenda Item� ORDER AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF JACKSON
TO RELEASE THE TITLES OF VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT 
SOLD BY PROPERTYROOM.COM 

Attached please find the Agenda Item for Order Authorizing the City of Jackson to Release the 
Titles of Vehicles and Equipment Sold by PropertyRoom.Com. The Administration Division is 
requesting that the Finance department release the titles to the attached list of vehicles which will 
be obtain by PropertyRoom.com were sold and will be sold at the online auction. 

I am recommending that the City of Jackson release the title for the attached list of vehicles and 
allowing Property Room.com to sell at online auction, at a time of their choosing. 

Jackson Police Department 1327 E. Pascagoula Street, Jackson, MS 39205 1601.960.1234 



\ 

•·



I 



r ORDER RATIFYING AND APPROVING PAYMENT OF INVOICES SUBMITTED BY ANIMAL MEDICAL CENTER FOR GOODS AND SERVICES RENDERED TO THE JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT 
WHEREAS, Miss. Code Ann. § 21-17-5 states that the governing authoriti of ev municipality shall have the care, management, and control of municipal affairs and its 1'K:t'!n1>.1ihl, and finances and may adopt orders, resolutions, or ordinances with respect to same which are no 

V 
inconsistent with the Mississippi Constitution of 1890, the Mississippi Code of 1972, or any othe , statute or law of the State of Mississippi; and, 

WHEREAS, the Jackson Police Department obtained goods and services from Animal Medical Center located at 995 South Frontage Road, Jackson, Mississippi for its K-9s Loki, Angel, and Orion, as follows:

�,,1 ':!�J J,:•rn� 08/28/2025 
r 09/02/2025
09/02/2025 

340982 
~1 341010 

I 

341011 

Animal Care &Maintem1.11�1LokiJ 
I Animal Care &Maintenance (Angel) i Animal Care & Maintenance (Orion) Total 

$ 905.00 
$1,745.00 I
$2,097.00 
$4,747.00 

WHEREAS, the goods and services obtained from the vendor were lawful and for a proper municipal purpose and the sums invoiced are fair market value for the goods and services received; and, 
WHEREAS, the invoices from Animal Medical Center (#340982 in the amount of$905.00 for the K-9 Loki, #341010 in the amount of $1,745.00 for the K-9 Angel, and #340111 in the amount of $2,097.00 for the K-9 Orion) remain wtpaid and the City of Jackson's best interest would be served by payment of the invoices because payment would ensure that future goods and services can be procured. 
IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that invoices from Animal Medical Center (#340982 in the amount of$905.00 for the K-9 Loki, #341010 in the amount of $1,745.00 for the K-9 Angel, and #340111 in the amount of $2,097.00 for the K-9 Orion) are hereby ratified and approved, andthat that the total sum of$4,747.00 be paid to Animal Medical Center for the charges indicated on said invoices. 

Agenda Item No.:
,___

f ...... 4 __ October 21, 2025Jones, Horhn 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 10 POINT DATA SHEET 

DATE: September 2, 2025 

I POINTS I COMMENTS 

1. I Brief Description/ Purpose ORDER RATIFYING AND APPROVING PAYMENT OF INVOICES 
SUBMITTED BY ANIMAL MEDICAL CENTER FOR GOODS AND 
SERVICES RENDERED TO THE JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT 

2. Public Policy Initiative Crime Prevention Quality of Life, Neighborhood Enhancement 
1. Youth & Education
2. Crime & Prevention
3. Changes in City

Government
4, Neighborhood

Enhancement
s. Economic Development
6. Infrastructure and

Transportation
7. Quality of Life

3. Who will be affected City of Jackson Police Department 

4. Benefits Animal Care for Police Canines 

5. Schedule (beginning date) Upon council approva I 

6. Location: City in General 
• WARD
• CITYWIDE (yes or no)

(area)
• Project limits if

applicable
-

7. Action implemented by: Jackson Police Department 
• City Department
• Consultant

8. COST $4,747.00 

9. Source of Funding Account# 001.442.23.6419 
• General Fund
• Grant
• Bond
• Other

10. EBO Participation ABE % WAIVER Yes __ No __ N/a __ 
AABE % WAIVER Yes __ No __ N/a __ 
WBE % WAIVER Yes __ No __ N/a __ 
HBE % WAIVER Yes __ No __ N/a __ 
NABE % WAIVER Yes No N/a

-



Office of the City Attorney 455 East Capitol Street 
Post Office Box 2779 
Jackson, Mississippi 39207-2779 
Telephone: (601) 960-1799 
Facsimile: ( ' 756

�-
% 
'¼,, 

-� (<.• 

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

� 
I) 

This ORDER RATIFYING AND APPROVING PAYMENT OF INVOICES SUBMITTED )tv ,.� 
ANIMAL MEDICAL CENTER FOR GOODS AND SERVICES RENDERED TO THE JACK.'°N 
POLICE DEPARTMENT is legally sufficient for placement in NOVUS Agenda. 

\j 
'?(IS-/2:F 

Date 



Chief of Police 

Joseph Wade 

TO:

VIA: 

FROM:

DATE:

RE: 

JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT 

Investigative Services Bureau 
Sequema Banks, Deputy Chief of Police 

Memorandum 

Assistant Chief of Police 

Wendell Watts 

Tyree Jones, Interim Chief of Polle�

WendellWatts,AssistantChiefofPolice t,, ..L. f'1·t- {
Sequerna Banks, Deputy Chief of Investigative Services Bureau

Warren Hull, Captain of Special Operations � /?f'J r/1/tr 
Tuesday, September 2, 2025

Agenda Item Animal Medi�al Center

I am submitting an agenda item to ratify payments to the Animal Medical Center for 
services rendered to care for the Jackson Police Department Canine Officers (Angel, Loki, 
Orion). The total cost for the services rendered is $2,057. 



Animal Medical Center 

995 S. Frontage Rd. 
Jackson, MS 39204 
(601) 354-3622

FOR: Jackson Police Dpt-Fiscal Affairs 
-Suite 222
327 E. Pascagoula Street­
Jackson, MS 39201

WE LOVE YOUR PET ! 

Date For Qty Description 

Services by Troy Majure, DVM 
02-14-25 Orion 4 Board w/Clinic Food, Lg 

INVOICE 

Printed: 09-02-25 at 11 :10a 
Date: 09-02-25 
Account: 13166 

Invoice: 2!£1.1 

Net Price 

02-18-25 1 Canine Annuals w/ HW Antigen Test 
96.00 

155.00 
Includes Rabies, Canine Distemper, Canine Parvovirus, Canine Parainfluenza, 
Canine Adenovirus, Canine Bordetella 

02-18-25
08-26-25

1 Bio-Hazard Waste Disposal 
1 Proheart 6 Injection, Large <84Lbs 

Old balance 
1745.00 

Charges Payments 
352.00 0.00 

There will be a 1 1 /2 % per month interest charge on all accounts that are not paid before 
the 25th of the month. 

Reminders for: Orion (Weight: 61.0 lbs - 2y) 

02-24-26 Proheart 6 inj. 6 month - Larg 
02-18-26 Canine Annual w/ HW Antigen Te 

Last done 

08-26-25
02-18-25

5.00 
96.00 

New balance 
2097.00 



Animal Medical Center 

995 S. Frontage Rd. 
Jackson, MS 39204 
(601) 354-3622

WE LOVE YOUR PET ! 

FOR: Jackson Police Dpt-Fiscal Affairs 
-Suite 222
327 E. Pascagoula Street­
Jackson, MS 39201

Date For Qty Description 

Services by Troy Majure, DVM 
12-18-24 Angel 
01-24-25
02-14-25

1 Bath, Large 
1 Bath, Large 
1 Bath, Large 

INVOICE 

Printed: 09-02-25 at 11 :04a 
Date: 09-02-25 
Account: 13166 

Invoice: 

Net Price 

40.00 
40.00 
40.00 

02-14-25 1 Canine Annuals w/ HW Antigen Test 155.00 

02-14-25
04-04-25
04-04-25
04-11-25
04-15-25
04-28-25
04-28-25
05-09-25
05-23-25
06-06-25
06-20-25
07-07-25
07-07-25
07-18-25
08-04-25
08-04-25

Includes Rabies, Canine Distemper, Canine Parvovirus, Canine Parainfluenza, 
Canine Adenovirus, Canine Bordetella 

1 Bio-Hazard Waste Disposal 
3 Board w/Clinic Food, Lg 
1 Complimentary Bath/Nails/Ears 
1 Bath, Large 

10 Metronidazole 500 mg 
3 Board w/Clinic Food, Lg 
1 Complimentary Bath/Nails/Ears 
1 Bath, Large 
1 Bath, Large 
1 Bath, Large 
1 Bath, Large 
4 Board w/Clinic Food, Lg 
1 Complimentary Bath/Nails/Ears 
1 Bath, Large 
3 Board w/Clinic Food, Lg 
1 Complimentary Bath/Nails/Ears 

5.00 
72.00 

0.00 
40.00 

8.00 
72.00 

0.00 
40.00 
40.00 
40.00 
40.00 
96.00 
0.00 

40.00 
72.00 

0.00 

Old balance Charges Payments New balance 
905.00 840.00 0.00 

There will be a 1 1/2% per month interest charge on all accounts that are not paid before 
the 25th of the month. 

Reminders for: Angel (Weight: 67 .0 lbs - 8y) 

02-14-26 Canine Annual w/ HW Antigen Te 
10-02-25 Proheart 12 Injection, Large 

Last done 

02-14-25
10-02-24

1745.00 



INVOICE 
Animal Medical Center 

995 S. Frontage Rd. 
Jackson, MS 39204 
(601) 354--3622

WE LOVE YOUR PET ! 

FOR: Jackson Police Dpt-Fiscal Affairs 
-Suite 222
327 E. Pascagoula Street­
Jackson, MS 39201

Date For 

Services by Troy Majure, DVM 
12-13-24 Loki 
12-13-24
12-13-24
12-13-24
12-13-24
12-13-24
02-11-25
02-11-25
03-18-25
03-18-25
05-30-25
05-30-25

Qty Description 

20 Augmentin 500/125 
1 Dental Surgery 
1 Anesthesia 

2.50 Ketamine 100mg/ml 10ml 
0.50 Xylazine 1 00mg/ml 50ml 

1 Pen BP Injection 
4 Board w/Clinic Food, Lg 
1 Complimentary Bath/Nails/Ears 
1 Board w/Clinic Food, Lg 
1 Proheart 6 Injection 6 months, Large 
1 Bath. Large 
1 Canine Annuals w/ HW Antigen Test 

Printed: 09-02-25 at 11 :11a 
Date: 08-28-25 
Account: 13166 

Invoice: 340982 

Net Price 

0.00 •• 
265.00 
36.00 
18.00 

1.00 
25.00 
96.00 

0.00 
24.00 
96.00 
40.00 

155.00 
Includes Rabies, Canine Distemper, Canine Parvovirus, Canine Parainfluenza, 
Canine Adenovirus, Canine Bordetella 

05-30-25 1 Bio-Hazard Waste Disposal 
05-30-25 1 Bath, Large 
06-02-25 1 Board w/Clinic Food, Lg 
06-20-25 1 Bath, Large 

Old balance Charges Payments Discount 
40.00 865.00 0.00 5.00 •• 

Your Invoice total reflects our Clients (default class) discount. 

There will be a 1 1/2% per month interest charge on all accounts that are not paid before 
the 25th of the month. 

Reminders for: Loki (Weight: 62.0 lbs - 7y) 

05-30-26 Canine Annual w/ HW Antigen Te 
09-16-25 Proheart 6 inj. 6 month - Larg 

Last done 

05-30-25
03-18-25

5.00 
40.00 
24.00 
40.00 

New balance 
905.00 





r 

{ 





ORDER RATIFYING THE JACKSON POLICE 
DEPARTMENT'S TERMINATION OF "PROJECT PROVE 
IT" WITH FLOCK GROUP, INC. (RA VEN) AND THE CITY 
OF JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT 

WHEREAS, the Jackson Police Department recommends the governing authority for 
City of Jackson opt out of the "Project Prove It" trial period for the implementation of the au 
detection solution and authorize the mayor to terminate the "Gun Detection Agreement" wit 
Flock Group, Inc. at no cost to the City; and, 

WHEREAS, on April 22, 2025, the governing authority for the City of Jackson authorized 
the Mayor to execute an agreement between the City of Jackson, Mississippi's Police Department, 
and the Flock Group, Inc. for the Flock Safety Raven for audio detection of crime indicators; and, 

WHEREAS, the agreement provided the Jackson Police Department with "Flock's Project 
Prove It: 180-day, no-cost, no commitment, unconditional opt-out project trial period" for the 
installation and implementation of a gunshot detection solution; and, 

WHEREAS, Flock installed its first hardware on or about August 04, 2025 and, after 
implementation of the Flock Hardware, the Jackson Police Department has determined the gunshot 
detection solution is not suitable for the department and the City; and, 

WHEREAS, as provided in the Agreement, the City is exercising its right to terminate the 
agreement within the one-hundred-eighty-day opt-out period without penalty or fees; and, 

WHEREAS, the Jackson Police Department has provided timely notice, on or about 
October 13, 2025, of same and directed the timely removal of all associated Flock hardware and 
services, a copy of which is attached and made a part of the minutes. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Jackson Police 
Department's written notice of termination of the agreement with Flock Group, Inc., pursuant to 
the tennination provisions in the Project Prove It Order Form and Section 7.1 of the agreement, is 
hereby ratified. Such termination shall be without penalty or fees as the notice was exercised within 
the opt-out period. To the extent any renewal window or future renewal term is implicated, the 
Department is further authorized to provide timely written notice of non-renewal. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Department is authorized to coordinate with Flock 
for the removal of all Flock hardware and related equipment within a commercially reasonable 
time and to ensure appropriate handling of any City data and records consistent with the Agreement 
and applicable law. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Mayor, City Attorney, Chief of Police, and Chief 
Financial Officer are authorized to execute atl documents and take all actions necessary to carry 
out the intent of this Order. 

Agenda Item No. J.J) 
October 21, 2025 
(Jones, Horhn) 



IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Order shall be effective upon adoption. 

Item 
Agenda Date ___ _
By: Jones, Horhn 



Assistant Chief of PoUce 

Wendell Watts 

JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Interim Chief of Police Tyree D. Jones 

October 13, 2025 

Asslttant Chief of PoUce 

Vincent Grizzell 

Flock Group, Inc. 
1170 Howell Mill Road NW, Ste 120 
Atlanta, Geoi:gia 30318 

via emaQ aad USPS Certi.iedMail 

7021-2720-0000-4648;5666 

Attn: Mr. Seamus Ford 
seamus.ford@flocksafery.com 

Re: Termination of Participation in Project and Removal of Raven Devices

Dear Mr. Fotd: 

This letter serves as the City of Jackson Police Department's foonal notice to Flock Safety that the 
City of Jackson's Police Depatbnent is terminating the .. Gun Detection Agreement." The patties 
signed the Agreement on April 30, 2025 (City of Jackson) and April 23, 2025 (Flock). The first 
installation of Flock Hardware was deployed on or about August 04, 2025. Pursuant to Section 7 .1 of 
the Agreement, the Jackson Police Department is exercising its right to terminate participation within 
the ''Project Prove It'' 180-day Opt-Out Period without penalty or fees. 

In accordance with Section 7.2 of the Agreement, F1ock is requited to remove any applicable hardware 
at a commercially reasonable tittle. We therefore request the prompt removal of all Flock Raven 
devices and associated equipment installed to-date as part of this Project. Please contact the JPD's 
designated liaison, Captain :Michael Outland, moutland@jacksonms.gov, (601) 960-2138 to provide a 
schedule for removal and to ensure removal is conducted in an orderly and timely manner without 
disruption to City infrastructure or Departmental operations. 

We appreciate the collaboration provided during the course of this project. 

Sincere�r,� � 

;r:�·Je».�
1nterim Chief of Police 
Jackson Police Department 

cc Megan Kildahl, via email: megan.timmeiman.kildahl@flockstafty.com 
City Legal 
Honorable John Horhn, Mayor City of Jackson 

Jackson Police Department 1327 E. Pascagoula Street, Jackson, MS 39205 1601.960.l 234 



Office of the City Attorney 455 East Capitol Street 
Post Office Box 2779 
Jackson, Mississippi 39207-2779 
Telephone: (601) 960-1799 

cs,mile: (601) 960-17S6 

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNE 

This ORDER RATIFYING THE JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT'S 
TERMINATION OF "PROJECT PROVE IT" WITH FLOCK GROUP, INC. 
(RAVEN) AND THE CITY OF JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT is 
legally sufficient for placement in NOVUS Agenda. 

Dr w Martin, City Attorney -4a.ir::z.___J 
Sondra Moncure, Special Assistant�

.,_,.
.,_.,,.,..,. 

Chelsea Chicosky, Deputy City Atto�n .. "''.--&-1-<e:'s.�M.....4'

@ 11-1/2-� 
Date 



"iJ Se3rch Alerts flockOS VMS 

Oe\•rce Hub i.'ep!llyment Traci.<!• 

27�. complete! 9 

1
156
PLANNING 

.ocatNl'INarN-

A-oe8 2�1$ Vernon Df 
G�•.th'"Gt C..ttt,o;, 

R•o•o 5417 R_,on Ad 
Gun1t1 .. t �.on 

AIIOOlll7'1i�Ad 
,;�.c,t Oltei:tion 

R•Of;l IUJ�y"'°"dAd 
G,r.n.r•� oete� 

RsUOneo-s, 
'-"'""'"'·tOt":��10n 

A..,6132114 �I-hi 
.zi-.�o•·•�. 

Devices Shar!ng Insights 

( 
0 

PERMITTING 

T t-1lters 

� INSTALL�D 

I!/ INSTAUED 

INSTALLED 

I'., INSTALLED 

INSTALLED 

Evidence Admin 

0 

INSTAlllNG 

Compltl• 
llug4,10H 

Con,pt.C• 
Aug•. 1015 

Complete 
Aug 4, 102� 

Coropl..-c• 
Aug 5. :!0:'! 

if,. 

Planning Portal • & J
o 

I INSTALLEU 

J1D S...,_ Map 



Oocuslgn Envelope ID: F2831.AFS-S03!i-49BA•94�3-54, 44�'7M 



•



Docusign Envelope ID: F2B37AFB-5D35-49BA-9493-54144EB347M 

GUNSHOT DETECTION AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is made by and between the CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI POLICE 
DEPARTMENT and FLOCK GROUP, INC. The "Project Prove It" 180-day tenn period is 
effective beginning on the 23rd day of April, 2025. The Parties enter into this Agreement upon the 
following terms and conditions, to-wit 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. DEFINITIONS
Certain capitalized terms, not otherwise defined herein, have the meanings set forth or 

cross-referenced in this Section 1. 

1.1 "Agreemenf' means the order form (to be provided as Exhibit A, "Order Form"), 
these terms and conditions, and any document therein incoiporated by reference in 
section 11.4. 

1.2 "Anonynuzed Data" means Customer Data permanently stripped of identifying 
details and any potential personally identifiable information; by commercially available 
standards which irreversibly alters data in such a way that a data subject (i.e., individual 
person or entity) can no longer be identified directly or indirectly. 

I .3 "Authorized End User(s)" means any individual employees, agents, or contractors of 
Customer accessing or using the Services, under the rights granted to Customer pursuant 
to this Agreement. 

1.4 "Customer Data" means the data, media, and content provided by Customer through 
the Services. For the avoidance of doubt, the Customer Data will iµclude the Footage. 

1.5. "Customer Hardware" means the third-party camera owned or provided by 
Customer and any other physical elements that interact with the Embedded Software and 
the Web Interface to provide the Services. 

1.6 "Effective Date" means the date this Agreement is mutually executed (valid and 
enforceable) by both Parties. 

1.7 "Embedded Software" means the Flock proprietary software and/or finnware 
integrated with or installed on the Flock Hardware or Customer Hardware. 

1.8 "Flock Hardware" means the Flock device(s), which may include the pole, clamps, 
solar panel, installation components, and any other physical elements that interact with 



Doeuslgn Envelope ID: F2B37AFB-5D35�9BA-9493-54144EB347M 

the Embedded Software and the Web Interface, to provide the Flock Services as 
specifically set forth in the applicable Order Form. 

1.9 "Flock IF' means the Services, the Embedded Software, and any intellectual 
property or proprietary information therein or otherwise provided to Customer and/or its 
Authorized End Users. Flock IP does not include Footage (as defined below). 

1.10 "Flock Services" means the provision of Flock's software and hardware situational 
awareness solution, via the Web Interface, for automatic license plate detection, alerts, 
audio detection, searching image records, video and sharing Footage. 
1.11 "Footage" means still images, video, audio, and other data captured by the Flock 
Hardware or Customer Hardware in the coUISe of and provided via the Flock Services. 

1.12 "Integration Data" means any dislribution of data from a Customer requested third 
party integration. 

1.13 "Installation Services" means the services provided by Flock for installation of 
Flock Services. 

1.14 "Permitted Purpose" means legitimate public safety and/or business purpose, 
including but not limited to the awareness, prevention, and prosecution of crime; 
investigations; and prevention of commercial harm, to the extent permitted by law. 

1.15 "Retention Periotf' means the time period that the Customer Data is stored within 
the cloud storage, as specified in the applicable Order Form. 

l.16 "Term" means the date, unless otherwise stated in the Order Form, upon which the
cameras are validated by both Parties as operational.

1.17 "Web Interface" means the website(s) or application(s) through which Customer 
and its Authorized End Users can access the Services. 

l. SERVICES AND SUPPORT

2.1 Provision of Access. Flock hereby grants to Customer a non-exclusive, non­
transferable right to access the features and functions of the Flock Services via the Web 
Interface during the Term, solely for the Authorized End Users. The Footage will be 
available for Authorized End Users to access and download via the Web Interface for the 
Retention Period. Authorized End Users will be required to sign up for an account and 
select a password and username ("User ID"). Customer shall be responsible for all acts 
and omissions of Authorized End Users. Customer shall undertake reasonable efforts to 
make all Authorized End Users aware of all applicable provisions of this Agreement and 
shall cause Authorized End Users to comply with such provisions. Flock may use the 
services of one or more third parties to deliver only the specific Flock Services agreed 
upon by the Parties in the applicable Order Form, (such as using a third party to host the 
Web Interface for cloud storage or a cell phone provider for wireless cellular coverage). 



Oocu,ign Envelope ID: F2837AFB-5D3!5-498A-9493-54144EB347A4 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Flock Safety will remain fully liable for the performance 
of its obligations under this Agreement. 

2.2 Embedded Software License. Flock grants Customer a limited, non-exclusive, non­

transferable, non-sub licensable ( except to the Authorized End Users), revocable right to 
use the Embedded Software as it pertains to Flock Services, solely as necessary for 

Customer to use the Flock Services. 

2.3 Support Services. Flock shall monitor the Flock Services, and any applicable device 
health, in order to improve performance and functionality. Flock will use commercially 
reasonable efforts to respond to requests for support within seventy-two (72) hours. Flock 
will provide Customer with reasonable technical and on-site support and maintenance 
seivices in-person, via phone or by email at support@Oocksafety.com (such services 
collectively referred to as "Support Services"). 

2.4 Updates to Platform. Flock may make any updates to system or platform that it 
deems necessary or useful to (i) maintain or enhance the quality or delivery of Flock's 
products or services to its agencies, the competitive strength of, or market for, Flock's 
products or services such platform or system's cost efficiency or performance, or (ii) to 

comply with applicable law. 'Parties understand that such updates are necessary from time 
to t ime and will not diminish the quality of the services or materially change any terms or 
conditions within this Agreement. 

2.5 Service Interruption. Services may be interrupted in the event that: (a) Flock's 

provision of the Services to Customer or any Authorized End User is prohibited by 
applicable law; (b) any third-party services required for Services are interrupted; (c) if 
Services are being used for malicious, unlawful, or otherwise unauthorized use; ( d) there 
is a threat or attack on any of the Flock IP by a third party; or (e) scheduled or emergency 
maintenance ("Service Interruption"). 

Flock will make commercially reasonable efforts to provide written notice of any Service 
Interruption to Customer, to provide updates, and to resume providing access to Flock 
Services as soon as reasonably possible after the event giving rise to the Service 
Interruption is cured. Flock will have no liability for any damage, liabilities, losses 
(including any loss of data or profits), or any other consequences that Customer or any 
Authorized End User may incur as a result of a Service Interruption. Customer and Flock 
understand and agree that to the extent any provisions of the Agreement limit Flock's 
liability to Customer under the Agreement, such limitation(s) will be effective only to the 
extent permitted by law. 

To the extent that the Service Interruption is not caused by Customer's direct actions or 
by the actions of parties associated with the Customer, the time will be tolled by the 
duration of the Service Interruption (for any continuous suspension lasting at least one 
full day). For example, in the event of a Service Interruption lasting five (5) continuous 
days, Customer will receive a credit for five (5) free days at the end of the Term. 



ooeua!gn Enuelope ID: F2B37AFB-5035--49BA-9493-541+4EB347A4 

2.6 Service Suspension. Flock may temporarily suspend Customer's and any Authorized 
End User's access to any portion or all of the Flock IP or Flock Service if (a) there is a 
threat or attack on any of the Flock IP by Customer; (b) Customer's or any Authorized 
End User's use of the Flock IP disrupts or poses a security risk to the Flock IP or any 
other customer or vendor of Flock; (c) Customer or any Authorized End User is/are using 
the Flock IP for fraudulent or illegal activities; (d) Customer has violated any tenn of this 
provision, including, but not limited to, utilizing Flock Services for anything other than 
the Permitted Pwpose; or ( e) any unauthorized access to Flock Services through 
Customer's account ( .. Service Suspension"). Customer shall not be entitled to any 
remedy for the Service Suspension period, including any reimbursement, tolling, or 
credit. If the Service Suspension was not caused by Customer, the Tenn will be tolled by 
the duration of the Service Suspension. 

2.7 Hazardous Conditions. Flock Services do not contemplate hazardous materials, or 
other hazardous conditions, including, without limit, asbestos, lead. or toxic or flammable 
substanc�s. In the event any such hazardous materials are discovered in the designated 
locations in which Flock is to perform services under this Agreement, Flock shall have 
the right to cease work immediately. 

3. CUSTOMER OBLIGATIONS

3.1 Customer Obligations, Flock will assist Customer Authorized End Users in the 
creation of a User ID. Authorized End Users agree to provide Flock with accurate, 
complete, and updated registration information. Authorized End Users may not select as 
their User ID, a name that they do not have the right to use, or any other name with the 
intent of impersonation. Customer and Authorized End Users may not transfer their 
account to anyone else without prior written permission of Flock. Authorized End Users 
shall not share their account usemame or password information and must protect the 
security of the usemarne and password. Unless otherwise stated and defined in this 
Agreement, Customer shall not designate Authorized End Users for persons who are not 
officers, employees, or agents of Customer. Authorized End Users shall only use 
Customer-issued email addresses for the creation of their User ID. 

Customer is responsible for any Authorized End User activity associated with its account. 
Customer shall ensure that Customer provides Flock with up-to-date contact information 
at all times during the Term of this Agreement. Customer shall be responsible for 
obtaining and maintaining any equipment and ancillary services needed to connect to, 
access or otherwise use the Flock Services (e.g., laptops, internet connection, mobile 
devices, etc.). 

Customer shall provide Flock with reasonable access and use of Customer facilities and 
Customer personnel in order to enable Flock to perform Services (such obligations of 
Customer are collectively defined as "Customer Obligations"). Customer does not agree 
to pay extra compensation, fees, or allowances after service has been rendered or a 
contract has been made, or for any payment not authorized by law. 



Docusfgn Envelope 10: F2B37AFB-5035-49BA-9493-54144EB347A4 

3.2 Customer Representations and Warranties. Customer represents, covenants, and 
warrants that Customer shall use Flock Services only in compliance with this Agreement 
and all applicable laws and regulations, including but not limited to any laws relating to 
the recording or sharing of data, video, photo, or audio content. 

4. DATA USE AND LICENSING

4.1 Customer Data. As between Flock and Customer, all right, title and interest in the 
Customer Data, belong to and are retained solely by Customer. Customer hereby grants to 
Flock a limited, non-exclusive, royalty-free, irrevocable, worldwide license to use the 
Customer Data and perform all acts as may be necessary for Flock to provide the Flock 
Services to Customer. Flock does not own and shall not sell nor share Customer Data. 

4.2 Customer Generated Data. Flock may provide Customer with the opportunity to 
post, upload, display, publish, distribute, transmit, broadcast, or otherwise make 
available, messages, text, illustrations, files, images, graphics, photos, comments, sounds, 
music, videos, information, content, ratings, reviews, data, questions, suggestions, or 
other information or materials produced by Customer ("Customer Generated Data"). 

Customer shall retain whatever legally cognizable right, title, and interest in Customer 
Generated Data. Customer understands and acknowledges that Flock has no obligation to 
monitor or enforce Customer's intellectual property rights of Customer Generated Data. 
Customer grants Flock a non-exclusive, irrevocable, worldwide, royally-free, license to 
use the Customer Generated Data for the pUIJlOSe of providing Flock Services. Flock does 
not own and shall not sell nor share Customer Generated Data. 

4.3 Anonymized Data, Flock shall have the right to collect, analyze, and anonymize 
Customer Data and Customer Generated Data to the extent such anonymization renders 
the data non-identifiable to create Anonymized Data to use and perform the Services and 
related systems and technologies, including the training of machine learning algorithms. 
Customer hereby grans Flock a non-exclusive, worldwide, perpetual, royalty-free right 
to use and distribute such Anonymized Data to improve and enhance the Services and for 
other development, diagnostic and corrective purposes, and other Flock offerings. Parties 
understand that the aforementioned license is required for continuity of Services. Flock 
does not own and shall not sell Anonymized Data. 

4.4 Data Distribution. Customer may, upon written request, choose to integrate Flock 
Services with a third party to either distribute Integration Data or Customer Data (such 
third party, "Recipient"). Upon such request, Customer hereby grants to Flock a non• 
exclusive, non-transferable, royalty-free, perpetual license to access, share, view, rtcord, 
duplicate, store, save, reproduce, modify, display, and distribute Customer Data and/or 
Integration Data, as required by the requested distribution. Customer acknowledges that 
such data may be viewed, recorded, duplicated, stored, saved, reproduced, modified, 
displayed, distributed, and retained by Recipient for a period longer than Flock's standard 
retention period and hereby provides consent to such retention period. Unless expressly 
listed in the Order Form, the provision, access, or use of any Application Program.ming 
Interfaces ("APls") is not included under this Agreement. Any rights, licenses, or 



Docusign Envelope ID: F2837AFB-5D35-49BA-9493-54144EB347A4 

obligations related to APls shall be governed solely by the terms set forth in the Order 
Fonn or a separate agreement between the parties. The parties shall retain all records 
directly relating to this Agreement during the Agreement's term and for a minimum of an 
additional three (3) years. Further, such records will be available at reasonable times for 

inspection and audit by the Customer during the term of this Agreement and for three (3) 
years thereafter. unless otherwise prescribed under the Mississippi Department of 
Archives and History. Flock shall notify Customer in writing prior to the destruction of 
records. A copy of the records shall be provided upon request. 

5. CONFIDENTIALITY; DISCLOSURES

5.1 Confidentiality. To the extent required by any applicable public records requests, 
each Party (the "Receiving Party") understands that the other Party (the "Disclosing 

Party"} has disclosed or may disclose business, technical or financial information relating 

to the Disclosing Party's business (hereinafter referred to as "Proprietary Information" 

of the Disclosing Party) subject to the following conditions: 

If a public records request is made for any information provided to the Company, 
pursuant to the Agreement, the Company shall promptly notify the disclosing party of 
such request. The disclosing party shall promptly institute appropriate legal proceedings 
to protect its information. No party to the Agreement shall be liable to the other party for 
disclosures of information required by court order or required by law. Proprietary 

Information includes non-public information provided by the Disclosing Party to the 
Receiving Party regarding features, functionality, and performance of this Agreement. 

The Receiving Party agrees: (i} to take the same security precautions to protect against 

disclosure or unauthorized use of such Proprietary Information that the Party takes with 
its own proprietary information, but in no event less than commercially reasonable 
precautions, and (ii) not to use ( except in performance of the Services or as otherwise 
permitted herein) or divulge to any third person any such Proprietary Information. 

The Disclosing Party agrees that the foregoing shall not apply with respect to any 
infonnation that the Receiving Party can document (a) is or becomes generally available 
to the public; or (b) was in its possession or known by it prior to receipt from the 

Disclosing Party; or (c) was rightfully disclosed to it without restriction by a third party; 
or (d) was independently developed without use of any Proprietary Information of the 

Disclosing Party. 

Nothing in this Agreement will prevent the Receiving Party from disclosing the 
Proprietary Information pursuant to any judicial or governmental order, provided that the 

Receiving Party gives the Disclosing Party reasonable prior notice of such disclosure to 
contest such order. At the termination of this Agreement, all Proprietary Jnfonnation will 
be rctumed to the Disclosing Party, destroyed or erased (if recorded on an erasable 
storage medium), together with any copies thereof, when no longer needed for the 

purposes above, or upon request from the Disclosing Party, and in any case upon 
termination of the Agreement if not superseded by any State of Mississippi laws requiring 



Docuslgn Envelope ID: F2837AFB•503S-49BA·9493-54144E8347A4 

or pennitting retention. Notwithstanding any termination. all confidentiality obligations 
of Proprietary Information that is trade secret shall continue in perpetuity or until such 
information is no longer trade secret. 

5.2 Usage Restrictions on Flock IP. Flock and its licensors retain all right, title and 
interest in and to the Flock IP and its components, and Customer aclmowledges that it 
neither owns nor acquires any additional rights in and to the foregoing not expressly 
granted by this Agreement. Customer further acknowledges that Flock retains the right to 
use the foregoing for purposes described herein. 
Customer and Authorized End Users shall not (i) directly or indirectly, reverse engineer, 
decompile, disassemble or otherwise attempt to  discover or recreate the source code, 
object code or underlying structure, ideas or algorithms of the Flock Services or any 
software provided hereunder; modify, translate, or create derivative works based on the 
Flock Services or any software provided hereunder; (ii) attempt to modify, alter, tamper 
with or repair any of the Flock IP, or attempt to create any derivative product from any of 
the foregoing; (iii) interfere or attempt to interfere in any manner with the functionality or 
proper working of any of the Flock IP; (iv) remove, obscure, or alter any notice of any 
intellectual property or proprietary right appearing on or contained within the Flock 
Services or Flock TP; (v) use the Flock Services for anything other than the Permitted 
Pulpose; or, (vi} assign, sublicense, sell, resell, lease, rent, or otherwise 1ransfer, convey, 
pledge as security, or otherwise encumber, Customer's rights. 

5.3 Disclosure of Footage. Subject to and during the Retention Period, Flock may 
access, use, preserve and/or disclose the Footage to law enforcement authorities, 
government officials, or, if legally required to do so, third parties, or if Flock has a good 
faith belief that such access, use, preservation or disclosure is reasonably necessary to 
comply with a legal process after notice of proposed disclosure is provided in writing to 
the Customer , enforce this Agreement, or detect, prevent or otherwise address security, 
privacy, fraud or technical issues, or emergency situations. 

6. PAYMENT OF FEES

6.l Billing and Payment of Fees. Customer agrees to make payment in accordance with
Mississippi law on "Timely Payments for Purchases by Public Bodies," Mississippi Code
Annotated Section 31-7-305(2), et seq., as amended, which generally provides for
payment of undisputed amounts within forty-five (45) days ofreceipt ofthe invoice. The
Company's invoices shall be submitted to the City using the processes and procedures
identified by the City. No payment, including final payment, shall be construed as
acceptance of defective or incomplete work, and shall remain responsible and liable for
full performance after the invoice date. The Company understands and agrees that the
City of Jackson is exempt from the payment of taxes and that the Customer shall pay the
fees set forth in the applicable Order Form based on the billing structure and payment
terms as indicated in the Order Form. To the extent the Order Fonn is silent, Cus.tomer
shall pay all invoices net thirty (30) days from the date of receipt.



Docuslgn Envelope ID: F2837AFB-5035-49BA-9493-64144EB347A4 

If Customer believes that Flock has billed Customer incorrectly, Customer must contact 
Flock no later than thirty (30) days after the closing date on the first invoice in which the 
err or problem appeared to receive an adjustment or credit. If any undisputed feeis more 
than 45 days overdue, Flock may, without limiting its other rights and remedies, suspend 
delivery of its service until such undisputed invoice is paid in fu11. Flock shall provide at 
least thirty (30) days' prior written notice to Customer of the payment delinquency before 
exercising any suspension right. Any late fees for payments not made within forty-five 
(45) days of receipt of the invoice as noted above shall be paid in accordance with Miss.
Code Ann. Section 31-7-305( 3 ), as amended. Any provisions to the contrary are null and
void.

6.2 Notice of Changes to Fees. In the event of any changes to fees, Flock shall provide 
Customer with sixty (60) days written notice (email sufficient) prior to the end of the 
Initial Tenn or Renewal Term (as applicable}. A:ny such changes to fees shall only impact 
subsequent Renewal Terms. 

6.3 Tax�s. To the extent Customer is not a tax exempt entity, Customer is responsible for 
all taxes, levies, or duties, excluding only taxes based on Flock's net income. imposed by 
taxing authorities associated with the order. If Flock has the legal obligation to pay or 
collect taxes, including amount subsequently assessed by a taxing authority, for which 
Customer is responsible, the appropriate amount shall be invoice to and paid by Customer 
unless Customer provides Flock a legally sufficient tax exemption certificate and Flock 
shall not charge Customer any taxes from which it is exempt. If any deduction or 
withholding is required by law, Customer shall notify Flock and shall pay Flock any 
additional amounts necessary to ensure that the net amount that Flock receives, after any 
deduction and withholding, equals the amount Flock would have received if no deduction 
or withholding had been required. 

7. TERM AND TERMINATION

7.1 Term. The initial term of this Agreement shall be for the period of time set forth on 
the Order F onn ( the "Term"). The parties explicitly agree that upon execution of this 
agreement by both parties, Customer is committing to Flock•s PROJECT PROVE IT: 
180-day, no-cost, no commitment. unconditional opt-out project trial period of Flock's
installation and implementation of gunshot detection solution for 3.5 miles of coverage
for the City of Jackson. Customer bas a 180 day opt-out period ("Opt-Out Period''} after
implementation of the first Flock Hardware to terminate this Agreement without penalty
or fees. Terms, except those related to payment, in this Agreement shall be effective on
the date the Agreement is mutually executed by both Parties under the PROJECT
PROVE IT term of 180 days, The term of one year and applicable provisions, including
payment provisions, shall commence on written confirmation from the Customer after the
180:day PROJECT PROVE IT ends. In any case, such written confirmation must be
provided by the Customer no later than i.fteen ( 15) days following the conclusion of the
PROJECT PROVE IT. Following the Term, unless otherwise indicated on the Order
Form, this Agreement will automatically renew for successive renewal terms of the
greater of one year or the length set forth on the Order Form (each, a "Renewal Term")



Dowslgn Envelope ID: F2837AFB-5035-498A-9493-54144E8347M 

unless either Party gives the other Party notice of non-renewal at least thirty (30) days 
prior to the end of the then-current tenn, and subject to the approval of the Customer's 
(City of Jackson's) governing authority. 

7 .2 Termination. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, Flock will remove 
any applicable Flock Hardware at a commercially reasonable time period. ln the event of 
any material breach of this Agreement, the non-breaching Party may terminate this 
Agreement prior to the end of the Term by giving thirty (30) days prior written notice to 
the breaching Party; provided, however, that this Agreement will not terminate if the 
breaching Party has cured the breach prior to the expiration of such thirty (30) day period 
("Cure Period"). Such termination shall not prejudice the non-breaching party's right to 
pursue any and all other legal or equitable remltdies available to it. Either Party may 
terminate this Agreement (i) upon the institution by or against the other Party of 
insolvency; receivership or bankruptcy proceedings, (ii) upon the other Party's making an 
assignment for the benefit of creditors, or (iii) upon the other Party's dissolution or 
ceasing to do business, a'iid shall provide the other Party with immediate notice of such 
proceedings in 7.2 (i)-(iii). 

In the event of a material breach by Flock, and Flock is unable to cure within the Cure 
Period, Flock will refund Customer a pro-rata portion of the pre-paid fees for Services 
not received due to such termination. 
7.3 Survival. The fo1lowing Sections wj)I survive termination: I, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8.3, 8.4, 9, 
8.3, 8.4, 9, 10.1 and 11.6. 

8. REMEDY FOR DEFECT; WARRANTY AND DISCLAIMER

8.1 Manufacturer Defect. Upon a malfunction or failure of Flock Hardware or 
Embedded Software (a "De/ecf'), Customer must notify Flock's technical support team. 
In the event of a Defect, Flock shall make a commercially reasonable attempt to repair or 
replace the defective Flock Hardware at no additional cost to the Customer. Flock 
reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to repair or replace such Defect, provided that 
Flock shaJI conduct inspection or testing within a commercially reasonable time, but no 
longer than seven (7) business days after Customer gives notice to Flock. 

8.2 Replacements. In the event that Flock Hardware is lost, stolen, or damaged, 
Customer may request a replacement of Flock Hardware at a fee according to the reinstall 
fee schedule (https://www.flocksafety.com/reinstall-fee-schedule). In the event that 
Customer chooses not to replace lost, damaged, or stolen Flock Hardware, Customer 
understands and agrees that Flock is not liable for any resulting impact to Flock Service, 
nor shall Customer receive a refund for the lost, damaged, or stolen Flock Hardware. 

8.3 Warranty. Flock shall use reasonable efforts consistent with prevailing industry 
standards to maintain the Services in a manner which minimizes errors and interruptions 
in the Services and shall perform the Installation Services in a professional and 
worlananlike manner. Services may be temporarily unavailable for scheduled 
maintenance or for unscheduled emergency maintenance, either by Flock or by third-



Docusign Envelor:,e ID: F2B37AFP,.5D35-<49BA-9493�414'4EB347A4 

party providers, or because of other causes beyond Flock's reasonable control, but Flock 
shall use reasonable efforts to provide advance notice in writing or by e-mail of any 
scheduled service disruption. 

8.4 Disclaimer. THE REMEDY DESCRIBED IN SECTION 8.1 ABOVE IS 
CUSTOMER'S SOLE REMEDY, AND FLOCK'S SOLE LIABILITY, WITH RESPECT 
TO DEFECTS. FLOCK IS NOT LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES OR ISSUES 
ARISING FROM THIRD-PART Y DISTRIBUTIONS REQUESTED BY  CUSTOMER. 
AFOREMENTIONED DISTRIBUTION IS AT CUSTOMER ·s·owN RISK. FLOCK 
DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE SERVICES WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR 
ERROR FREE; NOR DOES IT MAKE ANY WARRANTY AS TO THE RESULTS 
THAT MAY BE OBTAINED FROM USE OF THE SERVICES. EXCEPT AS 
EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION, THE SERVICES ARE PROVIDED "AS 
IS" AND FLOCK DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, 
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. THIS 
DISCLAIMER ONLY APPLlES TO TIIE EXTENT ALLOWED BY THE 
GOVERNING LAW OF THE STATE MENTIONED IN SECTION 11.6. 

8.5 Insurance. Flock will maintain commercial general liability policies to be provided 
as Exhibit B. 

8.6 Force Majeure. Parties are not responsible or liable for any delays or failures in 
performance from any cause beyond their control, including, but not limited to acts of 
God, changes to law or regulations, embargoes, war, terrorist acts, recognized health 
threats (i.e., disease outbreaks, epidemics or pandemics) as determined by the World 
Health Organization, the Centers for Disease Control, local government authority or 
health agencies,, issues of national security, acts or omissions of third-party technology 
providers, riots, fires, earthquakes, floods, power blackouts, strikes, supply chain 
shortages of equipment or supplies, financial institution crisis, weather conditions or acts 
ofhackers, internet service.providers, computer viruses, incompatible or defective 
equipment, software or services not supplied or controlled directly by either party, 
governmental regulation or advisory, any other third party acts or omissions or other 
similar occurrence beyond the control of the parties, where any of those factors, 
circumstances, situations or conditions or similar ones prevent, dissuade, or unreasonably 
delay performance of this Agreement, rendering performance of this Agreement by a 
party illegal, impossible, inadvisable, or commercially impracticable. The Agreement 
may be cancelled by either party, without liability, damages, fees, or penalty, and any 
unused deposits or amounts paid shall be refunded, for any one or more of the above 
reasons, by written notice to the other party to the extent that the force majeure event 
lasts for longer than sixty (60) consecutive business days. 

9. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY; INDEMNITY

9.1 Limitation of Liability. NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE 
CONTRARY, FLOCK, ITS OFFICERS, AFFlLIATES, REPRESENTATIVES, 



Docuslgn Envelope ID: F2B37AFB-5D35-49BA-9493-54144EB347A4 

CONTRACTORS AND EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE OR LIABLE 
WITH RESPECT TO ANY SUBJECT MATTER OF THIS AGREEMENT OR TERMS 
AND CONDITIONS RELATED THERETO UNDER ANY CONTRACT, 
NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY, PRODUCT LIABILITY, OR OTHER THEORY: 
(A) FOR LOSS OF REVENUE, BUSINESS OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION; (B}
J\ICOMPLETE, CORRUPT, OR INACCURATE DATA; (C) COST OF 
PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS, SERVICES OR TECHNOLOGY; (D)
FOR ANY INDIRECT, EXEMPLARY; INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL OR
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES; (E) FOR ANY MA ITER BEYOND FLOCK'S
ACTUAL KNOWLEDGE OR REASONABLE CONTROL INCLUDING REPEAT
CRIMINAL ACTIVITY OR INABILITY TO CAPTURE FOOTAGE; OR (F) FOR ANY
AMOUNTS THAT, TOGETHER WITH AMOUNTS ASSOCIATED WITH ALL
OTHER CLAIMS, EXCEED THE FEES PAID AND/OR PAYABLE BY CUSTOMER
TO FLOCK FOR THE SERVICES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT IN THE TWELVE
(12} MONTHS PRIOR TO THE ACT OR OMISSION THAT GAVE RISE TO THE
LIABILITY, IN EACH CASE, WHETHER OR NOT FLOCK HAS BEEN ADVISED
OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. THIS LIMJTATION OF LIABlLITY
OF SECTION ONLY APPLIES TO THE EXTENT ALLOWED BY THE GOVERNING
LAW OF THE STATE REFERENCED IN SECTION 11.6. NOTWITHSTANDJNG
ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY, THE FOREGOING LIMITATIONS OF
LIABILITY SHALL NOT APPLY (I) IN THE EVENT OF GROSS NEGLIGENCE OR
WILLFUL MISCONDUCT, OR (ll) INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS.

9.2 Responsibility. Each Party to this Agreement shall assume the responsibility and 
liability for the acts and omissions of its own employees, officers, or agents, in 
connection with the performance of their official duties under this Agreement. Each Party 
to this Agreement shall be liable for the torts of its own officers, agents, or employees. 

9.3 Flock Indemnity. Flock shall indemnify and hold harmless Customer, its agents and 
employees, from liability of any kind, including claims, costs (including defense) and 
expenses, on account of: (i) any copyrighted material, patented or unpatcnted invention, 
articles, device or appliance manufactured or used in the perfonnance of this Agreement; 
or (ii) any damage or injury to property or person directly caused by Flock's installation 
of Flock Hardware, except for where such damage or injury was caused solely by the 
negligence of the Customer or its agents, officers or employees. 

10. INSTALLATION SERVICES AND OBLIGATIONS

l 0.1 Ownership of Hardware. Flock Hardware is owned and shall remain the exclusive
property of Flock. Title to any Flock Hardware shall not pass to Customer upon execution
oftbis Agreement, except as otherwise specifically set forth in this Agreement. Except as
otherwise expressly stated in this Agreement, Customer is not pennitted to remove,
reposition, re-install, tamper with, alter, adjust or otherwise take possession or control of
Flock Hardware. Customer agrees and understands that in the event Customer is found to
engage in any 'of the foregoing restricted actions, all warranties herein shall be null and
void, and this Agreement shall be subject to immediate tennination for material breach by



Docusign Envelope ID: F2B37AFB-5035-49BA•9493-S4144EB347A4 

Customer. Customer shall not perform any acts which would interfere with the retention 
of title oftbe Flock Hardware by Flock. Should Customer default on any payment of the 
Flock Services, Flock may remove Flock Hardware at Flock's discretion. Such removal, 
if made by Flock, shall not be deemed a waiver of Flock's rights to any damages Flock 
may sustain as a result of Customer's default and Flock shall have the right to enforce 
any other legal remedy or right. Flock's rights are limited to the Customer's governing 
authority's approval and are subject to all state and local laws/ordinances. 

l0.2 Deployment Plan. Flock shall advise Customer on the location and positioning of 
the Flock Hardware for optimal product functionality, as conditions and locations allow. 
Flock will collaborate with Customer to design the strategic geographic mapping of the 
location(s) and implementation of Flock Hardware to create a deployment plan 
("Deployment Plan"). lo the event that Flock determines that Flock Hardware will not 
achieve optimal functionality at a designated location, Flock shall have final discretion to 
veto a specific location and will provide alternative options to Customer. 

10.3 Changes to Deployment Plan. After installation of Flock Hardware, any 
subsequent requested changes to the Deployment Plan, including, but not limited to, 
relocating, re-positiofiing, adjusting of the mounting, removing foliage, replacement, 
changes to heights of poles will incur a fee according to the reinstall fee schedule 
attached hereto as Exhibit C. Customer will receive prior notice and confirm approval of 
any such fees. 

10.4 Customer Installation Obligations. Customer is responsible for any applicable 
supplementary cost as described in the Customer Implementation Guide incorporated 
herein as Exhibit D. Customer represents and warrants that it has, or shall lawfully 
obtain, all necessary right title and authority and hereby authorizes Flock to install the 
Flock Hardware at the designated locations and to make any necessary inspections or 
maintenance in connection with such installation. 

10.5 Flock's Obligations. lnstallation of any Flock Hardware shall be installed in a 
professional manner within a commercially reasonable time from the Effective Date of 
this Agreement. Upon removal ofFlock Hardware, Flock shall restore the location to its 
original condition, ordinary wear and tear excepted. Flock will continue to monitor the 
performance of Flock Hardware for the length of the Term. Flock may use a 
subcontractor or third party to perform certain obligations under this Agreement, 
provided that Flock's use of such subcontractor or third party shall not release Flock from 
any duty or liability to fulfill Flock's obligations under this Agreement. 

11. MISCELLANEOUS

11.1 Compliance with Laws, Parties shall comply with all applicable local, state and 
federal laws, regulations, policies and ordinances and their associated record retention 
schedules, including responding to any subpoena request(s). 



Docualgn Envelope ID; F2B37AFB-5D35-49BA-9493-54144E6347A4 

J 1.2 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is found to be unenforceable or 
invalid, that provision will be limited or eliminated to the minimum extent necessary so 
that this Agreement will otherwise remain in full force and effect. 

11.3 Assignment. This Agreement is not assignable, transferable or sublicensable by 
either Party, without prior written consent. Notwithstanding the foregoing, with prior 
written notice, either Party may assign this Agreement, without the other Party's oonseot, 
(i) to any parent, subsidiary, or affiliate entity, or (ii) to any purchaser of all or
substantially all of such Party's assets or to any successor by way of merger,
consolidation or similar transaction.

11.4 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with the Order Fonn(s), the reinstall 
fee schedule attached as Exhibit C, and any attached exhibits are the complete and 
exclusive statement of the mutual understanding of the Parties and supersedes and 
cancels all previous or contemporaneous negotiations, discussions or agreements, 
whether written and oral, communications and other understandings relating to the 
subject matter of this Agreement. All waivers and modifications must be in a writing 
signed by both Parties, except as otherwise provided herein. None of Customer's 
purchase orders, authorizations or similar documents will alter the terms of this 
Agreement, and any such conflicting terms are expressly rejected. Any mutually agreed 
upon purchase order is subject to these terms. In the event of any conflict of tenns found 
in this Agreement or any other terms and i;onditioos, the terms of this Agreement shall 
prevail. Customer agrees that Customer's purchase is neither contingent upon the 
delivery of any future functionality or features nor dependent upon any oral or written 
comments made by Flock with respect to future functionality or feature. 

11. 5 Relationship, No agency, partnership, joint ventLJJe, or employment is created as a
result of this Agreement and Parties do not have any authority of any kind to bind each
other in any respect whatsoever. Flock shall at all times be and act as an independent
contractor to Customer.

11.6 Governing Law; Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the state 
in which the Customer is located. The Parties hereto agree that venue would be proper in 
the chosen courts of the State of which the Customer is located. The Parties agree that the 
United Nations Convention for the International Sate of Goods is excluded in its entirety 
from this Agreement. 

11. 7 Special Terms. Flock may offer certain special terms which are indicated in the
Order Form and will become part of this Agreement, upon Customer's prior written
consent and the mutual execution by authorized representatives ("Special Terms"). To the
extent that any terms of this Agreement are inconsistent or conflict with the Special
Terms, the Special Terms shall control.

11.8 Publicity. Upon prior written consent, Flock has the right to reference and use 
Customer's name and disclose the nature of the Services in business and development 
and marketing efforts. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be cons1rued as 



Docuslgn Envelope 10; F2B37AF8-5D3�98A-!M93•54144EB347A4 

confening on any Party, any right to use the other Party's name as an endorsement of 
product/service. 

11.9 Feedback. If Customer or Authorized End User provides any suggestions, ideas, 
enhancement requests, feedback, recommendations or other information relating to the 
subject matter hereunder, Customer or Authorized End User hereby assigns to Flock all 
right, title and interest (including intellectual property rights) with respect to or resulting 
from any of the foregoing. 

11.10 Export. Customer may not remove or export from the United States or allow the 
export or re-export of the Flock IP or anything related thereto, or any direct product 
thereof in violation of any restrictions, laws or regulations of the United States 
Department of Commerce, the United States Department ofTreasury Office of Foreign 
Assets Control, or any other United States or foreign Customer or authority. As defined in 
Federal Acquisition Regulation ( .. FAR"), section 2. IOI, the Services, the Flock Hardware 
and Documentation are "commercial items" and according to the Department of Defense 
Federal Acquisition Regulation ("DFAR "} section 2 52.2277014( a)( 1) and are deemed to 
be "commercial computer software" and "commercial computer software 
documentation." Flock is compliant with FAR Section 889 and does not contract or do 
business with, use any equipment, system, or service that uses the enumerated banned 
Chinese telecommunication companies, equipment or services as a substantial a­
essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any Flock system. 
Consistent with DFAR section 227. 7202 and FAR section 12.212, any use, modification, 
reproduction, release, performance, display, or disclosure of such commercial software or 
commercial software documentation by the U.S. Government will be governed solely by 
the tenns of this Agn1ement and will be prohibited except to the extent expressly 
pennitted by the terms of this Agreement. 

11.11 Headings. The headings are merely for organization and should not be construed as 
adding meaning to the Agreement or interpreting the associated sections. 

11.12 Authority. Each party represents that it (a) has the power and authority and the 
legal right to enter into this Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder, and (b) has 
taken a11 necessary action on its part required to authorize the execution and delivery of 
this Agreement and the performance of its obligations hereunder. This Agreement has 
been duly executed and delivered on behalf of such party and constitutes a legal, valid 
and binding obligation of such party and is enforceable against it in accordance with its 
terms subject to the effects of bankruptcy, insolvency or other laws of general application 
affecting the enforcement of creditor rights and judicial principles affecting the 
avai !ability of specific performance and general principles of equity, whether 
enforceability is considered a proceeding at law or equity. 

11.13 Coonil!t. In the event there is a conflict between this Agreement and any applicable 
statement of work, or Customer purchase order, this Agreement controls unless explicitly 
stated otherwise. 



Docusign Envelope ID: F2837AFB-5035-49BA-9493·54144EB347A4 

11.14 Notices. All notices under this Agreement will be in writing and will be deemed to 
have been duly given when received, if personally delivered; when receipt is 
electronically con finned, if transmitted by email; the day after it is sent, if sent fer next 
day delivery by recognized overnight delivery service; and upon receipt, if sent by 

certified or registered mail, return receipt requested. AH notices wil] be provided to the 
email or mailing address listed in the Order Fonn. 

11.15 Non-Appropriation. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, all 
obligations of the Customer under this Agreement that require the expenditure of public 
funds are conditioned on the availability of said funds appropriated for that purpose. To 
the extent applicable, Customer shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for non­
appropriation with thirty (30) days written notice without penalty or other cost. If the 
Legislature fails to appropriate or reduce the amount of the funds necessary for 
performance, then the Customer may provide written notice of such nonappropriation, or 
reduction and cancel this Agreement without further obligation of the Customer. 

11.16 Conflict of Interest. This Agreement is subject to Mississippi Code Annotated 
Section 25-4-IO 1, as amended. This Agreement may be cancelled if any person 
significantly involved in the initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or creating of the 
Agreement on behalf of the Company is an employee, consultant, or agent of any other 
party to this Agreement. Should this Agreement violate a Mississippi Conflict of Interest 
law, the Agreement may be declared void. 

11.17 Any references to the Customer waiving any cause of action it may have against 
Company or any other party as a result of Company's breach of the contract, or 
Company's own negligence or willful misconduct or the negligence or willful misconduct 

of Company's employees or agents is no t applicable to the extent not pennitted under 
Governing Law and/or Miss. Const. Arl 4, § 100; Miss. AG Op., Clark (June 7, 2002); 
Miss. AG Op., Chamberlin (Oct. 18, 2002). 

11.18 Any references to the Customer limiting damages, remedies or waiving any claim 
are not applicable to the extent not permitted under Governing Law and/or Miss. Const. 
Art. 4, § I 00; Miss. AG Op., Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG Op., Chamberlin (Oct. 18, 
2002). 



Ooooslgn Envelope ID: F2B37AFB-5035-49BA-9493-54144EB34 7A4 

< f 
EXHIB1TA 

QRDERFQBM 

Customer; MS • Jackson PD
Legal Entity Name: MS • Jaokson PD

A,x:oun� Payable
�.mAil· 

Address: 327 E Pescagoula St Jackson, Mississippi
39105 

Initial Tenn: 12 months
ReneWBI Term: 12 Monllis

Payment in accordance with the Agreement n-m.•• 
Billing Am,ual Plao • Invoiced at tbe end of lhe pilot

--! .. ,I 

Rc:ention 30 Days

PROJECT PROVE IT --A
Customer will have a 180 day opt-out period ("Opt-Out Period'') aft!";plerneota,!!2n oftbe first Flock Hardwa0 
terminate this Agreement without penalty or fees. After the Opt-Out Penod, Cu,fomer may bot tenntnatc me 
Agreement, and Customer will pay any invoice(s) fQr the n;roainder of the Tenn in accordance with the Agreement.

H•rdware a.nd Software l'nductl 

Anolllll tecumng amounts o= tul,oaiption rc,.,

n><k Sahty Audio Praducts 

Plock Saf,ty Raven ®. I mi
F1odc Sarety R•vcn ® • l/21ni

Professlon■l Services 104 One Time Purchases

Aonaal R«:■� 

Ettlmated 'llos: 

Contnd Tot■!: 

Included
lllcluded

Sl2S,OOO.OO
$125,000.00

$0.00

$250,000.00

17,e Term far Flod Harrlworo sluJI c(Jfflmmll uponfir,r inslollallon ond w,lidaJion, ucept tha/ the llmnfor ""J' Flock Hardware that miuinuself­
iru/o/Jarion ,hall comm"""" llf'On uea,don of /he Agm,merrl. ln th• .....,,, o Cu-r/omu purclr�,s mon tlrmi one type of Fl� Hardware. lht tor/its I Thmr

start d,,te moll co,rr,,,/. In lite""'°'' o Cw:rom.,-purc}talu wftwt>r• on/JI the 'lerm shall com""'"'" upon a«lltion ef•h• Agrttmmt. 
no:u 1hawn above are provided a., an erlimare. Aaual Ulla aii� the lff]H1Mibjfity of the CJJStcma: 11iis Agn-aneltl will aJJt0tn0licalJy renew/or 311c«3-Sh� 

r,,n,wal lema oflhegr<aler of one yr.a, or 1111! length,., forlh on the OnJu Fann (eoch. a "Re10,wol Tnrtf�) unJ.., .,;,irsr Porty�• rll• orller Party 
notice of non-rmtwal or lea,t 1hlrly (J()) d<1Yf' prior 10 the md of the then-curratt lenn. 



Oocusign Enwlope 10; F2B37AFB-5D3S-49BA•9493--54144EB34 7M 

Yesrl 

Al PPI l!nd Dace 

Allaual Rccanlll& after Year J 

I �-■ll'llctTml 

Product and Services Description 

Billlol! Scbeduk 

•Tax no! iocluded 

SllS,000.00 

SI lS,000.00 

$2�.ooo.oo 

I 
J 

I FlockS'arecy K•vm® • 
Jmi 

; Raven Audio deloclian. I -mile of oov�. Numbor of ucits deployed depends on goopwpby and density of....,_ 
i Roven de!eclioc is licai,re by C<>W19&• area, n01 number of units. 
i Raven Audio det,,ctian - Ill ,;.i�ven,ge, Number of unil3 deploy,d depends oo geo�hy and density o;::., Raven 

I I dea.lion i� li=ae by coverage•� not nunaber ofunii.. 
Flook S•fety Kevon® 
l l/2mi 

By execudog this Order Form, Costomer represents and warrants that it bas read and 

agrees all of the terms and conditions contained in the Terms of Service attached. 

The Parties have executed this Agreement as oftbe dates set forth below. 

FLOCK GROUP, INC. Customer: MS -Jackson PD 

By: 

Mark Smit:h 

(tJy: 
Jllfiiame; 

c��# 
_C,bc�A- �m� 

Tille: General counsel Title: 

Date: 4/23/202S Date: 

�j�V' 
�\ 30 I �s 

PO Number: 



Docuslgn Envelope ID: F2B37AFB-503549BA-9493-54144EB347A4 

EXHIBITB 

ffiSURANCE 

Required Coverage. Flock shall procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement 
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property that may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the services under this Agreement and the results of that 
work by Flock or its agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. Jnsurance shall be 
placed .with insurers with a current A. M. Best rating of no less than "A" and .. Vil". Flock shall 
obtain and, during the term of this Agreement, shall maintain policies of professional liability 
(errors and omissions), automobile liability, and general liability insurance for insurable amounts 
of not less than the limits listed herein. The insurance policies shall provide that the policies shall 
remain in full force during the life of the Agreement. Flock shall procure and shall maintain 
during the life of this Agreement Worker's Compensation insurance as required by applicable 
State law for all Flock employees. For the avoidance of doubt, (i) all required insurance limits by 
Custome! can be met through a combination of primary and excess/umbrella coverage, and (ii) 
Flock's Cyber and Professional Liability/Errors and Omissions insurance has a shared limit of 
Five Million Dollars (5,000,000) per incident and in the aggregate. 

Types and Amounts Required. Flock shall maintain, at minimum, the following insurance 
coverage for the duration of this Agreement: 

Commercial General Liability insurance written on an occurrence basis with minimum 
limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,090) per occurrence and Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000) in the aggregate for bodily injury, death, and property damage, including 
personal injury, con�:actual liability, independent contractors, broad-form property 
damage, and product and completed operations coverage; 

Workers Compensation insurance in accordance with statutory limits; 

Professional Liability/Errors and Omissions insurance with minimum limits of Five 
Million Dollars ($5,000,000) per occurrence and Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) in the 
aggregate; 

Commercial Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit of 
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, death, and property 
coverage, including owned and non-owned and hired automobile coverage; and 

Cyber Liabilit y insurance written on an occurrence basis with minimum limits ofFive 
Million Dollars ($5,000,000). 



Doc11sign Envelope ID: F2837AfB.5035◄9BA-9493-54144EB347A4 

EXHIBIT C 

REINSTALL FEE SCHEDULE 

After a deployment plan with Designated Locations and equipment has been agreed upon 
by both Flock and the Customer, any subsequent changes to the deployment plan 

("Reinstalls") driven by a Customer's request will incur a fee per the table below. 
All fees are per reinstall or required visit (in the case that a reinstall is attempted bat not 

completed), and include labor and materials. If you have any questions, please 
email support@Docksafety.com 

Professional Services Schedule: 
\ 

Initial Camera Installation 
• Existing Infrastructure I $150
• Standard Install I $650
• Advanced Install I $1,250

Camera Relocations 
• Falcon/Sparrow camera relocation, existing pole I $350
• Falcon/Sparrow camera relocation, Flock pole I $750
• Falcon/Sparrow camera relocation, advanced pole I $2,000
• Condor relocation, existing pole I $750
• Condor relocation, existing pole, and AC hookup by Flock 1 $1,500

Equipment Replacements 
• Camera replacement as a result of vandalism, theft, or damage I $800
• Flock pole replacement as a result of vandalism, theft, or damage I $500
• Advanced pole replacement as a result of vandalism, theft, or damage I $2,000
• Technician visit for any other reason not listed above I $350
• Solar panel replacement as a result ofvanda1ism

1 
theft, or damage I $350

Flock Safety Falcon Flex™ Replacements 
• Replacement Camera I $800
• Replacement Battery I $750
• Replacement Solar Panel I $500
• Replacement DC Power Kit I $150
• Replacement AC Power Kit I $150
• Replacement Cable(s) I $50



EXHJRITO 

CUS
T

OMER IMPLEMENfATlON GUIDE 

{Remainder o( Page 1Atentionelly Left Blank! 



Chelsea Chicos� 

From: 

Sent: 
Ta: 

Cc: 

Subject: 

Attachments: 

Hi Chelsea, 

Seamus Ford <seamus.ford@flocksafety.com> 
Friday, April 25, 2025 10:36 AM 
Chelsea Chicosky 
Benjamin Foley 
Re: Flock Safety Final Review 
LE Implementation Guide.PDF 

Terrell .is 000 today, but I can help. Attached below is the Customer hnplementation Guide that you're looking 
for. It usually attaches automatically when sent with DocuSign, but since we sent the PDF copy, it did not. 

Please confirm that this is what you're loollllng for and if you need anything else before sending to the Mayor for 
signature! 

-Seamus

On Fri, Apr 25, 2025 at 10:30AM Chelsea Chicosky =:;cchicosk\,11 lCksonms. '0\� wrote: 

Good morning, 

I've reached out to your legal counsel, Terrell Jordan, as Flock did not include the Exhibit D !Customer Implementation 

Guide) in its docusign. As it is incorporated in the Agreement, I asked for confirmation. I'm sure I'll hear back from him 

today; he's been very responsive throughout this process. 

Chelsea 

OFFICE OF TI-IE CITY ATTORNEY 

Deputy City Attorney lJ 

City of Jackson, Mississippi 

O: (601) 960-1041 

l



ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI'S POLICE DEPARTMENT AND THE FLOCK 

GROUP, INC. FOR THE FLOCK SAFETY RA VEN FOR AUDIO DETECTION OF 

CRIME INDICATORS. 

WHEREAS, Miss. Code Ann. § 21-17-5 states that the governing authorities of every 
municipality shall have the care, management, and control of municipal affairs and its property 
and finances and may adopt orders, resolutions, or ordinances with respect to same which are not 
inconsistent with the Mississippi Constitution of 1890, the Mississippi Code of 1972, or any other 
statute or law of the State of Mississippi; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Jackson Police Department (JPD) is committed to enhancing its 
collection of evidence to reduce crime for the safety and well-being of its citizens; and, 

WHEREAS, the JPD endeavors to continue to address the prevalence of violence in 
support of its Investigative Services Bureau and, in furtherance of such, seeks to obtain machine­
learning audio detection of crime indicators that includes-but is not limited to-gunshots, metal 
sawing/sawzall (i.e. for catalytic converter theft), and human distress signals (i.e. screaming) while 
combining other distinctive sounds (e.g. tire screeching or loud impacts) to enable the detection of 
major incidents (i.e. severe car crashes) that require emergency response; and, 

WHEREAS, machine-learning audio detection that classifies crime indicators is a 
noncompetitive item available from one (l) source only: Flock Group Inc., 1170 Howell Mill Rd, 
Suite 210, Atlanta, GA 30318. Flock's proprietary machine-learning algorithms detect all sounds, 
classify the sounds as crime indicators, and send real-time alerts to the appropriate end-users 
(customizable by JPD) based on JPD's tailored thresholds for specific operations so that 
appropriate personnel can respond. Flock's proprietary machine-learning algorithm for audio 
detection of crime indicators meets sole-source requirements, and, in accordance with Miss. Code 
Ann. § 31-7- l 3(m)(viii), the governing authority finds and certifies the conditions and 
circumstances requiring audio detections of crime indicators from a sole-source provider; and, 

WHEREAS, Flock has offered a 180-day, no-cost, no commitment, unconditional opt-out 
project trial period ("Project Prove It"), where Flock will install and implement the audio 
detections of crime indicators solution for coverage if identified areas in the City of Jackson; and, 

WHEREAS, should the audio detections of crime indicators meet the JPD's needs, after 
the 180-day project trial period, Flock has proposed an annual Agreement term of twelve ( 12) 
months for a sum of $125,000.00 prepaid annually and renewable for an additional twelve (12) 
month period for $125,000.00, for a total contract cost of $250,000.00; and, 

WHEREAS, after the 180-day trial period, the full Agreement shall be effective, and shall 
run for the period of one ( l )  year beginning on the date after the 180-day trial period has ended; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the Agreement contemplates payments are made in accordance with Miss. 
Code Ann. § 31-7-305. Any provisions to the contrary are null and void; and, 

WHEREAS, the Agreement permits an annual recurring payment for a renewal for an 
additional twelve ( 12) months for a fee of $125,000.00; and, 



WHEREAS, the hardware is owned by Flock and Flock alone will provide technical 
support; and, 

WHEREAS, the terms of this Agreement are to the extent permitted under Mississippi 
law; and, 

WHEREAS, should the JPD enter into a full Agreement with payment after the 180-day 
no-cost trial period has ended, the JPD has sufficient funding for this expenditure in its budget. 

THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Mayor is authorized to execute the 
Agreement with Flock Group Inc. for the initial 180-day no-cost, no-obligation tenn under "Project 
Prove It," and, should Flock meet the JPD's needs, after the 180-day trial term, the JPD is 
authorized to remit payment in the amount of $125,000.00 for a term of twelve (12) months with 
an automatic renewal of an additional twelve (12) months for $125,000.00, a total two (2) year 
contract term with a total cost of $250,000.00. 

Vice President Grizzell moved adoption; Council Member Banks seconded. 

Yeas- Banks, Clay, Foote, Grizzell, Hartley, Lindsay, and Stokes. 
Nays- None. 
Absent - None. 

STATEMENT OF VOTES 

The foregoing is a true and exact copy of an Order stating the action taken by the City 
Council at its Regular Council Meeting on April 22, 2025. However, upon the completion of 
the minutes, signed by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk, a certified attested copy 
can be provided upon request. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 10 POINT DATA SHEET 

DATE: September 29, 2025 

POINTS 

1. Brief Description/Purpose
I COMMENTS

ORDER RATIFYING THE JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT'S 
TERMINATION OF "PROJECT PROVE IT" WITH FLOCK GROUP, INC.

.�,._,-_ . (RA VEN) AND THE CITY OF JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT
--

2. Public Policy Initiative
l. Youth & Education 
2. Crime Prevention 
J, Cllanges in City Govemmen 
4. Neighborhood Enhancement 
5. Economic Development 

ation 6. lnfrastructure and Tran,port 
7. n.,aliry of Life 

3. Who will be affected
·- -···- -· --· ---

4. Benefits

5. 
6. 

Scb4;.�ule (beginning da�e) 
Location: 
• WARD

rea)• CITYWIDE (yes or no) (a 

7.

8. 

� 

10. 

•

le • Project limits, if appJicab 

Action implemented by 
• City Department

• Consultant

. -·-·
COST
---

-·

-
Source of Funding 
• General Fund
• Grant
• Bond
• Other

EBO participation 

-

D 

-

D 

D 
Cl 

D 

Crime Prevention, Quality of Life, Neighborhood Enhancement

City of Jackson Police Department 
Tennination of Agreement with Flock Safety for its Raven GSD Hardware and
Software.
Upon council approval
City in General

I Jackson Police Department
I 

N/A 

-

ABE -- % WAIVER yes_ no NIA --AABE
-· 

% WAIVER yes_ no NIA --WBE % WAIVER yes no NIA --HBE % WAIVER yes_ no NIA --NABE % WAIVER yes_ no NIA --

-

1-

_, 



Assistant Chief of Police 

Wendell Watts 

JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Interim Chief of Police Tyree D. Jones 

MEMORANDUM 

Assistant Chief of Police 

Vincent Grizzell 

To: John Horhn, Mayor 

From: Tyree D, Jones, Interim Chief orPolk•@f P 7 /2_ S
Date: Monday, September 29, 2025 

Re: Agenda Item Authorizing Termination of Flock agreement (Raven GSD) 

I request your approval to place the attached agenda item titled "Order Authorizing the Mayor to 
Terminate the Agreement between Flock Group, Inc. and the City of Jackson Police 
Department" on the next City Council agenda. The agreement provides an 180-day opt-out after 
implementation of the first hardware, allowing termination without penalty, with equipment 
removal to follow within a commercially reasonable time. Placing this item will enable us to 
avoid ongoing costs, align resources with higher-value public safety priorities, and ensure proper 
removal and data handling. Upon your approval, I will coordinate City Attorney review and 
submission to the City Clerk for the earliest available meeting. 

Jackson Police Department\ 327 E. Pascagoula Street, Jackson, MS 39205 I 601.960.1234 



r 



·-.



ORDER AUTHORIZING THE PETTY CASH FUND FOR 
THE JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT FOR THE FISCAL 

YEAR 2025-2026 

WHEREAS, the Jackson Police Department (JPD) requests the governing authorities for 
the City of Jackson to authorize petty cash funds to allow the JPD divisions to keep sufficient funds 
in the Petty Cash accounts for expenses for the JPD; and, 

WHEREAS, the JPD recommends the governing authorities for the City of Jackson 
authorize petty cash funds within the JPD divisions in the following amounts: Vice and Narcotics 
($10,000.00), Police Training ($300.00), Fiscal Affairs ($1,000.00), Records ($200.00), ID 
($200.00), and Internal Affairs ($1,000.00); and, 

WHEREAS, the JPD Captain of Special Operations (Vice and Narcotics Unit), Captain of 
Standards and Training (Police Training Academy), Captain or Public Safety Administrator of 
Fiscal (Fiscal Affairs Unit), Records Manager (Police Records Unit), Identification Unit 
Supervisor (ID Unit), and Captain of Internal Affairs (Internal Affairs) will be designated as the 
custodians of said funds for the JPD; and, 

WHEREAS, the JPD requests that such funds be disbursed for, but are not limited to: pay 
for Vice and Narcotics division operations, small office purchases, change for cash drawers, and 
other necessary items to the Custodian, and the Custodian may reimburse the fund when requested; 
and, 

WHEREAS, during the course of vice and narcotic division operations, disbursements of 
a confidential nature may be required, and the JPD requests authorization that funds remain 
available for general law enforcement purposes in the earmarked fund balance as approved in the 
FY 2025-2026 budget; and, 

WHEREAS, Miss. Code Ann.§ 7-7-60 provides "[a] petty cash fund for offices within the 
county, municipality or board of education may be established in accordance with regulations set 
forth by the State Auditor's office[;]" and, 

WHEREAS, according to the "Routine Petty Cash Fund Procedures" in the 2022 Municipal 
Audit and Accounting Guide, the municipal governing authorities may authorize a petty cash fund. 
The authorization must be spread upon the minutes and include: 

( 1) Reasons for establishing the fund;
(2) Purposes for which fund money may be spent;
(3) The dollar amount of the fund;
( 4) Custodian(s); and,
(5) Any special provisions, such as the use of depository account(s); and,

WHEREAS, the State Auditor's Office petty cash funds regulations require the governing 
authorities to authorize the petty cash funds on an annual basis, and the custodian of the petty cash 

Agenda Item: _gJ_ 
Date: Oc..fobtr 2-,I 

1 
'lf}f.D 

By: Jones, Horhn 



fund must be bonded and will be responsible at all times for the funds and purchases of the petty 
cash fund. 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the Jackson Police Department's petty cash funds 
are authorized in the combined amount not to exceed $12,700.00 cash-on-hand for the JPD for the 
2025-2026 fiscal year to cover the cost of pay for Vice and Narcotics division operations, small 
office purchases, change for cash drawers, and other necessary items to the Custodian, and that the 
Custodian may reimburse the fund when requested. 

Agenda Item: __ _ 
Date: 
By: Jones, Horhn 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 10 POINT DATA SHEET 

DA TE: October 8, 2025 

POINTS 

Brief Description/Purpose 
i--------11-- - --

Public Policy Initiative 
1. \'outb & Edacatlon 

2. 

l. Crime Prevention 
3. Changes In Oty Governn,ent 
4. Neighborhood Enhance-at 
S. Erooollllc Oeffl0p111eot 
6. lnfralfrudare and Transportation 

_ _ _ 7 ._ _!>!!Dt:r or Lif! 

3. Who will be affected
4. Benefits

1--5·_.,.Sche��•e (beg!nn!!'J':. f!at'!) __
6. Location:

7. 

8. 

9. 

• WARD

• CIT\'\VIDE (yes or no) (area)
• 

• Project limits if applicable
------ . 

Action implemented by: 
• City Department •

• Consultant D 

COST 

Source of Funding 
• General Fund D
• Grant □ 
• Bond 0 
• Other D 

10. EBO participation

COMMENTS 

ORDER AUTHORIZING THE PETTY CASH FUND FOR THE JACKSON 
POLICE DEPARTMENT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 

�----------i-

Crime Prevention, Quality of Life, Neighborhood Enhancement 

City of Jackson Police Department 

Ratification of Petty Cash for The Jackson Police Depanment for FY 25-26 

City in General 

Jackson Police Depanment 

not to exceed $12,700.00 cash-on-hand 
---'---'----'----------------1--1 

Various General Fund Accounts 

ABE % WAIVER yes_ no NIA 

AABE % WAIVER yes no NIA 

WBE % WAIVER yes no NIA 

HBE % WAIVER yes no NIA 

NABE % WAIVER yes_ no NIA --
-



Assistant Chief of Police 

Wendell Watts 

JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Interim Chief of Police Tyree D. Jones 

MEMORANDUM 

To: John Horhn, Mayor 

From: Tyree D. Jones, Interim Chief of Polle@( 0 / 0 P,s­
Date: Wednesday, October 8, 2025 

Assistant Chief of Police 

Vincent Grizzell 

Re: Ratification and Authorization of JPD Petty Cash Funds for FY 2025-2026 

I respectfully request authorization to place an agenda item before the City Council to ratify and 
authorize the petty cash funds for the Jackson Police Department for the remainder of Fiscal 
Year 2025-2026. 

This authorization will allow designated JPD divisions to maintain petty cash accounts necessary 
for ongoing operations, including confidential Vice and Narcotics activities, small office 
purchases, and other essential departmental expenses. 

TDJ/mxo 

Jackson Police Department I 327 E. Pascagoula Street, Jackson, MS 39205 i 601.960.1234



Office of the City Attorney 4SS East Capitol S1reet 
Post Office Box 2779 
Jackson, Mississippi 39207-2779 
Telephone: (601) 9 - 799 
Facsimile: (601) 60-17 . 

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

This ORDER AUTHORIZING THE PETTY CASH FUND FOR THE JACKSON PO

DEPARTMENT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 is legally sufficient for placement in NOV 
Agenda. 



l 



( 

( 





,/J 

:z-,, 
� 

' 1'..:::::;. \ 

ORDER REQUESTING RATIFICATION OF PAYMENT TO W�'if�_;­OIL COMPANY, LLC FOR THE PURCHASE OF EMERGENCY l"'/ '.' GASOLINE FOR THE PETE BROWN GOLF COURSE FROM THE 2024- ¼;�2025 BUDGET
· 7/�WHEREAS, Pete Brown Golf Course uses equipment and golf carts that require fuel in the

regular course of business; and
WHEREAS, Pete Brown Golf Course required an immediate supply of fuel, which was

invoiced on September 15th
, 2025, during the 2024-2025 Fiscal Y� and

WHEREAS, Waring Oil Company, I.LC (Waring) is a cuttent vendor (vendor #17925) with
the City of Jackson; and

WHEREAS, Waring has provided an invoice for emergency fuel in the amount of Two
Thousand Forty-Five Dollars and Forty-Eight Cents ($2,045.48); and,

WHEREAS, Waring Oil Company, I.LC is a Limited Liability Company created on October18, 2004, and is currently in good standing with the Mississippi Secretary of State's Office; and 
WHEREAS, the Department of Parks and Recreation of the City of Jackson recommends

payment to Waring Oil Company, ILC in the amount of Two Thousand Forty-Five Dollars and
Forty-Eight Cents ($2,045.48) be ratified and approved·•

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the above-described professional services by Waring Oil
Company, LLC for emergency fuel be ratified and made from the 2024-2025 budget.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that payments to Waring Oil Company, LLC (vendor
#17925) be made from account number 005.504.30-6215.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Mayor is authorized to execute any agreements
and/ or documents to effectuate this Order.

Item:__ Date: 

2.'l Agenda Item No.:. ___ _
October 21, 2025 
Teeuwissen, Horhn



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 10 POINT DATA SHEET 

DATE: October 7, 2025 

n
OINTS 

---1 

I I 
Briof Domiptloo 

2. Public Policy Initiative 
Youth & Education 
Crime Prevention 
Changes in City Government 
Neighborhood Enhancement 
Economic Development 
Infrastructure and Transportation 

__ __.::,..;;u
;.;.;
a=lit): of Life 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

Who will be affected 

Benefits 

Schedule (beginning date) 

Location: 
WARD 

CJTYWIDE (m or no) (area) 

COMMENTS 
Order requesting ratification of payment to Waring Oil Company, 
LLC for purchase of emergency gasoline for the Pete Brown Golf 
Course from the 24-25 Budget Year 
Infrastructure and Transportation 

Parks and Recreation 

Pete Brown Golf Course patrons and employees needing gas for 

• equipment

Upon Council Approval 

Ward3 

Project limits if a )�a=b:..:..:le=-----+­
7. 

8. 

9. 

Action implemented by: 
City Department 

Consultant 

COST 

Source of Funding 
General Fund 
Grant 
Bond 
Other 

CJ 

CJ 

CJ 

CJ 

D 

D 

10. EBO participation

l 

Department of Parks & Recreation 

Two Thousand Forty-Five Dollars and Forty-Eight Cents 
($2,048.45) 

I Budget Year 2024-2025 

Acct. No. 005.504.30-6215 

ABE % WAIVER yes_ no ✓ NIA ✓ 
AABE --% WAIVER yes no ✓ NIA ✓ 
WBE % WAIVER yes_ no ✓ NIA ✓ 
IIBE % WAIVER yes _ no ✓ NIA ✓ 
NABE % WAIVER yes_ no ✓ NIA ] 

I 



Parks & Recreation Deparbnent 
633 North State Street, 5th Floor 
P.O.Box17 
Jackson, MS 39205 0017 

Phone: 601-960-0471 
MIS SIS SIP PI 

Memo 
10: Mayor John Horhn 

FROM: Department of Parks and Recreation 

Date: October 7, 2025 

RE: Agenda: Waring Oil Company, LLC 

This memorandum is requesting the approval of payment of services by Waring Oil 
Company, LLC for emergency gasoline at the Pete Brown Golf Course. 

IT IS REQUESTED, that payment in fue amount of Two Thousand Forty-Five 
Dollars and Forty-Eight Cents ($2,045.48) be ratified and paid to Waring Oil 
Company, LLC for emergency gasoline at the Pete Brown Golf Course. 

IT IS ALSO REQUEST3ED that payment should be made from account number 
005.504.30-6215 from fue Budget Year 2024-2025. 

The Department of Parks and Recreation recommends that this Order be submitted for 
the Council's consideration. 

Thank you. 

/js 

1 



Office of the City Attorney 455 East capitol Street 
Post Office Box 2779 
Jack8o11, Mississippi 39207-2779 
Telephone: (601) 960-1799 
Facsimile: (601) 960-1756 

•},; I« 
OFFICE. OF THE CITY ATTORNEY /, 

/t)- · .. 

This ORDER REQUESTING RATIFICATION OF PAYMENT TO WARING·-��'•.COMPANY, LLC FOR THE PURCHASE OF EMERGENCY GASOLINE FOR; --�;j;,... THE PETE BROWN GOLF COURSE FROM THE 2024-2025 BUDGET is legally' ' sufficient for placement in NOVUS Agenda. 

$@/.2.c • 

Date 



AWIRl
1

NG 
� OILCOMPANY,LLC 

Flowood Office 

630 Hwy 80 East 

Flowood, MS 39232 

Phone: 601-932·6457 

EMERGENCY CONT ACT 800--633·8253 

www.waringoil.c om 

Rem it payment to: 

P.O. Sox 66 

Vicksburg, MS 39181 

Phone: 601�36·106S 

Fax: 601-634-0148 

FED. ID 20-1752080 

** INVOICE ** 
# 461953 

Page 1 

ACCOUNT# 9896 (601) 960-1011 

CITY OF JACKSON-PETE BROWN 
GOLF COURSE PARKS & RECREAT 
3880 BULLARD STREET 
JACKSON, MS 39209 

PO# 25001394 

SHIPPED 9/15/25 BY ATC INVOICED: 9/15/25 

STOCK # WHS SHIP RET DESCRIPTION 
QUANTITY 

30 03 550 NO LEAD 87 CONV GAS 
550.000 

SEE NOTE 4 
FED FUEL TAX 550.000 
ENVIRONMENT FEE 550.000 
OILSPILL/SPRFND 550.000 

SUBTOTAL: 

50 03 160 DYED ULSD 
160.000 

SEE NOTE 1 
MS ST FUEL DSL 160.000 
ENVIRONMENT FEE 160.000 
OILSPILL/SPRFND 160.000 
LUST 160.000 
SUBTOTAL: 

COMPL 03 1 COMPLIANCE FEE 
1. 000 

UN1203,THIS NL GAS CONTAINS NO ETHANOL,3,PGII 

NA1993,THIS PRODUCT IS DYED ULSD lSPPM 
NONTAXABLE USE ONLY-PENALTY FOR TAXABLE USE 

OFF HWY NOT LEGAL FOR MOTOR VEHICLE USE 
3,PGIII 

TERMS:NET 30 DAYS 
DUE BY: 10/15/25 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR ORDER. 

LOC # 1 (601) 960-1905 

CITY JCKSN - JACKSON 
3200 W WOODROW WILSON AV 
PETE BROWN GOLF CRSE 
JACKSON, MS 39205 

SALESMAN: 70 CLERK: BJH 

PRICE PER 
UNIT UNIT 

GAL 2.700000 

0.184000 
0.004000 
0.006191 
2. 8942 

GAL 2.680000 

0.057500 
0.004000 
0.006191 
0.001000 
2.7487 

EACH 13. 880000

SUBTOTAL 
TOTAL 

EXTENDED 

1485.00 

101.20 
2.20 
3.41 

1591. 81 

428.80 

9.20 
.64 
.99 
.16 

439.79 

13.88 

2045.48 
2045.48 

Waring Oil Company, LLC 

Past due accounts bear payment penalties at 1.5% per month, not to exceed 18%, annually on any outstanding balances until paid in ful I. For 

all past due accounts, the customer shall be obligated to pay all collection fees, interest, attorney fees, court costs and all other expanses 

involved in the collection of sums owed. 



I

I



r 

( 



.



.) 

. 

'\ 

,_;:;,,:i_ :._ 
ORDER REQUESTING RATIFICATION OF PAYMENT TO FORD \Jt,:,;_
PLUMBING AND AIR FOR THE EMERGENCY REPAIR OF A WATER . ��

'.
-

LINE AT PARHAM BRIDGES PARK TO BE PAID FROM THE 2024-2025 
'\�� BUDGET -0- · ,

).. 

WHEREAS, Parham Bridges Park, located at 5055 Old Canton Road, Jackson, Mississippi, ' 
had a wateJ: leak; and 

WHEREAS, due to the volume and location of the leak, repair was deemed urgent and an 
emergency; and 

WHEREAS, the. Department of Parks and Recreation called Ford Plumbing and Air for an 
emergency repair, and the work was completed on August 26, 2025; and

WHEREAS, Ford Plumbing and Air produced an invoice attached hereto as Exhibit A in the 
amount of One Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars ($1,800.00) for the repair of the leaking water line, 
new .fittings, and proper testing; and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Parks and Recreation recommends the payment to Ford 
Plumbing and Air from the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 budget be .ratified; and 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that payment to Ford Plumbing and Air in the amount One 
Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars ($1,800.00) be made from account number 005.501.10-6419 from 
the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 budget; and 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Mayor is authorized to execute any agreements or 
documents that may be needed to effectuate the above-described order. 

Item No.: ____ Date: ____ _ 

Agenda Item No.: 2._ 3
October 21, 2025 
Teeuwissen, Horhn 



1. 

2. 

I--3 

.__4. 

5. 

r 6. 

I 7. 

8. 
-

9. 

10. 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 10 POINT DATA SHEET 

POINTS 

Brief Description 

--
Public Policy Initiative 
Youth & Education 
Crime Prevention 
Changes in City Government 
Neighborhood Enhancement 
Economic Development 
Infrastructure and Transportation 
Oualih· of Life 
Who will be affected 

--

Benefits 

Schedule (beginning date) 
-

Location: 
WARD 

CITYWIDE (m or no) (area) 

Project limits if annlicable 
Action implemented by: 
City Department 

CJ 
Consultant 

D 

COST 

Source of Funding 
General Fund D 

Grant 

I 

DATE: September 25, 2025 
---------

COMM ENTS 

Order ratifying p ayment to Ford Plumbing and Air for the repair
Parham Bridges Park. of water leak at --------

Neighborhood En hancement 
Infrastructure and Transportation 
Quality of Life 

Parks and Recrea tion Parham Bridges Park 

nts to patrons and flooding of the park
L

To prevent accide 

Upon Council App roval
--

Ward 1 

ks & Recreation Department of Par 

One Thousand Ei ght Hundred Dollars ($1,800.00)

FY24-25 
Acct. No. 005.50 1.10-6419 

Bond 

�ABE 

Other 

EBO participation 
% WAIVER yes_ no ✓ NIA ✓ 

T ✓ AABE 
WBE 
HBE 
NABE 

% WAIVER yes_ no NIA 

% WAIVER yes_ no ✓ NIA ✓ 
% WAIVER yes_ no T NIA ✓ 
% WAIVER yes_ no 1 NIA l 



Parks & Recreation Deparbnent 
633 North State Street-, 5111 Floor 

P.O.Box17 JAC- N 
/ Jackson, MS 39205 0017 
1 Phone: 601-960-0471 

MIS SIS SIP PI 

Memo 
TO: 

FROM: 

Date: 

RE 

Mayor John Horhn 

Steve Hutton, Director 
Deparnnent of Parks and Recreation 

September 25, 2025 

Agenda: Ford Plumbing and Air-Parham Bridges Water Leak 

This memorandum is a request for payment to Ford Plumbing and Air for the 
emergency repair of a water leak at Parham Bridges Park 

IT IS REQUESTED the payment in the amount of One Thousand Eight Hundred 
Dollars ($1,800.00) be ratified and payment made to Ford Plumbing and Air for 
emergency repair of water leak at Parham Bridges Park. 

IT IS Al.SO REQUESTED, payment in the amount of One Thousand Eight Hundred 
Dollars ($1,800.00) be made from FY24, 25 budget account number 005.501.10,6419. 

The Department of Parks and Recreation recommends that this Order be submitted 
for the Council's consideration. 

Thankyou. 

SH/js 



Office of the City Attorney 4SS &st Capitol Sttffl 
Post Office Box 2 779 
1acboa, Mississippi 39207-2779 
Telephone: (601) 960-1799 
Facsimile: (601) 960-1756 

( .. �. 

\, ' 
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNE·� 

This ORDER REQUESTING RATIFICATION OF PAYMENT TO FORD 
PLUMBING AND AIR FOR THE EMERGENCY REPAIR OF A WATER 
LINE AT PARHAM BRIDGES PARK TO BE PAID FROM THE 2024-2025 
BUDGET is legally sufficient for placement in NOVUS Agenda. 

;/ 
£(w I<� #.tl/4 . 

Drew Martin, City Attorney --�D( "'(
Sondra Moncure, Special Assistan�

,;,, 
I 'f f Qf-" 

Megan Bennett, Deputy City Attorney� 

10/14/25 

Date 



FO 
PWMBINO & AIR 

81UTO 
City of Jackson 

P0BoK17 
Jackson, MS 39205 United stares 

IOB ADDRESS 
Parham Bndaes Park 
505! Old Canton Road 
Jackson, MS 39211 USA 

wor1< Performed summary 

IN'Jt'Jltt 

32600384 

Ford Plumbing & Air 
242 W Stephens street 

Ridgeland, MS 39157 
601-940-0597

www.fordplumbingrm.com 

Completed Date: 8/26/2025 
Payment Term: Due Upon Receipt 
Dull Date: a/26/2025 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK 

•Eiceavated near ditch and located¾• copper llne servtnr fDrmertennis court fauntalns.
·Found actl� leak at split coupllng.

-Cut and capped the Nne.
-Tested cai,ped line for leaks; no leaks obsenred.
-Backfilled eltC8Yation area.
•Sl\ut down clubhouse fixwres ii$ requested and verified water meter was not running.

Dlsclalmer 

This report documents the work performed as observed at the time of service. r,.,o warranty is expre!l!ed or implied 
regarding tt,e condition of the remaining pklmblng system. Future leaks, fallurts, or issues unrelated to the specific repair 

are nottfle responslbllty of the ,enice pruvider. 

TASK OESCRIPTIOIII 

wtr-Rpr Repair a leaking water tine with new frttings and properly �t 

QTY P!!ICE TOTAl 

1.00 U.800.00 $1,800.00 

SUB-TOTAL 

TAX 

TOTAL DUE 

BALANC£ DUE 

$1,800.00 

$0.00 

Sl,800.00 

S 1,800.00 

Thank you for choosing Ford Plumbing & Air! We truly appreciate your b11Siness and the trust you plate in ou, team. Your 
satisfaction means everything to us - ff something Isn't right. please give our office a call and we'H l!lllke It risht. 

All drain cleanings Include a 60-<lay warranty (unless otherwi5e noted), and all ottKir repalr5 or replacements in dude a 1-

Invoice #32600384- Page 1 of 2 



yearworlcmanshfp warranty. 

CUSTOMER AVnfORIZA TION 

This Invoice is agreed and acknowledged. PiJymeflt is due within 7 days of completion for residential custo� and within 
SO days of oompletlon for co,nmerdal customers. A sel'ke fee wUI be ct,arged for any returned checks, and a financing 
dla,ie of 5" per week shall be applied .for overdue amount. 

Sign here Date 8/26/2025 

CUSTOMEll AO(NOWLEl>GEMENl 

t find and agree that all work performed by Ford Pkunblna & Nr has been completed in a sathfaetory and workmanlike 
manner. I !lave been J(ven the opportunity to address concerns and/or dlscrepandes rn the work pro\licled, a,d I either have 
no such concerns or have found no discrepancies or they havoe been addrePed to my satisfaction. My signahJre here 
slcnlfles my fuD and final acceptance of al wort performed by the contractor. 

(\j 
Sign here Oate 8/26/2025 

Invoice #32600384 Page 2 of2 



( 

( 





q.l':

ORDER RATIFYING EMERGENCY PROCUREMENT OF� . · . ·

'·- . ..,�/�.$'("� 

�ITY OF JACKSON WATER LINE LEAK AT THE CITY OF J- .· . :� ,�l"::q,. 

"&�1� 
WHEREAS, there are currently numerous water leaks at the City of Jackson �-� 

Livingston Parle that are causing the City to incur water of several million dollars, according"iq
bills received from JXN Water� Inc.; and

WHEREAS, one of these leaks is preventing repairs to the Monkey Island moat, which
needs to be repaired to reduce the water used to keep it filled; and

WHEREASt the Mayor invoked the City's emergency procurement process due to the
ongoing significant water bills the City is receiving for the City of Jackso� Zoo and Livingston
Parle, a copy of the Declaration Invoking the Emergency Procurement Process being attached
hereto and incorporated in this order; and

WHEREAS, the Deparbnent of Parlts & Recreation obtained a proposal from Wicker
Construction, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $7S�OOO.00, to repair the water leak pertaining to
the Monkey Island moat; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the emergency procmement process, the Mayor has executed a
contract with Wicker Construction, Inc. for the repair of a City of Jackson water line on the grom1ds
of the City of Jackson Zoo, in an amowit not to exceed $75,000.00, a copy of which is attached o
this Order and made a part of these minutes.

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the emergency contract with Wicker
Construction, Inc. for the repair of a City of Jackson water line on the grounds of the City of
Jackson Zoo, in an ammmt not to exceed $75,000.00, a copy of which is attach� is :ratified.

BY: TEEUWISSEN, HoRliN 
I I 

Agenda Item No.:._2_,_
October 21, 2025 
Teeuwissen, Horhn



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 10 POINT DATA SHEET October 13, 2025 
DATE 

POINTS COMMENTS 

1. Brief Description/Purpose ORDER RATIFYING EMERGENCY PROCUREMENT OF 
REPAIRS TO A CITY OF JACKSON WATER LINE LEAK AT 
THE CITY OF JACKSON ZOO 

2. Public Policy Initiative
I, Youth & Education 4. Neighborhood Enhancement
l. Crime Prevention 
3. Clia•ae• I• City Go'ffl'ltrnent 6 Infrastructure and Transportation
4. Neigllborbood EnhanEement 7 Quality of Life5. Ecoaollllc Development 

l•frastructlll'e ••d Tn■sportation 
7. Oualln ofUfe 

3. Who will be affected The City of Jackson and its residents 

4. Benefits Will reduce the amount of City water bills by repairing a leak and 
allowing the repair of the Monkey Island moat 

5. Schedule (beginning date) I Ongoing 

6. Location: City of Jackson Zoo 
■ WARD

• CITYWIDE (yes or no)
(area)

• Project limits if applicable

7. Action implemented by:
• City Department - Chief Administrative Officer 

• Consultant D 

8. COST Not to exceed $75,000.00 
9. Source of Funding Infrastructure Modernization Fund or Infrastructure Modernization 

• General Fund - Bond Fund 
■ Grant D 
• Bond D 
• Other D 

Revised 2-04 

I 



�--,� 
. .... 

�: 

OFFICE OF THE CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

MEMORANDUM 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Hon. John Horhn, Mayor 

Pieter Teeuwissen 
Chief Administrative Officer 

October 13, 2025 

Agenda Item for City Council Meeting 

Attached you will find an item for the agenda ratifying a contract with Wicker Construction, Inc. for the 
repair of a City of Jackson water line on the grounds of the City of Jackson Zoo, in an amount not to 
exceed $75,000.00. 

The contract is the first in a series of steps being taken pursuant to the Declaration Invoking the 
Emergency Procurement Procedure to make repairs to water leaks at the City of Jackson Zoo and 
Livingston Park. Your emergency procurement declaration came as a result of the need to immediately 
begin addressing the repair of water leaks and the Zoo and Livingston Park, which according to JXN 
Water, Inc. are in excess of$6,000,000.00. 

Additional large repairs will be addressed using this emergency procurement declaration and smaller 
leaks will be addressed using the usual procurement process. 

Please contact me if you have any questions. 

200 South President Street / P.O. Box 17 / Jadtson, Mississippi 39205-0017 / www.jacksonms.gov 



Office of the City Attorney

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

This ORDER RATIFYING EMERGENCY PROCUREMENT OF REPAIRS TO A CITYOF JACKSON WATER LINE LEAK AT THE CITY OF JACKSON ZOO :is legally
sufficient for placement in NOVUS Agenda.

/J dt�� �MARTIN, CITY A1TORNEY

Sondra Moncure� Special Assistant J .(JYt. 10 I ,a,� 
Terry Williamson. Legal Counsel �



Date: September 24, 2025 

To: St.eve Hutton 
Qty of Jackson, MS 

P.O. Bo:x 6765 Shreveport, LA 71136 
Phone: 31U88-0610 Fax: 318-QS-4998 

Re: Water Line Repair - Jackson aty zoo, .Jackson MS 

Mr. Hutton, 

The followlng estimated price is for the tabor, equipment, and materials to provide a water line repair at the 
Jackson aty Zoo facility. Toe scope of work shall indude removal of one large tree and additional brush and 
shrubbery, investigative excavation to determine the extent of repairs necessary, repair of the existing water 
line, and backfill of the excavation site. The scope of work cannot be aa::uramly desaibed until the Initial 
excavation work Is mmpleted. The overall cost for this repair will not exceed $75,000.00. 

The tntal oost of the project wHI be based on the actual time and materials cost. The final biBing wiD be 
developed using the aaual mst of labor, equipment and materials used to make the repair. 

Exduslons: 

None 

Shayne Stone 

Wicker Constructio� Inc. 

Date: 1� /1(!1.s __



DECLARATION INVOKING THE EMERGENCY 

PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE 

I. REQUEST

The City Zoo property and Livingston Parle have numerous water leaks, at least thirteen at 
last count, that have cal!Sed a water bill in excess of $6m to accwnulate over the time these 
leaks have not been addressed. Fwthennore, a leak in the monkey island moat has required the 
City to continuously nm a fire hydrant into the moat to keep it filled. 

Recently, the chimpanzees were moved to an outdoor cage behind monkey island and the 
fue hydrant twned off in order to drain the moat for dredging and repairs. Unfortunately, 
another water leak is now continuing to fill the moat, preventing moat from being repaired. 
Additionally, turning off the fire hydrant did not reduce metered water use at the Zoo as much 
as had been hoped. Without repairing the leaks on the Zoo property and in Livingston Pmk, 
the cost of water lost to leaks will continue, wasting thousands, if not tens of thousands of 
doJiars. 

Because the City no longer operates the water system, the Public Works Department does 
not have the staff or equipment to repair the water leaks. Because the leaks are on City property 
and not on the service mains, JXN Water is not responsible for their repair. Due to the ongoing 
waste of City funds through metered water billed, but not used, it is the recommendation of the 
Deparbnent of Parks & Recreation that the emergency procurement process, Sections 31-7-1 
(t) and -13 (k) of the Mississippi C.Ode of 1972, be used to hire an engineer and one or more
contractors to repair the leaks on the Zoo property and repair the monkey island moat.

Accordingly, I request that you declare that this situation constitutes an "emergency" as 
that tean is defined in Section 31-7-1 of the Mississippi Code Annotated of 1972, as amended, 
and aulhoru:e emergency contracts as necessary to repair all existing leaks and any leaks 
identified during the repairs and to repair the monkey island moat, pursuant to Section 31-7-
13 (k) of the Mississippi Code Annotated of 1972, as amended. 

AB baclc:ground information to assist in your determination that an emergency exists, I have 
attached a memorandum from Steve Hutton. Interim Director of the Patts & Recreation 
Department. I have also obtained the review and approval of the Interim City Attorney ..asli the 

....fntel:im CbidFinanriel.efficel'; as evidenc.ed by the signatures below • 

. �--
--\a'(r�&-l 

PIBTER TEEUWISSEN 
Interim Chief Administrative Officer 



r 

------------------------------------

II. REVIEWED AND APPROVED

dw ih ✓&!° 
DREW MARTIN DATE 
Interim City Attomey 

..EDBLJS.MA:f;;E� 
lnt�ial--efficer~ 

,-·· 

III. DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY

I hereby determine that the leaks in water lines on Zoo property and on Livingston Park, 
and in the monkey island moat constitute an emergency as that tenn is defined under Section 
31-7-1 of the Mississippi Code Annotated of 1972, as amended, so that the delay incident to 
giving opportunity for competitive bidding would be detrimental to the interest of the City of 
Jackson, Mississippi and its citizens, and contracts to make the necessary repairs are authorized 
pursuant to Section 31-7-13 (k) of the Mississippi Code Annotated of 1972, as amended. 



Bond No. 7901192590 

Document A312™ -2010 
Confonna wlh The American ln8titut8 of ArcllHacta AlA Document 312 

Performance Bond 

CONTRACTOR:
(Nlll1I', 1,aa/ IIDIJU ond«Jdrm) 
Wicker Construction, Inc. 
9640 Walace Lake Road 
Shreveport, LA 71106 

OWNER: 

<N-, wga/ """" """at/drt,u) 
City of Jackson 

MS 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
DIie: Ociober1,2025 

SURETY: 
(Na,,w, legal naJG al'lll prlndpal plan ofb,obw#) 
Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company 
One West Nationwide Blvd., 1-14-301 
Columbus, OH 43215-2220 
Malling Address for Notices 

One West Nationwide Blvd., 1-14-301 
Columbus, OH 43215-2220 

AlllOUlll: s 75,000.00 Seventy Five Thousand Dollars and 001100 

De.:.ifiCloo: 
(N- and laoalilllf) 
Water Une Repair - Jackson City Zoo, Jad<son MS 

�'bctooer3,2025 
(Nol ear/ltJr tian COllltrlladon Contrat:I Dalt) 

AmcluPI: S 75,000.00 

Moclificatlans to ClisBalld: 

Seventy Five Thousand Dollars and 00/100 

SURETY 
Olaapany: 

Thia document his lmoortalll leGll 
� Corlsgla1Jon 11111 
an attomey Is ll'ICOUl'aged With 
mpedlolsCOfllllletlono, 
IIIOdllcalon. 
An/ -SUllr ,.,_,_ ID 
Cclnlrac:lor. Stnly, aw-or
GO!erparlylllall Mconslderld
p(IA!wlleta appbble. 

Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company 

Name 
andnle: 

(,bryaddiliatlol .ri,naluru oppeRr011 tM lastpag9 ofdils P� Ik>ntl.) 
(FORJHFORMJl110N ONLT -Haw, IIIIJn#ottd ttltphoneJ 

V I. , ,,f�,� _ . ! " 1 C. .... / l A.-.__ 

Nae Kihleen L. Semi 
IAll11de: Attomey-in-Fsct 

AGENT or BROKER: OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE: 

Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Mansgement Services, LLC 
111 Veterans Blvd., Suite 1130 
Metairie, LA 70005-3039 
504-868-1100

8-1862/AS 8110 

(Archlr,c1, &,Inter or od,,r J1t1111:} 



§ 1 The Omlradm' Bed SUruy,jalntly 1111d saverally. bind 1hcimelws, 11telr heh,� aclministratorr, successOffi 1111d S$$lps eo die Omler ror
thopedillmancc oflhc Ccmstrualo11 Contnil1t, vdlich lsfncolpmaldlu:reln ey 111.Alrm!ce.

§ 2 lflhe ConlraclOrperfonns t= Ccmslluctlon Conll'llcl, lheSuiey and the Contnietoubal!llllvc,no obligation imdcrtbis Bond, cxi:cptwhon
1pplicab1e to partidpale In a l:Ollfcruce as provided la. Seclkm3.

§ 3 Tflhcre Is noOwnerDeJiruttunderlhi, Qmstrocthm � lhc_Bumits oblitall<m undcrthfsBondwlJ amealler
, 1 1111, Owner lim pn,vid= .aotlc:o to the Ccnztnidllr end Cini Sardi thal the Owner is eonsfdmng dealming a Col1tlnclor Deflml!. Such 

noliceabsll indlcalt � lbc 0waff isrequCltimgaccmcrcnce ammigthe Owner, Con!raalcr and&uretrto dfscllss lbc 
Conh'8Ct«'spcrformancc.lfthc0WncrclocsnotNqa0Staconfmence,lbcS!Jm)'mty,withlnfive(5}bmJaaaday1afturec:elplof 
the OWDlll's 110lice,NCJ11eslsuc:h a coni'emlce. Iftbe Smd;)' thncly .n:quc:sl5 e C011li::ea=,lha Om111nlalll llllcnd. 'Ulllt!iSlhoO\'lllel' 
� othenvfsc, ID)' eonliRace requested uadcr 1111, Seotioa 3. l Bhall be be!d wilhin tea (JO) buslnos:s days oftbc Sun:its -=ipt 
oflhe Owner's notlc:c. Ifthe Owner, !he Colltracwtllld the Slm:tyagm, tbv c«llradOr&ballbo allO\wd areosonablo limo to 
perform the Constrm:ilan Coofrad. but111eh Bn�s!mll Jlllt wain Ule Ownefni&ht. lr111y.subsequtmly to declare a 
CoGlrnctor Defimlt; 

.2 1he O\\'IICl'dilr:laics a Collln!dOr Daf'llult, tcnnlna!cs theComlraclfon Colllraetand l10lliies lhe Surety; mid 
,3 t= O\Vner !ms ageeci lO pay the Balanceof'the CollllaCtPrice In ■=dim= with thi:1 � oflbc Cmislmction �tract lo Iha 

Sttmly or to a contrac!orse�d to perform the Ccmtnlclion Conlnl¢t. 

§ 4 F� on lbc put af1h1:1 Owiicrto comply with 1h11 notice l\lqllimn=rtfn Section 3.1 shall not� a fllilure fO comply willi acondllion
precedent to !he Surct)"s obligations, or release the Siircty wm lts obJ!gatlons, aci:pt ID theextcal the SURty demanstmla 8Clual prajudi=.

§ 5 Whc:o 1hr: 0Wllm' bu 8111isficd tho ccndltlClllS of Secllon 3, lhc Sumy sball prmnpUy 1111d Ill the Surety's expcme tab oneoflho follOt'ling IIC!i011$:

§ 6,1 Amrlgt forthe Contractor, wilh the CIIDl':III of'ihi., Owner. to p:rlbnn and coinp!e!t, the CollStnK:llon Cantnllll;

§ 6.2 Undcit8kc to pcrf01ID and complete the CoDslructl0.11 Om!ract � 1hroqb 118 agents or independ,:nt COIW'BClors;

§ 6,3 Obtllln bids or negolialed propllSllla r= 11unlilied con1ra1:1or& m=pblble to lhe <>mi« for a contraet far pcrfonnOllce end cmaJ!letlon of the
Construction Contract, ammge fora contract to be prqwed fbr acc11tlon by 1he Owner and a co111n1cror sclecled with the Ow:na's coacmrc111:e, ID be
�wllhpcrf'onnencc end paym1:11t bomb �cd bya4Jllldlficdsuretycguivalottothc bondshsuedon the Colls1mcllan Car!!nic!,llldpnyto
tlic Owner the 11111011Q1 of damages ll5 dcscdbed ill Sedion 7 In CXCC$S oflheBal1111ce of the Contmct Price incuned by lhe Owner as Cl n:still o.f lbe
ConlnlCIOrDcftmlt: M

§6.4Wam:ilsdghttopcdlmnandcomp!ete,llffl!llgcfGl'completioD,oroblaillanewcontmctoraiuhvJthreosanablepn,mplnassunda'lhe
clmums1mu=

.1 ,\ftcrlnvcstJgatlo.n, dctml1kto lheamClllllforwb!di ilmay be Jielm ID the Owner811d,assoon aspniellcable aftcttbumount Is 
dclcimincd. make PIIYIUCDt IO fllC 0Wner. or 

.2 Deny llabililyinwholc or fnpmtandm>lllJ' the Omier. citillg lhctr:OSCIIISfot deaiuL 

§ 6 If lhc Slll'df docs 11ot pruceecl as provided In Seollon 5 with reasonllble promplnlll!S, die Surety zbull he � to bl In default oa this Bond
seven days all.ermelpt of mi 11ddlllonal 'MillDII notii;o iom lhD Owner to tbo Sumyck:mmxlmg lhallhe Slllet11lerfon'n fuobiiptloas uaderlhls
Bond. awl the Owner shall be cmlltlcd to caforc:o 1111)' nmcdy av1111abl� to the Owner, Jf tbo Surety proceeds as pm,idcd ill Seclicn 5.4, mid the
Owiicrtcfuscs Ille pll)'allllll w tilt Surety II as denied�, In whole orln part, withoiitfurlhcr not£c:c, 1he Ownet sl1all be entll.lcd III cnl'or= ony
rmJHdy IMilable to the Owner.

S-18S'l/AS 8/10 



" 

§ 7 mbo&uttydccts ro octunderSedlm.S,J, 5.2 ot 5.3, then die iespomlbl'lides oflhe Slll'll)'totbe OwsnbaD .IIOl bearem,Chm lbascal'dic
CoulraclcrundcrlheConslnlellon<.'onlrlllll,mid!lle�oraieOwnartolh1>SllllllysbaBuotbcgreatcrthaDthosooflhoO\\"DOr'lllldcrthc
Ccmslruclim Coalrad. Subject lo the cCU11UlD111111 by tie Ovmm-la pay lhaBallnccofthc Omlract Prfc:e, die Surety is oblfaa!ied. without
dDplicallolt, &

,1 the rtspoma'bilities or Ille ColllnlClor!or conec.,$o11 cir d1reetms'WCllk111d complelian Cit'� �11 Canuact; 
.2 eddilfOQll lrgaJ, desigopm&sloaal lllllldeliv' costSiesullf!llftmn Ibo Cm,1n1dm'sDmult, mu! l'CSPJllac &om till: actlom or 

fililan, 1Dactoft1111SomyuucrSoction S:1114 
.3 .fiqlddaled clmmps, orffllO lfquidaleddmnapsaro speolJled fa tboOlasrmctiuo Caatnd, aalllat dmn&gllS eau:mll,y� 

perfbanance Ol'DOD�cleheColllnelm', 

§ 8 Jflllolluety deers 1C1 actundcrScdfon.S.1, 5.3 or 5.4, die� rfabDltylsllmfted lo the IIDOIJlll oflhts Dlllld.

§ 91be Slne(faiaU notb= Uabletothe Ownerorolhas for oblfp!lims oftln:CcmtraolDrthatmilllllOlalccl to tho CGIISlnlclion Colnract, aad lhe
Balmu:e ol'lbc 0mlnn:t Price &ball not be: redulled or setofl'DD IIOCGllD1 of 1111sucb vmlllarod obllgallanr. Norfgluotadlansllall a1:C111coa Ibis
9oad la oay pmon orClldt)'ahcrllnm fLe 0-arils &:us. CQICC:lllors, edmiaistntoll. ..-:essms andlllllip.

§ 10 ThcSmdyll=lly wai._DOlicc ofmy� lnoludlngdiqc, ofdmu, lo 1he � Colltmdor llnelatcd1111bconfrae15,pun:use
orders ad olllcrablfpdoos. 

§ 11 Acy ]l'D� legal or cquilablv, 1IDlk:r lhisBand may be fllslltated In 111YCC!llltof campeteatjudsdictioll In the localkm la whicJi fho WDtkor 
put of the wed!: Is locall:d and shall be lnslftutcd '1ithin lwo1U15aftera doctarotlon of Coattaclor Deflmftor1'ftldn IWl>)'ell!Safta-11111 Co,iar,ictor
� wmkmg ormtbla two years after theSdreff dms o, fails10 perlmm itsabliptioas ender Ibis Dm!d. wblchevs ocem lmt. lftlle 
provlslaa oftk1s.l'anlpDp1a an: YOid arpn,hiblmctt,y Jm, tbll minimllm perigd aflfmlllllfgn IMilaliJe lo 5llfc!les ••aelcme In claejurfsdfc:don or 
lbe suit sball beappllcablc.

§ 12 Notice lo tile SIJrct,, the OwncrorllaoOmlraclcr shall bo Dlllllcd or deim:red to Ibo addresssliowDGD the pegeao which thelr-sigm1ure
appcm.

§ 13 Wb.ea !Ills Bond bas been fumlslied lo Clllllp}ywith aSlllbllc17111'Cllhcr lepl r:equlreawot in die lomlion \.._ !lla CIIIISU1Jdion1N11S IO be
pedbrmed, 11111 provisioa fil. 111is Bond� willlsafd stlllllOry cr Je,111 reqairlmeal llball be doaued dckted � allJ provisfCIDI
CODformiua Ulsudi 8lm1lloly orotm:r !cpl �ls1mlf bed=nal incorpal'atallacian. Wbcll soJbmishcd, tho mtcul is Int tflis Boad aaD be
CODSb'1led III altllluloiy bond and uat as a eommlla law'bond.

§ 14 Deflnlllons
§ 14.1 Balance of the Contratt Price. lhctolll 8D1Cllllltpayab?eby thoOMlerto Ille ColllraclcirUllderlheCoastnidlon Cookactllferailpnipcr
adjusbmmta �tic&:llJWldo. lndllllmg allowance to1he Cmdnidor of uyamoun18 remMd or to be received&., Ibo OwllulallClllemealot
.illlunmc:eotOlbcr olaims for cfaJIUl&el IOwhlah dit Coalmclor fl aditled. lalueed by all ftlfd and propecJIIY!Dellls made ID or 011 &lialfortk
Caanclarmd11rlheComlnldiwi CO$ICl.

i 14.2 Coastructlon Contract. 'Die agn:emllll bltwan tho Owornml Ccmtr:al:1Dr ldlmifial m lhe coverpaac, lnCNdulg all Ocelmel DDQllllell(S 
mddmnga made 1a 1he�IIDCl1llllldfle COlltnlclDocllmems. 

§ 14.3 Contractor Default. Faihlro of the Contnctor, which '1as 001 bccD rmacdied or waived. to pmioim or olhc:swfsc to eomply with a 1Ulcrrial
lalaofthe CaaslrnclioDCclalract. 

§ 14.4 OWner Det.lult. Pallure oflhe Owner, whlllb has not been rancdled or waived, to pay Ciao Co111n1ctor as ,equind Ullder the Camtructlon
CcmllUtortcl parfann 111d c:omplete or comply wllh the otlmmafmll tam.s af'the Colistnlctlao Ccmtrm:t.

§ 14,6 Contract Documents. All the docmmen1s 1bal cmiJlflse the llAftCIDal1 bct.wea Ille Owner and Conlraclar. 

§ 15 trtbla Bood ls mued foran •�maitbet�u CanlnJdor llOdflJbocmbc(or, Ibo tam Coa!IIClor iDtbis.Bcodabll bcdllcm£d tobc 
Subcolllraclar and die term Owner shall be deaned la be Coalnlotur.

S.18521AS8N0 



' 

§ 18 Modlfic:atioms lo thisboad111111S folllJWI:

� II provided beltn, /aradtlltlDnal signammqf arldedpartla, fJllre //um tbr,n appearing on d,e t:aVt/1' pagrJ 

CONTRACTORAS PRINCIPAL SURETY 

Company: (Corporate St#/) CclmpaD)': 

Slgillllllle: 
Nametnd1il1,,,_e:

_. -
-------------

AddR:ss 

S-1852/AS 8110 

Sipalmr. 
N11111emn=,u��---------------

Addras 



Power -of Attomey 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT: 

NallonwicJe Mutual lnsunmct1 CC>fflpetly, an OMo cuponitlon 

h&telnetter refeired lo Se\'Bnlll)' at the "COllljllny" end co!JacUWly aa "Ille Compi1nle$" d088 hereby ml!lce, consllllle and appoint 
ERIC B COPPLE; GEORGE V BAUS; GREGORY R WESTON; JARED VIOLA; KATHLEEN L BERNI; 
MYRIAM R VICTORIA; NORMA TOUPS; TIMOTHY E RALEY; 

eadl In U1lllr lndMdual capec:fly, II• true am! lawful llltomll'fb,fact with flJI power and aulhonty to sign. seal, end exacule on 11B behafl BIi}' end al l>cfll!s and 
undertatlfngs, ar1CI Olher Dllligatory lnellumenls of simbr natunl, In penalllas noe exceeding 1he aum of 

UNLIMITED 
and llll>lnd lhe Company lheniby, as fuly81111 to lhe same el<lenlas If suoh lnslrumen18 -e algled by11le r:klly aulhollzed al'licus oflhe Compsny: a,,d sll aclll 
of Hid Allameypununtto tt,e aulh..itygiwln &re hfflll>y ralllled and mnllrmed. 

Thi• power of ellomey is made and execwld pumiant to and by autholltr dt 1116 foll<lwlng resoluflan duly adop!Bd by Ille boml or dk«IOnl of ht �r­

"RESOLVED, that Iha prasldent, creny.rc& prelllCIGIII bo, and eedl hen,by la, PVlhortied BNl<lfllJIOWBl'IICI ID-IIJl'Olnl �oflhe Company, 
and to 1!.11tr1Cf!Ze lhelTI IO ex-ea.ite end dellller on behalf al 111a Company any and all bond•. rorma, applcallona, IIIMIOraldLIIIS. undnklngs, 
l'IIOOgl1lzances. trammn. 001tllac$ dt indemnity, pollcles, conbacb gw,ranleelng 1h11 r111e11y of i,e111ons holtfno pcsllkN er 1)111,tic Dr prMrte trust. and_,. 
wrllqj& olllgalol)'ln nettnlhatthe businessoftile Companymay raqlir&; Bftd to modlfy«IIMllce. W1ll o, 1111Ulwtcauae,any&Udl appo1n11Mn! or 
8ll1hoJ1ly: pn,villecl. however, 111111 the 8Ull!olfty gran111d lleNlby 91181 IO no -y 1ml 1he 8111horlly al ether dlly alllhalr6d agents lo Sign and countanlgll ,my 
Of tald doG\lmentl! an bd1l!II dllm Company: 

"RESOLVED FURTHER. dBt ll1dl allOme�cl elllll hfMl full power aid 8Ulhorfty to exea,te 1111d deil,rerany and al IIJCh aoc:umenb' anc1 10 bllld 1118 
<lolltpany sut,ject ID lhe liBnns and lfflllallcnll cf lhe power of all0m9y fllsuatl to1118m, &JIii to 8llil< um seal of 1118 Comj)any--; IJl'OVl&ld, �. eiat 
sstd seill llhaR not be neceasa,y lortlle valcllyolany ll1lttl docllrnenls: 

This � of allon'ley la signed and -'ed unClet Md by Iha tilowqi bylaws duly adapted by Ille llOllld Of dlnl!:li>re of Iha eam,.,ny. 

EJrecullmJ of lt18�b. MY �paaldard, er,yll8Stllantseaearyor er,y �tire..untrshaU have the powerandaulharltylD sign orattllo;tall 
appiii;ed Cl000ments, liiain,rnaor,;, c:or'IUa&, a-Olher papen; In c:onnedlonwllll Ille openlliDnofllle llU9lnass ol t111uompanytnaddlll0n 11>11111 dlalnn8n of 
lha baanl, lhe chief' execullw! oftla,r, snsldent, -•orsec:retasy: pn>,lded, '-· th!! olgnalura of any of lllmn mll)'ba pmtact, engraved. ar 
,it.mp,,d on any app,<llled d--.t, canlml:t. ftllJumtlR!, orolherpl)M!R Ol lhe �-

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Iha Cc,mpanyllascaieecllhla �11> IJ&-"'dand dllly des=! by Ille algnsl111'&0f Ills officerllHt 1atdayof Aj,rU, 2024. 

il!:f..._., ___ __,, 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

STAlEOf NEW YORK COUNTY OF KINGS:&a. 
On du 1st day of Apdl, 2024. bebv me camD lhea!Jove.mllllld afbf far lhe Company 
llfonleald, ID me penanaly llnown IC be �officer dascrlbsd In 1111d 1'tlo oxocubld 1he 
�,ng lnslrumenL 1111d lie l!dalDWledged Ille e>eeullon attne-. and belllQ by me dUly 
-. llapoes and sa�, lhal he Is Ille clllcef d. lbe Coo.-, llfioraaald, !hat the tealafllj(ed 
haelOIB 1hllOC11pJ1818 aaal or 1131d ComflMY,aod 1he llddcorporatesealand his slgnallft 
- duly sllbcad end MIS(:t1bed IO aald lt1111UmeP1 by Ille atltl1oll\Y 4DI dlrecdon Of seld 
Compeny. 

CERTIFICATE 
l, l.azleF. ChlmlenU, Assslan1S11<19laly Oflhe Campany, do henlby Olll1llylllatlhll�iS a llD. lnle andcom,ctcopyof lh<Hlllglllal �• Of allomey 
l&:luell by 1lle Cumpeny; hi tile rmial>tim lnduded lheteln Is a 1111B ud corract �flom Ill& i>li!Wlas of 1he 1118eU1191 of UII l>Oirtls of dlreclcn1 end 1lle 
HIii$ "'1• not been revoked oren1ended h anyl!IOMOr, that seldAmlnloC.Albaneee W811 on Iha clal8 oflhe ._don ofl!M, fofegdllg poweroflllllolney Ille 
auty elodad omcer al Ille Company. ancr Ille 001p0111lo aeul and hlo � es olllcerwo� duly alllxe4 end 8l4>$albed cu the takl '1elrument W 1118 e1Jholily of 
Mid blad cl dJrectoni; and lhio�ng pGMr of aUllffley lo still In full fome and effect 

IN WlThlESS WHEREOF, I hBve llenluntn au� my mime II$ Astbtant Seaalary, and afflnd Ille 
Cbll\.'f 

.!!!__.. 

BOJ 1[04-24)00 

.;. 



Bond No. 7901192590 

Document A312 ™ -2010 

Payment Bond 

CONTRACTOR: 

Conform11 with The American Institute of An:bftecta AIA Documet1t 312 

(J{aa., #gal IIIJIIU /l1ld addr,s1} 

Wicker Construction, Inc. 
9640 WaDace Lake Road 
Shreveport, LA 71106 

OWNER: 

(II-. .,.rffllJJSo1llltllldnu) 
City of Jackson 

MS 

SURETY: 
(Na/Ile, kg,,/ mtia 1111d prlndpalplacof 6!mnas) 
Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company 
One West Nationwide Blvd., 1-14-301 
Columbu_!l�P-� 4321 s..2220
Mlllng AIHIAIA for Notices 

One West Nationwide Blvd., 1-14-301 
Columbus, OH 43215-2220 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
Date: October 1, 2025 
A111011Dt: S 75,000.00 Seventy Frve Thousand Dollars and 001100 

(N-ondlot:allon) 

Water Line Repair - Jackson City_Zoo, Jackson MS 

BONDDalB: October 3, 2025 
(NOl-,,,,.dJONCcNtn#:lfonC'artnolkM} 

.Alllellllt$75,000.00 

ModlBadoaa lo this Botid: 
Seventy Five Thousand Dollars and 00,100 

(2SI Noac O See Section 18 
....... -......... �CTOR AS PRINCIPAL _ _L'f_9�i!lJ;�-i.

,.
., SURETY 

Thl8 docunent haS inpwnl legal
consequences. OOndallDn Wllh 
an llameyll ent.OUfl08CI wllh 
mpeclto .. �«
modllcalloil. 
Anysqiular reference to 
�. Slll(y, OPlnar• 
olllll"pattyshd t.&corlSklaed 
pbalwti..applcabfa. 

,y: I� �v,i;••.'O \ Complmy. 
Wtcker Construction, Inc. i Jc/ O '-" \ "!--\ Nationwide Mutual Insurance companyso • 0 •·- rn , - t 

1 1- =-: SEAL :
z

z 
·? 

� =' � : () i r ;� ; �' , l..._; ?:, "h 
Sipmc: � '.. / ; � 1 1.. l ◄�-1 ... '1, 1,f' \../ /LA. .... 

� •. 195 •• ; Kafh. leen L Be I Name �
-1, 

(. ··-----·•" .� Namo • rn 
ad Tide: '•,,_,fJ!!.!�•"''�� llld TJlle: Attomey-in-Fac:t 

�tldd/lioM/ 1/gntllUnl '1J1P'fll' Olt 1M k#I� �t/Jls P.-UII Bond.) 
(FOR lNFORJIAT/0.V ONLY -Na,ne, addra, ,n,d Nlq,lwnt) 

AGENT or BROKER: OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE: 
Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Setvices, LLC 
111 Veterans Blvd,, Suite 1130 
Metairie, LA 70005-3039 
504-888-1100

8-2148/AS 1110

{Ard,Jra,I, Eng/,te� arodt,r party.) 

.,.. 



--- --- ----- - ---
J-

§ 1 Tbz, Ca.aum:tor and Surely,jointlyllld"veislly• bind lhe!Dselves, lhelrfleln, CXCCll!oll,11dawllslnloir,successan1 and as.,ptothcOwncrto
pay lbr labor, 1D11fmlls and i:quipmelll ftlmlshed for IISO In Ike perfllnnaaee cftfle Ccmsttuctfon Conlraet. which Is lnoorponlll!d bnin by mfere111:e,
$11bjecl 10 lbe l'ollowillg mm.

§ 2 If the Co111nic1or pn,mptly mllkes�ent of all SU111S due to Claimimta, mad doft:ads, ioclemaifics and holds harml:ss the Owuer &om claims.
demands, lions or suits by flD1 pemon or entity Reking payment for liibar. mataWs orcqaip!l!Cllt tillnlwd for ma ill lheparmrmm:ico oftlse
Oonskllelioo Ccmwi:t, thCl1 tho SarctJ ad 1h11 Contractor 1ha11 bnc DO ob!iplion under this Bolid.

§ 3 Jf1hm lsno Owner De!lmll lllld£r lbe Consltuctioa Ccmttact, the� ob!Jpdon 10 the OWD�rumlerthls Bond shall arise aftcr1hc Ownc:r
ha pmnptJy ll(llific:cf lhc ConlnClor mid lhc Smcc, (at the addras dascrlbed inSecllon 13)ofchims, de1DB11ds, lleDSorsuill llgllinsl the O\weror 
lhe Owner's Jll'Opcrb'byaay pm1111 oren� seeking JIIIYBIIIIII for 1Bbor.mal1:dals ar cqaipawll fiimishcd for use.in Iha perfonnuceofthe
Comlructiol1 Conlnl"ad tl:llda=I dcfimecifauch dabn:r, demmufs.Jleu arsnffsto lheContractotandtbe Sum,.

§ 4 When 1111:1 Owner has sll!Jsfied the coJldltJona In Sedion 3, Ille S111'8\Y shall pmmplly mid DI Ille SUrety's expense dcfi:nd, fndalmfty 811d llolll
harmless die OWJICI' against11doiy tcndcn:d clalm,dcatu<I, !icn or aoiL

§ 6,1 Claimmtls, whodo not have adlieclCODtracl with the Comraetor,
.1 have f11111isbed II wriUm lllllice of nan1»1)'llllllll � lhe Ccmtrualar, IIUllillg Mfh subsumtl&l accuracy lb 1111\0llllt cllllmed lllld ll!o 

mune oflhepmty ID whom the murials w=, orc:quipmcmt was, filmisbedonupplied or forwhomtbe labarwa done or 
perfanlllld, wilhin IIUll!l.y (90) clay& after llavlagJasl ptafcnud fabar«-last llmshcd nilllcriais orequlplllOlllb:!Dded in lhe Claim; 
111111 

.2 have SCllta ClailJl IO thc SIUCly {at the admessdescd&ed laSeclltm 13). 

§ B.2 Clalmrmbr, who am�m� by or haw a dm:ct c:olll!8Cl wkh tho Cmmacrm-, .bavesenl a Claim co lbc Surety (111 lhe address described in
S'cclimll3).

§ 6 If aaodw of IIOD-pa,Ymcnt required by Scctlcm 5.1.J .is given by Iha Ownetto the Coalraclor. tba1 is sufficie11llo aallsfy n Clld1111111t's oblfgutian
to JbmisJi a wntlell ooUce ohon-.P8)'1llCnt 1111der Section 5.t.1.

§ 7 Whea a Clalmaatms salisficclllm l:Olldilions ofSectiom5. J or S.2. whidiem-iupplicable. lhe &Rty sllall promptly and al the Sulely's
expease lake lhe lbllowfag 11cdous:

§ 7.1 Sead 1111 amwer 10 lhe autmant. wllh u copy co Ifie Owner, wWdn sixty (6D)c!a)'sufb:r nxdpt of the Claim, 8lallag lhc amomds that me
1IIXli:;pDled and I.bi= lxl5is fi>r dulllcllg&lg 111111UD1111111s tllat11111 cfisputl:d; 1111d

§ 7.2.Pfl'/ or ammgc Corpayme4tofany andlspuced mnounls. 

§ 7.31ha Suret,y'B lkihw lo cllsdJmgc ifs obligatm under Scdi1m 7.1 or Section 7.2 shall not be= cJccrnad to COIIStlmte a wamrof debeslhe
Sure1J orConlmclormay han or acquire as ro a aorm, eiteept es to lllldispt11ed 111110Ulll5mrwblcb thcSunity end ClalmaatJmvt Jeachecf 1greemmt
JF, Jiawm:r, \1111 Surer, .6iils to dlsi:hmgeilsabligalionsumlar Slll:!111117,1 lll'SediDn 7:J,, tbSaRtysballimlemnify theC!aimanl f'ol'lhe�e
llllomey's fees the CJaimaal incm:sthoraftmto lllCOftraD)' sums 1'omkito bacllle&lld owiagtolhc CIAiltuun.

§ � The Suretts total obliptimu.iiall not c.'tc:ccd the am011Dt of Ibis Bond, plus lhe mnomitofrmonablc lllllJmey's fees prcmdad 1111der Scctkm. 7.1,
and daci &mOlllll oflhls Boadmall be c.cdilcd ror mlY P8)'111C1lts madem good filJth by the Surety. 

§ 9 AtnOIIDls oi.vcd by lhe Owocr to the Contrador andcr the Coosln!c&n Contract shall he used for the pe,fimnmce of the CollSln:ICllon Coalract
and lo &ldisl)' claims, Irey, undc:rany coastmctlo11 perfi)ml811Ce boad. B11he CClldmdor ilmlsbmg md Ill= OWaer fflfll!ling Ibis l!aQd, diey QIPa
lhat all lmds cmm:d by lbe Coo1ract0r in the pcrfounance or the Coostniclioo Conltact ere dedicall!d 10 satllfy Gbllplions of the Coatrammmd
Suzctymdcrtl!is Bond, sulljed to dae Owner's primity to use the filnds for lho complelirm oflhc work.

6-21◄91AS 8110 



\ 

• ,J, 

§ 10 'Ibo SWllty shsU not be I.bible ro the Owner, Clafaumls or olhm' for cil>IJgnif ans of Che CDntrac:lor lhat arc Ulll'CJalld to the CoilstnlcUon Cont=t
lbc Owner mall not be Jiable for lho pl)'lll8Dl of eny coslsor txpenses of eay Clafmmlt undcrlhls Bond, nnd shall� llllde:r1hlsBandno
obligation toll!llkll PflllC.Ols lo, orcivcnolic= on bebaltot Claimaals orollii:rwh'e Jmve anyobllgalions to Cleimmlls under lhls Bond,

§ 11 l1ie Slimy liereby \� notice aflll!ychanse, iMludmgchmlgee aftimc, to the Conitnldim CO!llJacl or lotdated lllhcmilraclll, purchaso
ordcn mid olhe:r obliptiOJ1$.

§ 12 No suitor iu:tiunshall ba CCl!IU1KlllCCd by a Claimamt llllller th.ls Bond athar(han In e coml of edillpetentjuris:dlclfon ID lhUtaloiD Mlidl lho
projm dial Is !he subject oflhc Constmcdon Coitlm:t-Js JomcdorafterthnxpinitimJ ofonoyearlmm the dllle (1) on wmllh.lhoC!a!mmllscn!.a
Clllim lo llioSurety pl!l'Slllllltll> Scdlon 5.1.2or 5.2, m-(2) 0.11 whlch lhe !mt lalio: or se:vice �pi:donned by miyone ortbo last mllmfalsor
equipmffllw= tlnullbed by arl)'011euodcr Ille �lion Coolr3t, wllfchlWG' af(l) or(2) fint 0CIIU#. lftu provlsloiis offhis l'magJ11J!h mo void
or pmlbfted by law, lhtmln!mllmperlad ofllmlllilloD awila!Jle to� u o defCNO In tllej\nfsdlcttonoftbcsulubaJI bB applic@!c.

§ 13 Notlco 111111 Chdms lo1he Sun:cy, lh#Owncrortlw Contradorsball bo mailed ordellva= to tbo 11� ahownmthepgoOII whic:b tholr
slgnamre appsms. Actual niQeiptofJIOllect or CJaJms, howu= aecompllshl:ff. shall bu11fiicient compliance PS of Ibo date recmved.

§ 14 When this E!OJ1dhm be� fiunish!.ld to comply with a SlllllllOJll orOlhcrk:gal requirement fn lb location whm 111D conmuollonwm cob11
performed. RDY proYil!an in Ibis BOl!d llOllflictillg'Witl! saidmtutozy or !egnl requirement dutll be deemed ddeied hetefrom and pro'lfsiom
comlllilllng to snch stw!Ozyorolherlegalrequil==tsball bo deemi,d incarporaled hemn. When so�, thcmk:nt fs Iha! Chis Bond lihaD be
coOSlnled u II statutory bond and not as aQlllllllDn lsw bond.

§ 15 Upon Rqllest by aoyptison orenlity appBminglo be 11potential bo!Plialmy ofthls Bond, the Contiactor and OwnersooU promptly furnish e
copyo!lhis l3oPd Of$hfJ)lpemilt 11 copy Co be mad�

§ 16 Definitions
§ 18.1 Claim.A written statement.by the Clniniantinchlding1¢11minilllum:

.1 the name oflh8 Claimllllt; 
,2 lherutme of the person forwhGID. lhc labor was done. or llllllaials or cqaip.ment ftrmWled; 
.3 11 COJll' of 111� •�tor pun:basc arder pursuant 'to whk1t Jnbor, m:iterlals or equipment 'Mlll firmi.lbed fbr llSC Jo lho 

pcrfuJmaace o[lhe Carlstnlclion ColltraOI; 
.4 a liriefdesaiplf011 ofh labor, mlllerials orequipmentibmisbcd; 
.6 tbe dale onwbichtlte Chumanl lastper1ii.ancd labororla,t ftmdehcd materials or cqulpn1cnt!oruscin Ibo pmonnmceoftbe 

Conmuctian C011trncl; 
.8 the tobil 111110lllltcmed bythe Clahnllllt for labor,malmals or equipment fum{$hed es ofthedalll ofthe Claim; 
.7 !he IOla1 mno1111tofprcviom� recd'Rd by the Claimaot;and 
.8 lhelOUllamOllllt dua 11111hmpaid lotm, Claii:Daoi fodebor.m&!edals orequipmeat fumlsbedas oftmidate ofthcCliim. 

§ 18.2 Clalmant. 11D indlviciu4I or entity having 1uim:dcanllllt wilh the Conlraclur or with uubcontrador aflbeCon1r.H:lorto fuml!ihlabor,
materials orcqaipmc:nl for use in lhe ptr(oirnaace oflhc Constnldion �- Tho term Clsfmant also l111:ludcs emr Jndividual orllllitylhat hos
rightfillJy a=ru:d o clnlm onder on applicable mechmfc'aJfCP or =Dar &tablte apbt thcieal property npou �ch !he Project b iOC11fl!d. � mfcllt
or fhla Bood shall bo to intiude without Iimitelion in tla.o tcans "laboi-, mafaiais Ill' cqulpmart" !hat part offflltef, sos. power, light. beat, oil, 81150lin�
lelcphonc scrvk:c ormitslcqulpmc:D! used in the Comtmrno11 Cmllracl, an:hlrectmal and 1121,ghtecrlogmv.lets requlml rorperlbrmallccof!howork
oflhB Canlraclor 1111d th1 Co11trzctoi'B suk;oofractors, 811d 1111 olhm-ltemsf'orwhic& amc�hmrlc's lien lllll)' beassermd In 1hojurl&dlotlm wlmrvtlic
labor. mnterials or equipment were fmnislcd.

§ 16.ll Constructton Ccintract. The 11srca111:ntbllweto 1M Owner mid CoDlnlctor Id�tlfia:I on tboeovcr p0ge. lndadlng afl Col!lr.lCI J)OCIIC)eb!$
and all c:bangos made In 1ht opement 1111d Iha Conlnlot DOCllml!Ols.

S-2149/AS 8110 













































































































































































































































































































































































































































38



Page 1 of 2 

A RESOLUTION AFFIRMING SUPPORT FOR THE EFFORTS OF EMERCHANT 
CAPITAL, LLC TO ESTABLISH AND DEVELOP THE METROCENTER AREA BY 
IMPROVING INFRASTRUCTURE AND DEVELOPING RESIDENTIAL, 
COMMERCIAL, AND COMMUNITY SERVICE PROJECTS 

WHEREAS, Emerchant Capital, LLC (“Emerchant”) describes itself as a dynamic financial 
investment and real estate development firm dedicated to revitalizing underserved communities 
through strategic, high-impact urban redevelopment. With a mission rooted in economic equity and 
sustainable growth, Emerchant states that it specializes in mixed-use developments that transform 
underutilized spaces into vibrant residential, commercial, and community hubs. Emerchant describes 
its projects as being intentionally designed to uplift socioeconomically disadvantaged areas—
including urban city centers, rural regions, and designated Opportunity Zones—through affordable 
housing, critical infrastructure, and long-term job creation; and  

WHEREAS, Emerchant is seeking to facilitate and lead development for the Metrocenter 
revitalization initiative. Emerchant seeks to bring to this project a proven commitment to community-
driven impact and sustainable urban revitalization by working collaboratively with local organizations, 
educational institutions, faith-based ministries, and workforce development agencies. Emerchant 
intends to foster development which will reflect authentic community needs and priorities while 
creating transformative developments that not only build infrastructure but also builds lives and 
legacies. Emerchant will focus on eliminating food deserts, creating quality employment 
opportunities, expanding healthcare access, and fostering educational advancement for the residents 
and families who will benefit from the Metrocenter revitalization; and  

WHEREAS, Emerchant is seeking to establish a Business Improvement District to be 
implemented at and around the site of the former MetroCenter Mall, encompassing approximately 70 
acres at the former Metrocenter Mall site and adjacent areas in west Jackson; and 

WHEREAS, Emerchant intends for the future Business Improvement District to finance an 
$875,000,000 mixed-use redevelopment project to revitalize the Metrocenter area through site 
redevelopment, infrastructure upgrades, residential and commercial development, and community 
services; and 

WHEREAS, Emerchant’s funding plan includes a $262,000,000 bond issuance to create 
annual assessment revenue sufficient to ensure a financially viable and sustainable model; and 

WHEREAS, Emerchant has requested that the City Council of the City of Jackson, Mississippi 
voice its support for Emerchant’s efforts to create the potential economic, social, and environmental 
benefits that the proposed Business Improvement District and its associated development plan could 
bring to the residents of Jackson, including job creation, improved public infrastructure, access to 
grocery and healthcare services, and community revitalization; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Jackson, 
Mississippi, that: 

Agenda Item No. __38____
October 21, 2025
(Hartley) 



Page 2 of 2 

1. The City Council hereby supports and endorses Emerchant’s efforts to develop the
Metrocenter area and to attempt to establish the Metrocenter Improvement District; and

2. The City Council further supports Emerchant’s intent to secure a variety of funding sources,
including Low-Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC), New Market Tax Credits (NMTC), and
Opportunity Zone incentives, to supplement CID resources and private investments; and

3. A certified copy of this resolution and accompanying Statement of Votes shall be provided to
Emerchant for it to distribute and use as evidence of the support of the City Council for the development of 
the Metrocenter and surrounding properties for the betterment of the City of Jackson, Mississippi. 

So resolved, this the 21st day of October, 2025.


	Blank Page



